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Cinema City International N.V.

LETTER FROM THE CEO

Dear Shareholders

2011 was another very eventful year in the lif€afema City. We began the year with the successful
acquisition of the Palace Cinemas chain in the ERapublic, Hungary and Slovakia, which added 15
multiplexes, 141 screens and a new territory tooineuit. With this acquisition, we were catapultedhe
third largest cinema operator in all of Europe tdtal, during the year we grew our cinema cirbyit?22
multiplexes and 200 screens, which representstigest yearly expansion in our history. We entied t
year with 906 screens in 96 theatres.

During the year, we invested approximately EUR %ion in our new and existing theatres. We opened
four new multiplexes: three in Romania, in Bra\aad and Turgu Mures, and one in Poland, in Torun.

In 2011, we continued construction of our thirdrféamegaplex in Israel, in Rishon Letzion, which is
scheduled to open mid-year. The theatre, whichbg&itome our flagship operation in Israel, will bba5
screens, including our first IMAXscreen in the country.

During the year we moved ahead with our rapid cosiwa from traditional to digital projection. Blé end
of the year, more than 90% of our chain has begitatized. We believe that digital technology witht only
continue to generate premium priced higher attecgltirough 3D films and alternative content (suxh a
operas, ballet, sporting and other events drawimigdwide attention), but it will also help to reducinema
operational costs. In addition, we have begundoup the cost of investing in this digital techrgylo
through virtual print fee agreements we have edtir® with most of the major film studios.

In 2011 we also continued to sign new lease agreener future multiplexes. We currently have g€dn
agreements for approximately 350 screens, withiagerscheduled in the coming two to four years. We
continue to be particularly excited by our growprgsence in Romania, where we now operate 12 c;iema
with 114 screens in 10 cities.

In 2011 our theatre operations continued to grdhis was in spite of the fact that 2010 includesl sults
of the record-breaking movidyvatar 3D Thanks, in large part, to the acquisition ofadéal Cinemas, in
2011 we achieved a record 35.5 million admissianess our 7 countries of operations. We generatéd E
267 million in revenue, a 14% increase over 204011 cinema related EBITDA, net of the one-timetgos
related to the Palace Cinemas acquisition, remainetianged from 2010, at approximately EUR 53
million. Our cinema related net profit, net of ie-time costs related to the Palace Cinemas sitiqaj
totaled EUR 24 million in 2011, an 11% decreasenf@d10.

Regarding our screen advertising activities, weinoe to see stable demand from our screen adeestis
and anticipate that screen advertising demand droauitinue to hold up, supported by the greateilfikty
in advertising opportunities offered by the comipietof our conversion to digital screens, and tihditeon
of so many new screens, which was accelerated blpaace acquisition last year.

In 2011, our film distribution division revenue meased by 28.1% to EUR 21.8 million from EUR 17.0
million for the same period last year. The incressenainly due to the increased distribution atgegi
following the agreement signed in September 2018 thie Israeli film distributor A.D. Matalon to seras

its sub-distributor in the Israeli market. In 20&# launched our film distribution activities in S&kia and
we intend to do the same in the Czech Republi©i?2

I look forward to 2012, which features a promislimg-up of blockbuster franchise films includihgrd of
the RingsThe Hobbit and the latestames Bondnovie, as well as the lategiadagascamandice Age
installments and a number of new international dmestic titles. On the digital front, we expexhave
100% of our cinemas converted to digital projectiyshe end of the first quarter of 2012. In aidditto our
planned megaplex opening in Rishon Letzion in Iskae also expect to open new theatres in Bulgaria,
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Burgas and Sofia, in the Czech Republic in Ostramd,our next cinemas in Romania, all together
representing almost 80 new screens.

Once again this year | wish to express my thankisgaatitude for the exemplary work of our Cinemé&yCi

management and employees across our 7 countr@ggeddtions. The cinema business is our largerHifean
adventure and we are very grateful that we careshaith our tens of millions of loyal cinemagoengery

year.
Thank you for your loyalty and we look forward twasing a new slew of good movies with you in 2012!
Moshe Greidinger, CEO

15 March 2012
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Supervisory Board Report

We are pleased to present the financial statentdér@nema City International N.V. for the financigar
2011, accompanied by the report of the Managemeatd KPMG Accountants N.V. audited the financial
statements and issued an unqualified auditor'srtefde recommend the shareholders adopt the finhnci
statements as presented.

We concur with the Management Board’'s proposahkert up on page 111 to allocate the net profitHer
year 2011, amounting to EUR 20,925,000, to retagsdings.

Supervision
During 2011, seven meetings were held by the SigmywBoard and the Management Board during which
the following topics, among others, were discussed:

« the Company’s business strategy;

« the corporate governance structure of the Compautlythe adherence to the Dutch and Polish
corporate governance codes;

e risk management;

e internal audit reports;

» the Management Board remuneration policy as weth@sompany’s long-term incentive plan;

* the Palace acquisition

* Financial results and other related issues.

All Supervisory Board meetings held in 2011 wertersded by the majority of the members of the
Supervisory Board and none of the members of theelSisory Board was absent for more than one
Supervisory Board meeting in 2011, other than Mie@an Greidinger who missed all of the meetings due
to health related issues and who passed away iob@&c011. Mr Rosenblum acted as chairman in the
absence of Mr Coleman Greidinger, until 14 Novemdetl when he was appointed Chairman of the
Supervisory Board subsequent to Mr Coleman Gregatiagpassing (see below).

Special Committee of Independent Supervisory Boardmbers

As the Bulgarian real estate previously owned ky @mmpany was sold in 2010 to the Company’s main
(indirect) shareholder, Israel Theatres Ltd., tefeded payment agreement that the Company sigmed i
2011 with Israel Theatres Real Estate Holding Busl Pan-Europe Finance B.V., both subsidiariesral
Theaters Ltd., was treated as a ‘related partyséretion’. For this reason, the Supervisory Boardhef
Company formed a special committee of independeatdbmembers who, together with the Company’s
Audit Committee, considered and approved the elmtudf the new agreement. For a more detailed
description of the transaction, reference is madéé Directors’ Report (page 23).

Audit Committee

The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Come®tare to supervise, monitor and advise the Managem
Board and Supervisory Board on all matters relabedsk management, audit, control and compliamce t
relevant financial legislation and regulations. Thadit Committee evaluates the performance of ester
auditors and related costs. During 2011, the AGdimmittee met four times. The Audit Committee also
held meetings with the external auditors.

Appointment Committee

The primary responsibility of this committee isadvise the Supervisory Board on matters relatinthéo
nominations of both Management and Supervisory @oambers. The Appointment Committee regularly
reviews the Supervisory Board profile, its effeefiess and composition. The committee also revieess t
performance of the members of the Management Bdawndng 2011, the Appointment Committee met
once.
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Remuneration Committee

It is the primary task of the Remuneration Comritie propose to the Supervisory Board remuneratfon
the members of the Management Board, including \dewe and monitoring of the Group’s total
remuneration policy. During 2011, the RemuneraG@ammittee met twice.

Mr Coleman Kenneth Greidinger

It was with great sadness that the Supervisory @tearned that the Chairman of the Supervisory &oar
Mr Coleman Kenneth Greidinger, passed away on 1bli@c 2011 at the age of 87. Mr Greidinger sensd a
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Cinema Cityefnational N.V. from its inception in 2004.
Mr Greidinger founded Israel Theatres Ltd. in 12568 served as managing director of Israel Theataks
and affiliated companies since that time. He leddavelopment and growth of the cinema busineksael
and was the longest-serving member of the Rotamp @1 Israel, Co-Founder and President of the Warie
Club Israel and for more than fifty years, Honor@ugnsul General of Norway in Haifa. He also sergad
the Management Board of Trustees of Maccabi Haifd an the Board of Governors of the Hebrew
University in Jerusalem and the Technion UniversityHaifa. As Chairman of the Supervisory Board, he
oversaw the activities of the Company as it grewheo3 largest exhibitor in all of Europe. He was a mén o
great experience and wise counsel to the Supeywewi Management Board of the Company. He will be
missed by all Supervisory and Management Board reesnb

Composition of the Supervisory Board

In order to secure continuity within the Board, Bwpervisory Board adopted an arrangement thaidesv
for a staggered expiration of individual termsohder to implement this arrangement, in June 2@iding

the annual General Meeting of Shareholders, Mdasask Pierce and Yair Shilhav were reappointed as
Supervisory Directors of the Company. Their nevmtevill expire in June 2015. For the upcoming Gehera
Meeting of Shareholders, the proposal to reappdimRosenblum, whose term expires in June 2012, heill
scheduled.

Composition of the Management Board

With a view to the expiration of their four yearrteas Managing Directors in June 2012, the proptusal
reappoint Messrs Moshe Greidinger, Israel Greidiragel Amos Weltsch is scheduled for the upcoming
General Meeting of Shareholders.

Financial statements

The Management Board has prepared the 2011 fiHastdgéements. These financial statements were
discussed at an Audit Committee meeting attendetthdyauditors, who provided further informationtbe
audit process and their audit findings.

These financial statements were further discussddpproved by a Supervisory Board meeting.

15 March 2012
For the Supervisory Board

Scott Rosenblum
Chairman
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Corporate Governance

Governance structure

Cinema City International N.V. (‘the Company’) isDatch public company with a listing on the Warsaw
Stock Exchange (‘WSE’). For this reason the Compengubject to both Dutch and Polish rules and
regulations regarding corporate governance.

Corporate Governance Code in the Netherlands

On 9 December 2003, the Dutch Corporate Governadbommittee released the Dutch Corporate
Governance Code. It was updated on 10 December B)GBe Corporate Governance Code Monitoring
Committee (the 'Committee’) to take effect as afaficial year 2009. The updated Dutch Corporate
Governance Code (‘the Code”) contains principled bast practice provisions for management boards,
supervisory boards, shareholders and general meetifi shareholders, financial reporting, auditors,
disclosure, compliance and enforcement standatus Committee has published its most recent mongori
report in December 2011.

Dutch companies listed on a government-recognigetk £xchange, either in the Netherlands or elsesyhe
are required under Dutch law to disclose in thamual reports whether or not they apply the prowisiof

the Code and, if they do not, to explain the reasshy. The Code provides that if a company’s Gdnera
Meeting of Shareholders explicitly approves thepooaite governance structure and policy and enddinges
explanation for any deviation from the best practprovisions, such company will be deemed to have
complied with the Code.

The Company acknowledges the importance of googocate governance. The Management and
Supervisory Boards have reviewed the Code, andrg@neagree with its purport. The Boards have taken
and will take any further steps they consider negliand appropriate to further implement the Caug a
improve the Company’s corporate governance featufbs is very much a living process. It is the
Company'’s policy to discuss the topic annually with shareholders and schedule it for this purfmsthe
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders each firsygar. The topic has been part of the agendadoh
General Meeting of Shareholders since 2008.

The corporate governance policy and the corporatergance framework of the Company were approved
for the first time by the shareholders in 2006t bccasion of the IPO of the Company. In viewhsf t
evolution of the corporate governance structurefeamdework since then, the topic is scheduled dothier
discussion in the upcoming General Meeting of Shzlders to be held in June.

Exceptions to the application of the Dutch CorpoeaGovernance Code

The Company endorses the Code and has appliedeteeant best practice provisions of the Dutch
Corporate Governance Code, except for the prossset out below.

Il. 2.4 If options are granted, they shall, in any evertt be exercised in the first three years after the
date of granting. The number of options to be grdrghall be dependent on the achievement of clgatign
targets specified beforehand.

The currently outstanding options have been gramtemnditionally and independent of the achievenoént
targets. The Company shall not amend these exisfingements. Considering that the Company was in a
stage of development when the outstanding optioesewgranted and that the setting of credible
predetermined performance criteria at a term ofeast three years was not practical at this sttge,
Company did not apply this provision. As of theedat this Annual Report no options have been gohtde
any members of the Management Board.
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Exceptions to the application of the Dutch CorpoeaGovernance Code (cont'd)

lll. 2.1 The supervisory board members, with the exceptiomad more than one person, shall be
independent within the meaning of best practicevigion Ill. 2.2.

Our Supervisory Board currently consists of fivemmbers, of which four are independent within the
meaning of the Dutch Corporate Governance Code.

The Company currently has one non-independent megafltee Supervisory Board and therefore complies
with the code. Until the passing away of Mr Colen@reidinger on 15 October 2011, the Company had two
non-independent members, which is a deviation fribla Code. However, the composition of the
Supervisory Board was at all times consistent Wittish corporate governance guidelines. Moreover, t
Company’s Articles of Association state that theo&wuisory Board shall have at least two independent
Supervisory Directors, which criterion is being rgeten the four independent members of the Supenyis
Board. The Company may nominate a second non-imdiegmeé member of the Supervisory Board in the
future.

lll. 6.5 The terms of reference of the supervisory boardl sfwatain rules on dealing with conflicts of
interest and potential conflicts of interest betweeanagement board members, supervisory board ntembe
and the external auditor on the one hand and thepanmy on the other. The terms of reference shadl al
stipulate which transactions require the approvéltiee supervisory board. The company shall draw up
regulations governing ownership of and transactiemssecurities by management or supervisory board
members, other than securities issued by their *‘@empany.

The Company believes that the restrictions undéctDsecurities law are sufficient to govern the evghip

of and transactions in securities by Supervisony ianagement Board members. Implementing additional
restrictions would potentially harm its ability &ttract and ensure the continued services of Sigmeyvand
Management Board members and the Company thereélisves that applying this best practice provision
is not in its best interest.

IV. 3.1 Meetings with analysts, presentations to analyprg&sentations to investors and institutional
investors and press conferences shall be annouincadvance on the company’s website and by means of
press releases. Provision shall be made for alrshalders to follow these meetings and presentation
real time, for example by means of web castingle@phone lines. After the meetings, the presemstiball

be posted on the company’s website.

Information on the meetings and conference cakssant to a wide group of analysts and investors wh
have subscribed to the Company’s mailing list. &méstions are posted on its website prior to thetimgs
in question in order to enable the participantadknowledge them.

Transactions with a conflict of interest

During the financial year 2011 no transactionsedsrred to in best practice provisions Il. 3.4, @13 and

Ill. 6.4 took place involving a conflict of interteielating to directors, Supervisory Board memtmgraatural
and/or legal persons holding at least 10% of tlaeeshin the Company, with the exception of a neferded
payment agreement that the Company signed in ©c&{il1 with Israel Theatres Real Estate Holding B.
and Pan-Europe Finance B.V., both subsidiarieshef Company’'s main (indirect) shareholder, Israel
Theatres Ltd., following the sale of the Bulgari@al estate development projects and activitiethése
subsidiaries of Israel Theatres Ltd. during ther2€40. Best practice provisions Il. 3.2, II. 38,6.1 and

Ill. 6.2 were applied. In order to address the bonbf interest issue pursuant to this transactithre
independent Supervisory Directors, together withGompany’s Audit Committee, considered and apptove
the execution of the new agreement.
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Statement referred to in Section 3 of the Decree28f December 2004, Stb 747, determining the
further requirements concerning the contents of anal reports

Based on Section 391 of Book 2 of the Dutch CiedeC(Act of 9 July 2004, Stb 370 to amend Book3), C
and the Royal Decree of 23 December 2004, limitdallity companies, whose shares — to put it byiefl
are listed on a regulated stock exchange, musudw®la statement in their annual reports about their
compliance with the principles and best practicethe Code.

In light of the foregoing, the Company confirmsttivathe year under review, it did not comply fullyth
the provisions of the Code, nor does it intenddmply with these during the current financial yearthe
next financial year. Its reasons for doing so adaned in the paragraphs above.

Corporate governance code of the Warsaw Stock Exae

The Code of Best Practice for WSE listed compafties ‘WSE Corporate Governance Rules’) applies to
companies listed on the WSE, irrespective of wheslieh companies are incorporated in Poland oiidmuts
of Poland. The WSE Corporate Governance Rules sbo$igeneral recommendations relating to best
practices for listed companies (Part 1) and besictme provisions relating to Management Boards,
supervisory board members and shareholders (Paoté\v).

The WSE Corporate Governance Rules impose uporcdhganies listed on the WSE an obligation to
disclose in their current reports continuous ofdental non-compliance with best practice provisigwith

the exception of the rules set forth in Part |. Bwrer, every year each WSE-listed Company is requiv
publish a detailed statement on any non-compliavite the WSE Corporate Governance Rules (including
the rules set forth in Part 1) by way of a statetrerbmitted with the company’s annual report (tvedrly
Compliance Statement’).

Companies listed on the WSE are required to justdig- or partial compliance with any WSE Corporate
Governance Rules and to show the ways of elimigalie possible consequences of such non-compl@nce
the steps such company intends to take to mitity@teisk of non-compliance with such rule in future

In compliance with 8§29 sec. 5 of the Warsaw Stoxkhange Rules, each year the Company publishes a
separate report on its compliance with the WarstawkSExchange Corporate Governance Rules which is
submitted to the Warsaw Stock Exchange and whidh lve available from the Company’s website
(www.cinemacity.n).

The Company makes all efforts to comply with alhpiples of both the Dutch Code and the WSE Coitgora
Governance Rules and to enforce such corporatetsteuthat ensures the Company’s transparencyeto th
most possible extent. The Company believes thaffitsts are appreciated by its stakeholders aatthese
efforts will support the Company’s growth and iediability.

General Meeting of Shareholders

Per the Articles of Associatiomf the Company, the Annual General Meeting of 8halders shall be held
within six months after the end of the financiahy¢o deal with, among other matters: (i) the ahnejort,
(i) the adoption of the financial statements,) (& discussion of any substantial changes in catpor
governance, (iv) a discussion of the remunerataitypin respect of the Management Board, (v) granof
discharge to the members of the Management Boairthédr management over the past financial yedya(v
discussion of the remuneration policy in respedhef Supervisory Board, (vii) granting of dischatgehe
members of the Supervisory Board for their sup@wisover the past financial year, (viii) policy on
additions to reserves and dividends, (ix) the d@dapof the profit appropriation, (x) a (re)appoimn of
members of the Management Board and (xi) a (rejappent of members of the Supervisory Board.

" Most recently amended on 23 June 2011
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General Meeting of Shareholders (cont’'d)

Other General Meetings of Shareholders shall bé &eloften as the Management Board or the Supeyviso
Board deems necessary. Shareholders representitige inggregate at least one-tenth of the Company’s
issued capital may request the Management BoatideoBupervisory Board to convene a General Meeting
of Shareholders, stating specifically the issuesealiscussed. Shareholders representing morestanof

the issued share capital may call a shareholdeegting without a preceding request to the managemen
board to call a meeting.

Resolutions shall be passed by an absolute majofithe votes cast, unless the law or the Artiaés
Association prescribe a greater majority. A decishly the General Meeting to amend the Articles of
Association or to dissolve the Company can onlytddeen at the proposal of the Board of Managing
Directors, which has been approved by the Boasugiervisory Directors.

Supervisory Board and Management Board

The Company has a two-tier corporate governaneetste, consisting of a(n) (executive) Management
Board (the ‘Management Board’) and a (non-execytigpervisory Board (the ‘Supervisory Board’). The
day-to-day management and policy-making of the Gomgs vested in the Management Board, under the
supervision of the Supervisory Board. There areetiity three members of the Management Board whose
names are set out below. The Supervisory Boardregps the Management Board and the Company’s
general course of affairs and the business it attsdit also supports the Management Board witlicadin
performing their duties the Supervisory Board membaust act in accordance with the interests of the
Company and the business connected with it.

Supervisory Board and Supervisory Board committees

The Articles of Association of the Company provitiat the Company shall have a Supervisory Board
consisting of at least three and at most nine persd which at least two Supervisory Directors kbal
independent. Supervisory Directors are appointethbyGeneral Meeting of Shareholders for a peribd o
four years. After holding office for the first ped of four years, Supervisory Directors are eligifor re-
election for two additional terms of four years leathe General Meeting of Shareholders shall dstalite
remuneration for each Supervisory Director.

As noted above, in order to secure continuity witthe Board, the Supervisory Board has adopted an
arrangement that provides for a staggered expiratiD individual terms. In order to implement this
arrangement, the reappointment for a four-year t#rone member of the Supervisory Board was scleeldul
prematurely for the Annual General Meetings of 8halders in June 2011, and the next several yaars,
proposal will be offered to reappoint at least @wpervisory Board member to maintain a staggered
expiration of terms.

The Supervisory Board is supported by three coremstt
* the Audit Committee;
« the Selection and Appointment Committee;
* the Remuneration Committee.

These committees are composed of members of ther@sqry Board with relevant experience. All
committees operate under the overall responsibilitthe Supervisory Board, in accordance with thsetb
practice stipulations of the Code.
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Composition of the Supervisory Board

Scott S. Rosenblum (male, 4 October 1949, U.S. ratality)

Scott Rosenblum was appointed as a member of thper@sory Board in 2004 and was elected
Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board in 19 NovemB010 until November 14, 2011 when he was
appointed Chairman of the Supervisory Board. He aygminted Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and the Appointment Committee in November 2006 isnalso a member of the Audit Committee. He is
licensed as a lawyer and admitted to the New Yak Association. For the past twenty years he has he
partner in the law firm of Kramer Levin Naftalis Brankel LLP, New York, and was Managing Partner
between 1994 and 2000. He is currently a diredtdreonco Service Industries, Inc. He is also leghliser

to Israel Theatres Ltd., the indirect shareholdethe Company. His current term as Supervisory @oe
expires in June 2012.

Yair Shilhav (male, 12 October 1958, Israeli natioality)

Yair Shilhav was appointed as a member of the Sugmy Board in November 2006, and is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. Since 2004, Mr Shilhav Ha=en the owner of a business consulting office.
Between 2000 and 2003, he was a member of the tx@alirectory committee of the audit firm, Somekh
Chaikin, a member of KPMG (‘Somekh Chaikin’). Beamel1995 and 2003, he was the head of the Haifa
branch of Somekh Chaikin, of which he was partmemf1990 to 2003. Prior to becoming a partner at
Somekh Chaikin, he was head of the professionaffiandce department of the same firm. He was diso t
head of the accountancy faculty at Haifa Univerbijween 1998 and 2002. His current term as Suguavi
Board Director expires in June 2015.

A. Frank Pierce (male, 4 April 1930, U.S. nationaty)

Frank Pierce was appointed as a member of the @sper Board in 2004 and, as of November 2006, has
been a member of the Remuneration Committee an8edlextion and Appointment Committee. From 1996
to the present time, he has worked as a consyftawviding services related to the international iovot
picture distribution. Between 1954 and 1972, Mrré®eheld various executive positions with Columbia
Pictures International, Paramount Pictures Intéwnat and Cinema International Corporation. FrordZL8
1993, he served as Vice President of Europe for#faBrothers Theatrical Distributions. From 1993 to
1996, he served as Senior Vice President for Eamopéeatrical Distributions, Time Warner Entertagmin

Mr Pierce served as a director in Luna Productitth B UK subsidiary of New Regency Productions, Inc
and from 1 October 2001 until 1 January 2012, ineeskas President of Frank Pierce Partners, Infens
Theatrical Representation. He received his B.A. BhA. from Boston College in the United States. His
current term as Supervisory Director expires ineJ2015.

Caroline M. Twist (female, 25 January 1956, U.K. ngonality)

Caroline Twist was appointed as a member of the&igory Board in 2004 and, as of November 2008, ha
been a member of the Remuneration Committee. Betw8&8 and 1989, Ms Twist worked in the UK
cinema exhibition industry in a variety of manageroles at ABCThorn EMI cinemas and C.I.C. Theatres.
From 1989 until 2011, Ms Twist has held variousi@emanagerial positions within Clarity-Pacer CATS,
software ticketing system provider. She joined BadNCR in 2011, the global technology solutions
provider. Her current term as Supervisory Direebgpires in June 2014.

Peter J. Weishut (male, 31 July 1935, Dutch natiorigy)

Peter Weishut was appointed as a member of ther8sgey Board in 2004 and, as of November 2006, has
been a member of the Selection and Appointmentraittee. Between 1969 and 1997, Mr Weishut worked
as a director in Akzo Nobel in the Netherlands dapbn. From 1997 to 1999, he served as Management
Consultant for Rafino, producer of pet foods, ie Netherlands. Between 1999 and 2001, Mr Weishat wa
the treasurer of a foundation celebrating the 488-yelationship between the Netherlands and Japan.

He is currently advising college students to sethgir own companies. His current term as Superyiso
Director expires in June 2013.
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Management Board

The management of the Company is entrusted to thealjement Board under the supervision of the
Supervisory Board. The Articles of Association pdavthat the Management Board shall consist of dwo
more managing directors. Managing directors areiappd by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The
Management Board shall meet as often as a managdiector requests a meeting. All resolutions by the
Management Board shall be adopted by an absoljtaitgaf the votes cast.

The Management Board as a whole is responsiblthéoday-to-day management, including comprehensive
risk management control, financing and regulatapyngliance. Cinema City International N.V. and its
operating companies (‘the Group’) are organised@lolear functional reporting lines. Throughout the
Group, corporate and operating accountabilitidesrand responsibilities are in place.

Composition of the Management Board

Moshe J. (Mooky) Greidinger (male, 12 December 195%raeli nationality)

Moshe J. (Mooky) Greidinger was appointed Chief dttiwe Officer of the Company in 1984. Mr
Greidinger joined the Company in 1976. Since 19@4has held executive positions with the Compartly wi
substantially the same responsibilities as he ptgsmaintains. Mr Greidinger has also served d#ector

and Deputy Managing Director of Israel Theatres. kidce 1983 and Co-Chairman of the Cinema Owners
Association in Israel since August 1996. He is linether of Israel Greidinger and the son of the lat
Coleman Greidinger. His current term as Managimg®or expires in June 2012.

Amos Weltsch (male, 28 November 1950, Israeli natiality)

Amos Weltsch joined the Company in 1980 at whiametihe was appointed Chief Operating Officer of the
Company. Since that time, Mr Weltsch has held etxezyositions with the Company with substantiahg
same responsibilities as he presently maintainshadealso held various senior management positidiths
Israel Theatres Ltd. and affiliated companies sit®80. From 1974 to 1978, he was a manager at
L Glickman Building Materials, and from 1978 to 98 managing director of Eitan Cement Ltd. His
current term as Managing Director expires in JUBE22

Israel Greidinger (male, 14 April 1961, Israeli natonality)

Israel Greidinger joined the Company in 1994 and appointed Chief Financial Officer of the Compamy
1995. Since that time, he has held executive postiwith the Company with substantially the same
responsibilities as he presently maintains. Mr @ngjer has also served as a director of Israel fiéeétd.
since 1994. From 1985 to 1992, Mr Greidinger sea@Managing Director of C.A.T.S. Ltd. (Computedise
Automatic Ticket Sales), a London company, and fd®82 to 1994, he was President and Chief Executive
Officer of Pacer Cats Inc. He is the brother of Me&reidinger and the son of the late Coleman Grgedl.

His current term as Managing Director expires ineJ2012.
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Explanatory notes by reason of the Decree, Artitl@ of the Takeover Directive

By reason of the Decree of 5 April 2006 to implemarticle 10 of Directive 2004/25/EC of the Europea
Parliament and the Council of the European Unio2loApril 2004 regarding public takeover bids, Qirze
City International N.V. (‘the Company’) can provittee following explanation.

a. Capital structure of the Company

The capital of the Company consists of one classhafes, being ordinary shares with a nominal vafue
EUR 0.01 each. Information on issued shares hasibekided under Note 16 to the Consolidated Fiizdnc
Statements.

b. Restriction on transferring shares or issued dsjiary receipts with the Company’s co-operation
The Articles of Association of the Company contamrestriction with respect to the transfer of slaiThe
Company has no depositary receipts issued witiCtrepany’s co-operation.

c. Duty to report interests in the Company
The Company has been notified regarding sharetolgh a substantial holding in accordance with the
Dutch Act on Financial Supervision (5% or morejhie Company.

Entities with an interest of at least 5% in the @amy’s shares include:

* LT. International Theatres Ltd.

e Aviva Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny Aviva BZ WBK

* Aviva Investors Poland S.A.

* ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A.

< BZ WBK AIB Towarzystwo Funduszy Inwestycyjnych S.A.

d. Special controlling rights
The Company has issued no shares with specialatiomgrrights.

e. Employees’ shares

The Company maintains a long-term incentive plarden which plan option rights to acquire sharethe
Company may be granted to employees of the Compaiig subsidiaries, including the members of the
Management Board. Options may be granted to puechasto a maximum of 930,000 newly issued or
repurchased shares. The Supervisory Board is asghloto determine, with the participation of atsteane
independent member of the Supervisory Board, trecteterms of any stock or stock-based incentive
scheme.

f. Restriction on voting rights and issue of deptsy receipts
No restrictions are currently imposed on votinghtiyattached to issued shares. The Company has no
depositary receipts issued with the Company’s ciatjos.

g. Agreements with shareholders
Currently, the Company is unaware of any sharelha@deeements.
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Explanatory notes by reason of the Decree, Artitl@ of the Takeover Directive (cont’d)

h. Regulations pertaining to the appointment andsdiissal of executive and supervisory directors and
amendments to the Articles of Association
By virtue of articles 15 and 16 of the ArticlesA&dsociation, the General Meeting is authorisedpjooant,
suspend or dismiss members of the Management BBardirtue of articles 23 and 24 of the Articles of
Association, the General Meeting is authorisedppomt, suspend or dismiss members of the Supewiso
Board. The members of the Management Board an&ulpervisory Board may be suspended or dismissed
by the General Meeting at any time. The Supervi®ogrd may recommend persons to be appointed as
member of the Supervisory Board.
By virtue of article 43 of the Articles of Assodmt, the Articles of Association can only be amehdéethe
proposal of the Board of Managing Directors subjectapproval from the Supervisory Board and the
shareholders.

i. The powers of the board

By virtue of article 6 of the Articles of Associati, the Company can only issue shares, subjecptogsal

by the Management Board and approval by the SugwiBoard, pursuant to a resolution approved by th
General Meeting or of any other corporate bodygieged to do so by a resolution of the General Mget
for a fixed period not exceeding five years. Suebighation must be accompanied by a stipulaticio &se
number of shares that may be issued. On 21 Jung, 26& General Meeting authorised the Board of
Managing Directors for a period not exceeding frears to issue new shares with the discretion ttude

or restrict the shareholders’ pre-emption rightoviited that all relevant resolutions of the Boarfd o
Managing Directors regarding issue of shares aradusion or restriction of pre-emption rights wile b
subject to prior approval by the Board of Supemydoirectors.

The Company may acquire its own shares, subjezgrtain legal restrictions, only if the ManagemBoard

has been authorised at the General Meeting to sate acquisitions, which authorisation shall bedver

not more than 18 months and shall specify the nurabshares which may be acquired. On 21 June 2011,
the Management Board has been authorised by ther@dveeting to repurchase and/or alienate existing
shares in the Company with such maximum of shaseallawed by the limitations under the Articles of
Association and at a price not lower than the naimalue and not exceeding 110% of the average=shar
price five days prior to the date of the transactio

Both authorisations will allow the Company to execthe prevailing employee incentive plan and sués
new shares and to repurchase and alienate exsdtargs for general corporate purposes.

j- Important agreements when issuing a public bid

The Company is not aware of any existing agreemdnth is relevant in the context of the issuance of
public bid except for a limitation related to loapsovided by Bank Leumi Israel. According to this
limitation, all bank loans outstanding with Bankuoei will become immediately payable, in case Israel
Theatres’ indirect holding in the Company will beldw 51%.

k. Agreements with executive directors or employethe event of a public bid

The employment contracts of the members of the gament Board do not contain any specific clauses
which refer to a change of control in the Company.
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Risk Profile and Risk Management

Risk profile
Supply and Quality of Movie Product

The Company remains dependent on the diversith@fsupply and on the suppliers of movies. A lack of
diverse motion picture products, failure by theusity to adequately promote their movies, or therpo
quality of the motion pictures would have a negateffect on film attendance. The Company seeks to
reduce this risk by, among other things, estabighonger-term relationships with the major indegemt
movie studios, and by exhibiting a broad varietynmivies in its theatres.

Competitive Environment

While the multiplex screen density in the Companyarkets of operation in Central Europe in comueris
to Western Europe remains relatively low and while precisely the Company’s strategy to build ewd
multiplexes to service these under-screened markets low density could also be equally inviting t
competitors who desire to compete in a market vatatively low barriers of entry. The Company’'saségy

has always been to gain a ‘first mover advantagésiterritories by rapidly and efficiently devplog state-
of-the-art multi-screen complexes in strategicadljlected locations. As the Company recognises that
consumers tend not to be brand conscious whendkegt their movie theatres, that puts a premium on
location, the quality of the theatre and the diigrsf the movie offering, all of which the Company
endeavours to deliver better than its competitibven as the movie theatre environment maturesdn th
Company’s territories of operation, the Company lsélieves that there are ample growth and devetyp
opportunities.

Movie Alternatives

The Company also competes with other movie andovitidivery technologies, including cable television
the internet, in-home video and DVD, satellite gag-per-view services. Traditionally, when motiaatpre
distributors licensed their products in each locerket, they refrained from or delayed licensingirth
motion pictures to these other delivery vehiclesimdpthe theatrical release window. We believe that
material contraction of the way people prefer te svies, or in the current theatrical release waind
could significantly dilute the consumer appealtdd in-theatre motion picture offering, which coblave a
material effect on the Company’s business and tesfiloperations. The movie exhibition industryrighe
process of converting to digital 3D technology, @hd Company in its markets is in the forefrontluf
technological revolution. We believe such revolatémd the display of 3D movies can increase thealpyf
movie theatres, and give them a new edge in thmipetition with the alternative choices listed adjov
particularly since we believe a mass home 3D mawiehot materialise in the near future.

Reliance on Leases

The Company does not own the theatres it curramtérates; they are all subject to leases. Accolgitige
Company is subject to the risk of failing to satig lease obligations or to renew its leasesammercially
reasonable terms. This risk is somewhat mitigagethb multiple number of long-term leases the Camgpa
maintains, which typically contain commercially itable renewal provisions. Moreover, the Company
continues to have strong relationships with the enanof its leased properties. Assuming no material
changes in the relevant legislation relating to @empany’s leased properties (such as tenancy and
competition laws), the Company believes that tleksriassociated with leasing rather than owning its
multiplex properties is manageable.

Currency Risks

While the Company realises income in local curresicit also incurs most of its costs in local cocies as
well. However, some of the Company’s long-term ésaare denominated either in US dollars or in euros
and the Company reports its results overall in ®UAg a result, the Company can be negatively iteglay
devaluation of the local currencies against the eurd the US dollar. In order to reduce this imptot
Company has entered into currency hedge contragisotect its currency exposure. In addition, beeahe
Company reports its financial results in euros hewith the benefit of the currency hedges, the Camyis

11



Cinema City International N.V.

Risk Profile and Risk Management

absolute numbers may be impacted by a significanbldation. For example, the Company’s revenues
reported in euros may decrease as and when the @&wyspmajor local functional currencies, such as th
Polish zloty, are devalued against the euro.

The Economy

There can be no assurance that the Company wilbeamaterially adversely impacted if, among other
potential negative trends, the European debt amd efisis leads to &ontagion’ into adjacent regions.
Continued softness in consumer spending, couldtresan ongoing weakness in ‘mall traffic’, whidtas
historically supported theatre admissions. In aoldjt if consumers have less disposable income,
discretionary entertainment choices, such as mygwieg, could be adversely impacted. Even if mowang
itself is not materially adversely impacted, mogigers could determine to spend less money for fowt
drinks at the Company’s high-margin concessiondstaMoreover, advertisers could decrease theirfise
the Company’s expanding theatre and screen adwertiservices. Management has noted, however,
throughout years of economic distress, movie gaifign increases. Consumers typically desire to gpen
their smaller pools of discretionary funds on ligklyy inexpensive forms of ‘escapist’ entertainmsuath as
movie going. The Company has seen strong admissiends through the date of this report and coesnu
to see no evidence of any downturn in theatressisisulting from external economic factors.

Interest rate risk

Interest expenses and, therefore, the Companyidtsesre affected by movements in interest ratée T
Company did not enter into any interest rate swayracts to limit the effect of interest rate mowsts on
the result.

Risk management

As part of its risk management measures, the Coynpas insurance policies for the most common risks
associated with its activities, such as loss ofifsdire and third-party liability. In the Compgis opinion,

the insurance policies offer adequate coverageéhmifinancial consequences if such risks shouldifestn
themselves, in order to limit their impact on theuit.

A number of balance sheet items in the financiateshents of the Company are based on management
estimates and assumptions relating to future ®sifilthe actual results differ from the expectedults, it

may have a significant influence on the valuatidnitems such as deferred tax assets and liabilities
investment properties and provisions for claimany.

Various organisational measures and procedures heet implemented in order to improve the qualfty o
operations and incorporate the correct checks amdnbes into the activities including approvals,
authorisations, reviewing investment decisionssmdn. In implementing the best-practice provisiohthe
Dutch and Polish corporate governance codes, tmp@oy introduced an internal risk management and
control system tailored to the Company and, over yhars, amended this from time-to-time to reflect
organisational changes. This system was desigh¢al ifnanage the operational risks identified inheacea

of activity, (ii) to identify financial risks promly and (iii) to ensure the quality of financialp@ting. The
system was incorporated into the Company’s operainecesses. During 2011, the proper operatiohef t
internal risk management and control system has bemitored, among others by the Company’s internal
auditor. The evaluation was discussed with the negmbf the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Boar
Lastly, the Company has a whistle blowing procednrglace to allow reporting of any suspected gaher
operational or financial irregularities.

The Company’s Management Board believes that iistieg risk management measures are sufficient to
provide a reasonable degree of certainty as talisence of material inaccuracies in the finanepbrting,
losses and fraud.

For a description of the Company’'s financial riskkmagement and the Company’s policies regarding
financial instruments reference is made to Notef3he Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Remuneration Report

Introduction

The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholdeisl lon 24 November 2006, upon recommendation of
the Supervisory Board, approved the Company’s remation policy which sets forth the terms of
remuneration of the members of the Management Bddre same General Meeting approved a long-term
incentive plan for members of the Management Baard other key personnel of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The remuneration for the SupervisBgard was also adopted at the same General
Shareholders’ Meeting.

Remuneration Policy

The objective of the Company’s remuneration polgyo provide a compensation programme that allows
the Company to attract, retain and motivate qualifpeople who have the character traits, skills and
background to successfully lead and manage the @wyn@dhe remuneration policy is designed to reward
members of the Management Board and other key meesdor their contribution to the success of the
Company.

Governance

The General Meeting of Shareholders approves pbas of the remuneration policy for the Management
Board. The General Meeting of Shareholders furtleermines the remuneration of the Supervisory &oar
Compensation of both the Supervisory Board and Mement Board is reviewed regularly. The
Supervisory Board has a dedicated Remuneration Qibeem

Remuneration of the Management Board

Employment contracts

The three members of the Company’s Management Baare employment contracts that are automatically
renewed at the end of each year for another twalopths unless prior notice of termination is giv®n
either party. The employment contracts also incladeon-compete clause that requires each Managing
Director to refrain from any activity that is contipge to the Company’s activity for a period of dive
months after termination of employment. The Managi@nBoard members are paid a monthly base salary
indexed to the Israeli consumer price index andh&ur participate in a bonus pool equal to 7% of the
Company’s pre-tax profit before the bonus whicpa& out on an annual basis.

As the bonus pool equals 7% of the Company’s preptafit (before the bonus) the relative significarof
the variable component in the total remuneratiorthie Management Board members can vary from year t
year depending on the achieved pre-tax profit.

In addition, under the terms of the employment @wmis, the members of the Management Board are
entitled to the use of a car, contribution to aesamce fund, contribution to a statutory providimid, a

EUR 175 per diem payment for business travel dagsraimbursement of reasonable business expenses,
including payment of reasonable telephone bille fembers of the Management Board are not entitled
any benefits on termination of their employment eptcfor a severance payment. For Messrs Moshe
Greidinger and Israel Greidinger, the severancengay is equal to their monthly base salaries atithe of
termination, multiplied by the number of years ofidoyment by the Company. For Mr Weltsch, the
severance payment is equal to the greater ofhéagtatutory amount accumulated in his policy antder
severance pay and (b) his monthly base salaryedirtie of termination, multiplied by the numberyafars

of his employment by the Company.
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The Supervisory Board is of the opinion that therent remuneration structure including the variable
components thereof is appropriate for the Companyt aligns the interests of the shareholders &ed t
interest of the Management Board and incentivisemagement to focus on realising the Company’s
strategy and its longer term success. The SupeyvBoard reviews the remuneration on a year by year
basis.

Long-term incentive plan

Towards the end of 2006, a new long-term incergia@ (the ‘Plan’) was implemented. The personslaég

for participation in the Plan are the employeeghaf Group, including the members of the Management
Board. Under the Plan, options, rights to acquias in the Company and cash bonuses may be djtante
the participants.

Under the Plan, options may be granted to purchasdy issued or repurchased shares. The Supervisory
Board is authorised to determine, with the paréitgn of at least one independent member of the
Supervisory Board, the exact terms of any stocktock-based incentive scheme. The actual grarttares
options is disclosed in the Notes to the Consatiddtinancial Statements.

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board
Each Supervisory Board member receives an annualmeration of EUR 12,500 and EUR 1,500 per
attendance at meetings or EUR 750 if attendaniog felephone.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is entitledato additional EUR 5,000 per year and the chairnfan o
the other committees is entitled to an additiodRE2,500 per year.
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Directors’ Report

General
Introduction

Cinema City International N.V. (the ‘Company’ orif@ma City’), incorporated in the Netherlands, is
a subsidiary of I.T. International Theatres LtdT(T’" or ‘parent company’). The Company (and

together with its subsidiaries, the ‘Group’), isngipally engaged in the operation of entertainment
activities in various countries including: Polarijngary, the Czech Republic, Slovakia, Bulgaria,
Romania and Israel. The Company, through relatddiesy has been a family operated theatre
business since 1929. The Company shares are toadénd Warsaw Stock Exchange. As at 13 March
2012, the market price was PLN 33.31 (EUR 8.12) gleare, giving the Company a market
capitalisation of EUR 415.9 million. The Compangféice is located in Rotterdam, the Netherlands.

Company overview

Cinema City is the largest cinema operator in Ggrand Eastern Europe as well as in Israel and the
third largest cinema operator in all of Europe. TT@mpany operates 96 multiplexes with a total of
906 screens in 7 countries: Poland, Israel, Hungiémy Czech Republic, Romania, Bulgaria and
Slovakia. In the CEE countries the Company opereitesmas under the Cinema City brand and in
Israel under the Yes Planet and Rav-Chen brandsatiiéhoperations are the Company’s core business
comprising selling tickets, snacks and beveragesmtession stands as well as of cinema advertising
run under its brand name New Age Media. The Com@dsy maintains an exclusive arrangement
with IMAX ® Corporation to develop IMAX theatres in Poland, the Czech Republic, Hungary,
Bulgaria, Romania as well as in Israel, wherednplto open its first IMAR screen in the first half of
2012. The Company is one of the fastest growingerom chains with plans to open 33 new
multiplexes (approximately 350 screens) underpinmigd binding lease agreements.

The Company is also running film distribution thgbuits local subsidiary companies branded Forum
Film in all countries. Forum Film is acting as #veclusive motion picture distributor for Walt Digne
Company and MGM studio in all its countries of a@m. In Israel, via its sub-distributor
relationship with A.D. Matalon, the Company alsetdbutes films for Sony and Fox studios and in
Bulgaria Forum Film is an exclusive film distributior Paramount and Universal studios.

Cinema City maintains a small-scale cinema-relatatiestate presence in selected countries.

Business strategy

The Company’s strategic objectives are to enhatx@adsition as a leading operator of multiplex
cinemas in Central Europe and Israel through castinexpansion in Poland, Hungary, the Czech
Republic, Bulgaria, Romania and, most recentlyv&{a, to consider growth opportunities in new
geographies in Europe when they present themsahats strengthen its position as a leading motion
picture exhibitor in Israel. The Company plans tmtinue to design and operate multiplex theatres,
with cutting edge technologies, such as the iradtalt of the digital and 3D exhibition technologies
and which it otherwise believes will promote in@ea attendance and maximise space and operating
efficiencies through improved utilisation of theatrapacity and reduced labour costs. In conjunction
with its movie exhibition business, the Companyaiso active in other movie related activities,
including screen advertising and film distributidine Company plans to continue developing its film
related activities, mainly in Central Europe, amtlidves these operations will continue to play v ke
role in achieving the Company'’s objectives.
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Economy and business developments during 2011
Economic environment

Central and Eastern Europe have undergone a massivemic transformation over the past 20 plus
years which has brought about rapid modernisatioon,improvement in living standards and a
significant increase in disposable income per eadihis process has generally been accelerated for
those countries that have gained full membershgptire European Union.

Recently, the region appears to be emerging fromerg difficult time characterised by economic
downturns in most of the EU countries, a steep droghe regions’ real estate markets and a
significant devaluation of the regional currenciBsiring this recessionary period, the Company is
more actively monitoring its pricing policy, howevso far, it did not see any negative impact on its
theatre admissions as a consequence of the ecoramionment.

Nonetheless, the economic upheaval over the paest tfears followed by the more recent euro crisis
has proven to be challenging in connection with agamg foreign exchange risk as the past years
revealed unusual volatility in currency exchangesaFor the most part, this is not a significant
concern for the overall financial health of the @amy, because while it realises income in local
currencies, it also incurs most of its costs iralaurrencies. However, some of the Company’s long-
term leases are denominated either in US dollar& @uros and the Company reports its results
overall in euros. During 2011, the Company enténtmia number of currency hedge contracts against
the Polish zloty and Hungarian forint to protea tturrency risk affiliated with these payments lunti
May 2012.

The Company continues to believe that in the lamg economically and demographically, Central
and Eastern Europe will continue to be very favbleaegions for future development, as these
regions move ahead in closing the economic gap Weilstern Europe.

Cinema market

The Company believes that the movie exhibition raavkll continue to grow in Central and Eastern
Europe for a number of reasons. First, throughloese territories, there continues to be a low suppl
of quality cinemas compared to Western Europeamtc@s. The multiplex screen density in the
Company’s markets of operation in Poland, Hungtimy,Czech Republic and Slovakia in comparison
to Western Europe remains relatively low, while theltiplex penetration in Romania and Bulgaria
compared to Western Europe remains particularly ®acond, per capita income has grown rapidly
in these regions over the past decade, and, tlogiulation continues to have significantly more
disposable income as compared with a few yearsTagaod, over the past decade, Central Europe has
begun to develop a ‘movie going’ culture that haerb reflected in increasing multiplex per head
admissions. Fourth, movies are a relatively inezpen form of outside entertainment, and the
Company has found through the years that econoavimtilirns have tended to have a relatively small
impact on movie going habits, and indeed, in soases has resulted in increased movie admissions.
As a result, the Company remains overall ‘bulligh’its approach to developing theatres in its
countries of operation.
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Competitive environment

Poland

Cinema City remains the clear leader in the Patislvie exhibition market. As of 31 December 2011,
the Company operated 339 screens (including 5 IMANKeatres) in 31 cinemas, and had an
approximately 40% market share in terms of totahber of admissions in Poland in 2011. In the
Polish market, the Company now has two main cortgeeti Multikino (206 screens in 24 theatres)
and Helios (146 screens in 27 theatres).

Apart from being the market leader in the movieileion industry in Poland, Cinema City owns and
operates the leading cinema advertising sales hdlmg Age Media, and is one of the major film
distributors through its Forum Film Poland subsigidorum Film Poland is the exclusive distributor
of Buena Vista International, a subsidiary of Digrdistributing movies of Disney and Touchstone. In
addition, Forum Film Poland distributes films frddpyglass, MGM and several other independent
producers and domestic film studios.

Hungary

Following the acquisition of Palace Cinemas Hungaryanuary 2011, Cinema City became the
largest exhibitor in Hungary in number of screetigé(screens including one IMAXheatre). During
2011, the Company added four prime location mdkps in Budapest with a total of 47 screens.
During the year, the Company closed 3 screens igned new lease agreements for and started the
operation of three multiplexes previously run byaa Mozi in Hungary, with a total of 17 screens.
Cinema City has an approximately 70% market shraterms of number of tickets sold in Hungary.

The main competitors in Hungary are Budapest Fillé gcreens)Magyar Mozilizemeltét Kft
(10 screens), Maximozi Kft (6 screens), Obudai Meemelted Kft (7 screens) and Tatabanyai
Mozilizemelted Kft (4 screens).

Following the Palace acquisition in 2011, the Comypalso has provided selected management
services, for the Palace Mozi operated by Palace Mih, a Hungarian subsidiary of Palace Cinemas
that was not acquired by the Company. The agreewanterminated toward the end of 2011.

Apart from being the market leader in the movieileition industry in Hungary, Cinema City owns
and operates a leading cinema advertising salesehdlew Age Media, and is a major film distributor
through its Forum Film Hungary subsidiary. ForunimFiHungary is the exclusive distributor of
Buena Vista International, distributing movies ofiiley and Touchstone. In addition, Forum Film
Hungary distributes films from Spyglass, MGM angesal other independent producers.

The Czech Republic

Cinema City is one of the largest cinema operaitorthe Czech Republic with a relatively strong
presence in Prague. As of 31 December 2011, thep@aynoperates 111 screefiscluding one

IMAX © theatre), following the acquisition of Palace @iaés Czech operations, Cinema City added
8 multiplexes with 65 screens. The Company haspgmoaimately 36% market share in terms of
number of admissions. The Company’s main compeatttne Czech market is Cinestar (83 screens).

Apart from being the market leader in the movieileition industry in the Czech Republic, Cinema
City owns and operates a leading cinema advertsatgs houséduring 2011the Company launched
a film distribution company in the Czech Repubkgrum Film Czech s.r.o. The activity of this
distribution company started in January 2012.
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Slovakia

In January 2011, Cinema City acquired from Palaoe@as 3 multiplexes with 29 screens all located
in Bratislava. The Company intends to develop @$vay in this new market. With this acquisition,
the Company’s market share, measured by the nuofbadmissions, is approximately 35%. The
Company’s main competitor in the Slovakian marleeCineMax (37 screens). In addition, Cinema
City owns and operates a leading cinema advertisahes house.

In May 2011, the Company launched its film disitibn operations in Slovakia, Forum Film
Slovakia.

Bulgaria

The Company currently operates 4 modern multipléxdédulgaria located in the Mall of Sofia, Mall
of Plovdiv, Galleria Mall Stara Zagora and Mall Reswith a total of 40 screens and one IMAX
theatre.

The Company’s main competitor in the Bulgarian reark Arena Cinemas (72 screens).

The Company has signed contracts for a number aifiadal multiplexes, which it plans to open in
the coming two years. In addition, the Companyfilasdistribution and screen advertising activities
in Bulgaria. Forum Film Bulgaria is the exclusivistdbutor of Disney, MGM and UIP (Paramount
and Universal) movies in the country.

Romania

Cinema City is the largest operator of multipleratres in Romania. The Company currently runs
12 modern multiplexes in 10 cities with a totalesar count of 114. Three of these multiplexes were
opened in 2010 and another three in 2011. The Coynlpas entered into additional lease agreements,
which can result in the opening of approximatelyadditional 230 screens in Romania in the coming
years.

Romania is the largest underdeveloped movie theatrkket in Central Europe. With one of the
lowest admissions per capita rates in all of Eurdpe Company believes that Romania, with over
22 million people, presents a very compelling opyoaty for the Company.

Lack of investment in cinemas through the yearstded dramatic decrease in the number of cinema
screens. Old cinemas were closed down and admsssiecreased dramatically. Outside of Cinema
City’'s recently opened theatres in Romania, thenttgicurrently has very few multiplexes. A number
of the multiplexes in Romania are owned by privaepanies. In addition, there are approximately
45 single screen cinemas in Romania, most of wihéste remained state-owned.

Apart from being the market leader in the movieikition industry in Romania, Cinema City owns
and operates a cinema advertising sales house Agewledia, and has commenced film distribution
activities through its Forum Film Romania subsigiaForum Film Romania is the exclusive
distributor of Buena Vista International, distrilmg movies of Disney and Touchstone. In addition,
Forum Film Romania distributes films from SpygldgisM and several other independent producers.
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Israel

The Company operates in Israel under the brand raniRav-Chen’ and ‘Yes Planet’ (the brand
name ‘Cinema City’ was previously reserved in Iklaea competitor). The Israeli movie exhibition
market is dominated by three cinema operators.fAldecember 2011, the Company operated 96
screens in 13 cinemas, and had an approximatelyr82fket share in terms of number of admissions
in Israel during 2011.

In the Israeli market, the Company now has two nsampetitors — Globus (83 screens in 11 theatres)
and Cinema City (a brand registered in Israel bgrapetitor with 57 screens in 4 theatres).

The Company continues to modernise and upgradsriteli chain, and strengthen its position in the
Israeli market, through the closing of its small@stl oldest multiplexes whilst opening modern state
of-the-art larger multiplex theatrel mid-2012, the Company’s plans to open its thiles Planet
Megaplex in Israel, south of Tel Aviv, in Rishontkien, which will become the Company'’s flagship
operation in the country with 25 screens and they@my’s first IMAX® screen in the country.

The Company is also a major film distributor, thybuts Forum Film Israel subsidiary. Forum Film
Israel is the exclusive film distributor of DisneylGM and several other independent studios. In
September 2010, Forum Film Israel closed an agmeemith the Israeli film distributor, A.D.
Matalon, under which Forum Film Israel will actagh-distributor for Sony and Fox movies in Israel
The Company’s main competitor in the distributionsimess is Globus which, through its own
distribution channel, acts as a distributor for Wearand UIP.

The Company is also actively involved in pursuing growing screen advertising market in Israel.
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Business highlights during 2011

The Company turned in a steady financial performane for the year ended 31 December
2011 generating revenues of EUR 267.5 million, consaéd EBITDA (Earnings Before
Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisatioo) EUR 53.4 million (excluding
acquisition-related and reorganisation expenses) gt income of EUR 24.2 million
(excluding acquisition-related and reorganisatinpesses). Including acquisition-related and
reorganisation expenses, the EBITDA and net inctim¢he year ended 31 December 2011
amounted to EUR 50.1 million and EUR 20.9 millioespectively.

In the year ended 31 December 2011 EBITDA from thdee operations (excluding
acquisition-related and reorganisation expenses) deeased to EUR 50.8 million
compared to EUR 53.2 million in the year ended 31 &ember 2010 (-4.6%). The
number of tickets sold increased to 35.5 million aopared to 30.5 million in the year
2010 (+16.2% with the number of admissions on a same theaistslwecreasing by 8.7%
from 30.5 million for year ended 31 December 20t0,27.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2011. The increase in the number &étScsold in the year 2011 is driven
mainly by the acquired Palace Cinemas multiple¥é® decrease in the number of tickets
sold on a like-for-like basis is attributed maitdythe unprecedented strong admissions in the
first quarter of 2010, wheftivatarandAlice in Wonderlanadlominated the screens.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, EBITDA from theatre operations (excluding acquisition-
related and reorganisation expenses) increased tdJR 14.2 million compared to EUR
12.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2010 (+17.4%) The number of tickets sold in the
fourth quarter increased to 9.4 million compared to7.4 million in the fourth quarter of
2010 (+27.7% with the number of admissions on a same theasiskincreasing by 1.4%
from 7.4 million for the three months ended 31 Delser 2010 to 7.5 million for the three
months ended 31 December 2011. The increase inuhwer of tickets sold in the fourth
quarter is mainly driven by the acquired Palacee@ias multiplexes and by the positive
reception of a number of Polish domestic movies.

Acquisition of Palace Cinemas. In January 2011, th&€ompany purchased the Palace
Cinemas chain, comprising 141 screens in 15 multgtes in Hungary, Czech Republic
and Slovakia. The purchase price for the transactio was EUR 28 million.

New openings, closings and signing of subsequertge agreementdn 2011, the Company
opened 4 new cinemas with a total of 34 screerth, 3vhew cinemas in Romania: in Braila
(10 screens), Arad (8 screens) and Turgu Muresrgens), and 1 new cinema in Poland: in
Torun (8 screens). In May 2011, the Company sidease agreements and started operating 3
multiplexes operated previously by Palace Mozi imglary with a total of 17 screens. During
the year, 5 screens were closed in Israel as pahiecon-going process of repositioning the
Company’s chain in this market, whereas 3 screems wlosed in Hungary. Furthermore, the
Company signed three lease agreements for futufdptenes in: Lublin, Poland, Sofia,
Bulgaria and in Ploiesti, Romania.

Cinema City reorganised its Polish operationswhich were regrouped within a closed
investment fund registered in Cyprus. The reorgditis in Poland is expected to bring
organisational benefits and to enable tax optinieatwvhen managing the operational
companies starting from the fourth quarter of 2011.

The Company’s total screen count as at 31 Decemb@011 is 906 in 96 multiplexes
(including 9 IMAX ® theatres).
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= Digitalisation program nearly completed. The Company has deployed to date almost 800
digital projectors which now represent approximately 90% of all of t@B®mpany’s
projectors. The Company plans to have all of it®eas digitalised by the end of the first
quarter of 2012.

= Film distribution business performed positively with growing revenue and EBITDA
The Company has also established Forum Film Slayakhich commenced operations in
May 2011.

Theatre operations

The total number of tickets sold for the year en@ddDecember 2011 increased by 16.2% to
35.5 million compared to the same period in 2010d(dy 27.7% in the fourth quarter of 2011
compared to fourth quarter of 2010) while sameitieeadmissions decreased by 8.7% in the year
ended 31 December 2011 compared to the same peri@dl10 (with same-theatre admissions
increasing in the fourth quarter of 2011 by 1.4%npared to the fourth quarter of 2010). Theatre
operations revenue reached EUR 243.8 million dugifigl versus EUR 215.5 million recorded in
2010, representing a 13.1% year over year increlise.increase was due primarily to the new
cinemas added to the chain, especially followirggRlalace Cinemas acquisition in January 2011, but
also from the new cinemas opened during 2010 afhd.20

The Company’s theatre performance in 2011 has todveed in the context of the tremendous growth
that took place in 2010, driven in large part by thnprecedented successAofitar. 2011 offered a
more modest selection of international titles, uidithg a number of sequel films includir@jrates of

the Caribbean 4the last instalment dflarry Potter, Hangover 2 Twilight Saga 3andCars 2 which,
while generally successful, attracted smaller anmés compared to 2010. The drop in performance of
international titles was only partially counteregdthe very successful domestic production in Poland
of a number of titles includingisty do M(2.2 million admissions in 2011Q)ch Karil'2 (1.7 million
admissions)Bitwa Warszawska 3[QL.5 million admissions) and a number of well isglimid-range
titles.

Palace acquisition and following cinema additions

In January 2011, the Company purchased the Palawem@s chain, comprising 141 screens in
15 multiplexes in Hungary, the Czech Republic atav&kia. The multiplexes were grouped into 4
entities: Palace Cinemas Czech s.r.o. operatingll8piexes with 65 screens in the Czech Republic;
Palace Cinemas Hungary Kft, operating 4 multiplexéh 47 screens in Hungary; Palace Multikino
s.r.o. and Palace Cinemas Slovak Republic s.iperating 3 multiplexes with 29 screens in Slovakia.
The purchase price for the transaction was EUR &8lllon. The purchase price was based on a
multiple of 6 times 'normalised’ EBITDA of the adged companies during 2010. The EUR 28.0
million purchase price was made up of EUR 21.4iarillto the seller in cash and the Company’s
assumption of EUR 6.6 million in existing debt dfetacquired companies. The acquisition was
financed from the Company'’s existing cash and femailable credit lines.

Under the original purchase agreement, the Comgahyot acquire Palace Mozi, Kft, a Hungarian
company that was owned by Palace Cinemas (CenwabpE) B.V. Palace Mozi operated 5
multiplexes in Budapest and 3 multiplexes outsideBadapest. In conjunction with the Palace
acquisition, the Company agreed to provide selectethagement services to the Palace Mozi
cinemas.

In May 2011, however, the landlord at three of bMhezi multiplexes terminated the lease agreement
with Palace Mozi and, in mutual settlement of anding amounts owed by Palace Mozi, assumed
control of the assets of these multiplexes. Upd&intacontrol, the landlord immediately leased the

space occupied by these three multiplexes to tmep@ay, which is now operating these theatres.
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This acquisition and acquisition-related lease agents have significantly strengthened the
Company’s position in the Hungarian and Czech ntarkexd added Slovakia to the Company’s
countries of operation.

Following the closing of the acquisition, the Compammediately instituted a restructuring program
in order to recognise cost savings and overhea@rgigs, and to integrate the Palace Cinemas
organisation with Cinema City’s. These cost savingse implemented at Palace Cinemas in large
part in order to bring the operations of the Pal@memas chain in line with the structure of the
Company’s existing operations. Benefits resultimgT this restructuring are already being realised.

Under recently adopted International Financial Repg Standards (IFRS), companies are no longer
permitted to capitalise the one-time transactioml @ome reorganisation costs associated with
acquisitions. As a result, the Company is requieihclude such costs in the amount of EUR 3.3

million as part of its current expenses. Such costgrred had a material impact on the Company’s

EBITDA and net income for year ended 31 Decembdid 2t order to show a clearer comparison of

the annual results without the disproportionatedotpof these one-time expenses, the Overview of
Results for the year ended 31 December 2011 on Page presented in two separate columns: one
column showing the results excluding the acquisitelated and reorganisation expenses, and the
other column showing the results including acqigisitelated and reorganisation expenses.

New openings, closing and signing of subsequestlagreements

In 2011, the Company opened 4 new cinemas withah ¢d 34 screens: 3 new cinemas in Romania,
notably in Braila (10 screens), Arad (8 screeng) @argu Mures (8 screens) and 1 new cinema in
Torun, Poland (8 screens). In May 2011, the Comzgyed lease agreements and started operating
3 multiplexes operated previously by Palace MozHimgary with a total of 17 screens. During the
year 2011, 5 screens were closed in Israel as gfathe on-going process of repositioning the
Company’s chain in this market, whereas 3 screeeee velosed in Hungary. Furthermore, the
Company signed three lease agreements for fututigpfexes: in Lublin, Poland, in Sofia, Bulgaria
and in Ploiesti, Romania.

Digital Projection

Digital projection represents the most importamht®logical advance in movie viewing since the
1950s, by providing a higher quality and a shamesolution viewing experience than traditional
projectors, and through the ability to display avngeneration of 3D movies in a large scale. The
Company believes that digital technology will béndfe Company on both the revenue and cost side
including:

1. offering an enhanced user experience that fa@btptemium priced ticketing

2. generating higher attendance through 3D films dtedrative content (such as operas, ballet,
sporting and other events drawing worldwide attenti

3. reducing cinema labour costs as digital project@guire less ongoing manpower than
traditional reel-to-reel projectors;

providing a more effective content programming psxxin the entire cinema chain;

encouraging a higher potential for cinema advewgistlientele, including those with more
modest budgets.

The Company has already digitalised almost 800jeprars representing approximately 90% of all
Cinema City auditoriums. Also, all IMAX theatres operated by Cinema City have offeredaligi
projection since 2010. The Company intends to iBeathe digitalisation process by the end of thst fi
quarter, 2012.

In the first quarter of 2011, the Company signecigreement with Master Image, one of the leading
international providers of 3D digital movie solut® to supply 3D systems integrated with single-use
glasses. Using the single-user glasses should #fleveustomer to own their 3D glasses, and should
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also help the Company to optimise the operatioroaasted with showing 3D movies in the
Company’s theatre circuit.

While the Company has borne all the costs to desedated with installing digital projectors, the
movie studios have also been beneficiaries oftdtknological upgrade as they are now able to save
significant costs associated with producing andvdghg traditional film. To compensate the
Company for the benefits realised by the studiws,Gompany has agreed on a set of rules for virtual
print fee agreements with all its major film suppé (except one). Under these agreements the film
studios will pay the Company a fee for each ’digitant’ used in the Company’s multiplexes in the
coming years. This fee, in essence, will allow @wnpany to recoup over time a portion of the costs
incurred in installing digital projectors throughdts chain. The Company has been benefiting from
these virtual print fee agreements in 2011.

Sale of real estate

Following the Company’s sale of its Bulgarian reatate activities to Israel Theatres Ltd. in April
2010, the Company ceased to be active in realeestahsactions. Accordingly, other activities
including real estate operations did not materiatytribute to the Company’s results for the year
2011 which compares to a gross profit amountingWR 3.0 million from the Bulgarian real estate
sale during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Under the Company’s April 2010 agreement to seall Bulgarian real estate activities to Israel
Theatres Ltd., Israel Theatres paid the Company EBR million at the closing and agreed to pay a
further EUR 15 million by no later than October 200n 23 October 2011 the Company signed a
deferred payment agreement with Israel Theatre$ Bstate Holding B.V. and Pan-Europe Finance
B.V., both subsidiaries of Israel Theatres Ltde(f#Buyers’) according to which the pending payment
to the Company of the remaining EUR 15 million loé {purchase price for assets related to the above
mentioned Bulgarian real estate activities was rdefe while the period during which the Company
will be entitled to a percentage of any potentiaing to be realised by the Buyers has also been
extended from the end of 2014 until 31 DecembeB201

The Buyers have requested the Company to defgratymment of the remaining EUR 15 million in the
light of the deterioration of the real estate marke Bulgaria resulting in cancellation and/or
renegotiation of lease agreements with tenantsiratide necessity of re-leasing the space on much
less favourable conditions with significantly reddaents. The Company and the Buyers have agreed
to the following new terms:

1. EUR 5 million will be repaid to the Company no latkan 22 October 2013, EUR 5 million
will be repaid no later than 22 October 2014 andREBJmillion will be repaid no later than 22
October 2015;

2. Early repayment is possible without prepayment pgendhe unpaid amounts will bear
interest payable annually as follows: 5% for thstfyear, 6% for the second year and 7% for
the following two years, but, in each case, cammobunt to less than the Company’s average
external borrowing cost plus a margin of 1%;

3. Between the second anniversary to the extendeddoaritil 31 December 2018, the Buyers
are required to pay to the Company 25% of any geatised if and when the Bulgarian real
estate assets are sold to a third party;

4. The Buyers have waived any claims against the Cagnjpaconnection with the purchase and
sale of the Bulgarian real estate in 2010.

Since Israel Theatres Ltd. indirectly also conttbis majority of the shares in the Company, the new
payment agreement was treated as a 'related-padmysdction’. Consequently, independent
Supervisory Board members, together with the Cowyiparudit Committee, considered and
approved the execution of the new agreement.
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Film distribution activities

Revenue generated in the year ended 31 Decembédr [30the Company’s distribution division
increased by 28.1% to EUR 21.8 million from EURQL#illion for the same period last year. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in theldlision activities in Israel supported by the newe
generated as a result of the agreement signedoter8ber 2010 with the Israeli film distributors A.D
Matalon, which materially increased the number ibhd distributed by the Company in Israel.
Reassessment of revenue recognition estimatesngelat sales to TV networks in Israel, has also
contributed to the increased revenue during the gaded 31 December 2011. The increase in the
Company's film distribution activities in PolandulBaria and Romania also contributed to the
increase of the film distribution revenues. The@ase was partly offset by a weaker supply of n®vie
for which the Company had distribution rights inrigary during the year ended 31 December 2011
compared to the year ended 31 December 2010.

In May 2011, the Company launched the film disttidou operations of Forum Film Slovakia, which
became the sixth country, where Cinema City actsfdm distributor.

During 2011, the Company made arrangements forva fiten distribution company in the Czech
Republic, under the brand name Forum Film. Theviies of this company commenced in January
2012.

The Company has entered into a new distributiomergent with other Hollywood studios, MGM.

The deal covers the distribution of MGM movies ioldhd, Hungary, Romania, Bulgaria and Israel
and includes both theatrical and DVD/Blu-ray Didghts. In certain cases, the Company will
distribute MGM movies also in the Czech Republid &bovakia. The cooperation will start with the
distribution of the 'Bond 23- Sky fall’ movie in ¢hthird quarter of 2012 and will be followed by the
first ‘Hobbit’ film.
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Overview of results

The Company’s net income attributable to equitydea of the parent company for the year ended
31 December 2011 was EUR 20,925,000 and can be atsaeth as shown below. For comparison
purposes, net results for the year ended 31 Decer@d&l excluding acquisition-related and

reorganisation expenses are also presented. Ciredatad revenues contain theatre operations, film

distribution and cinema-related real estate aait

Continuing operations
Revenues from cinema-related operations
Costs from cinema-related operations

Gross result from cinema-related operations

Revenues from the sale of real estate
Cost of real estate sold

Gross result from sale of real estate

Total gross result

General and administrative expenses
Acquisition-related and reorganisation expenses

EBITDA"

Depreciation and amortisation
Operating profit

Financial income
Financial expenses
Loss on disposals and write-off of other investraent

Operating income before taxation

Income tax benefit/(expense)

Net income from continuing operations
Gain from discontinued operations

Net income before non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests

Net income attributable to equity holders
of the parent company

Weighted average number of equivalent shares (basic
Weighted average number of equivalent shares édijut

Net earnings per ordinary share (basic and diluted)

For the year ended 31 December

2011 2011 2010
(excluding
acquisition &
reorganisation
expenses)
EUR

(thousands, except per share data)

267,459 267,459 234,549
200,246 200,246 168,743
67,213 67,213 65,806

- - 91,212

- - 88,170

- - 3,042
67,213 67,213 68,848
13,789 13,789 12,682
- 3,278 -
53,424 50,146 56,166
25,417 25,417 19,817
28,007 24,729 36,349
634 634 683
(4,074) (4,074) (2,857)
(201) (201) (101)
24,366 21,088 34,074
286 286 (4,038)
24,652 21,374 30,036

- - 15
24,652 21,374 30,051
(449) (449) 359
24,203 20,925 30,410
51,200,000 51,200,000 51,076,060
51,232,462 51,232,462 51,118,786
0.47 0.41 0.59

Earnings before Interest, Taxation, Depreciatiath Amortisation. Under this definition, gains anddes on disposals and write-offs of
other assets as well as currency exchange reseltdso not included in EBITDA.
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Revenues

Total revenues from cinema-related operatiomsreased by 14.0% from EUR 234.5 million during
the year ended 31 December 2010 to EUR 267.5 mitlioing the year ended 31 December 2011.

Theatre operating revenues increased by 13.1% &R 215.5 million during the year ended
31 December 2010 to EUR 243.8 million during tharyended 31 December 2011. The increase in
theatre operating revenues was mainly due to th&ibation of the Palace Cinemas chain and new
cinemas opened during 2010 and 2011 in BulgariaRmdania. This increase was partly offset by the
fact that the year 2011 did not generate 3D blostdrs comparable téwvatar and Alice in
Wonderlandwhich dominated the screens during 2010.

Distribution operating revenues increased by 28fid&& EUR 17.0 million during the year ended
31 December 2010 to EUR 21.8 million during theryeaded 31 December 2011. The increase is
mainly due to two factors: (1) increased distribatactivities in Israel following the agreementrsd

in September 2010 with the Israeli film distribitoA.D. Matalon and (2) an increase in the
Company’s revenue generated from movie distributithe Israeli TV networks due to the Israeli
distribution arm’s recent reassessment of reveremognition estimates. The increase in the
Company's film distribution activities in PolandulBaria and Romania also contributed to the
increase of the film distribution revenues. Thisréase was partly offset by a weak supply of movies
in Hungary during the year ended 31 December 2@Mipered to a better supply of such movies
during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Other revenues from cinema-related operations regdaat a similar level: EUR 1.9 million and
EUR 2.1 million during the year ended 31 Decemb@&tl?and the year ended 31 December 2010,
respectively.

During year ended 31 December 2011, there wereewenues relating to real estate sphthereas
during the year ended 31 December 2010 total reageifitom the sale of real estate amounted to
EUR 91.2 million which were attributable to theesaf the Company’s Bulgarian real estate.

Operating costs

Operating costs from cinema related operatigorxcluding depreciation and amortisation, increased
by 18.7% from EUR 168.7 million during the year edd31 December 2010 to EUR 200.2 million
during the year ended 31 December 2011. This oetase resulted primarily from the total effects of

* anincrease in theatre operating expenses primexjained by costs related to the new cinemas
in the Czech Republic, Hungary and Slovakia follogvthe Palace Cinemas acquisition and the
new cinemas opened during 2010 and 2011. Thisaserevas partly offset by a decrease in cost
due to the lower revenues as described above. fibatré operating expenses, excluding
depreciation and amortisation, as a percentagetalftheatre revenue increased to 74.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2011, from 70.7% for theegm@ed 31 December 2010;

* anincrease in distribution operating expensesrasut of the increase in revenues as described
above. Distribution operating expenses, excludiegréeciation and amortisation, as a percentage
of total distribution revenue decreased to 82.7%tlie year ended 31 December 2011, from
91.8% for the year ended 31 December 2010. Theedserin expenses as a percentage of total
revenue is mainly due to the increase in the distion activities in Israel as described above.

Costs relating to real estate soldnounting to EUR 88.2 million during the year eth@d December
2010 are attributable to the cost of the CompaByikarian real estate assets sold to Israel Trgeatre
Ltd. in 2010.
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General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses increased i &om EUR 12.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2010 to EUR 13.8 million during theryeaded 31 December 2011. The increase in
general and administrative expenses is attributabilee increase in the Company's business aesyiti
and is mainly offset by the decrease in the managémmonus accrual resulting from the decrease in
net income before taxation.

Acquisition-related and reorganisation expenses

The one-time acquisition-related and reorganisaégpenses are the result of the Palace Cinemas
acquisition. These expenses are associated pymaiih legal, accounting and advisory fees to
consummate the acquisition and one-time reorgaoisaxpenses incurred in conjunction with
integrating the acquisition into the Company’s 8 platform.

EBITDA

As a result of the factors described above, exolpdhe acquisition-related and reorganisation
expenses, the earnings before interest, tax, dafiet and amortisation (EBITDA) decreased by
4.9%, from EUR 56.2 million for the year endeddcember 2010 to EUR 53.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2011. EBITDA including acquisielated and reorganisation expenses,
decreased by 10.7% to EUR 50.1 million for the yerated 31 December 2011.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation expenses increas@813% from EUR 19.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2010 to EUR 25.4 million for the yeadexl 31 December 2011. The increase is
explained mainly by higher depreciation expenseastdithe newly opened theatres in 2010 and 2011
primarily in Poland, Bulgaria and Romania, duehte hew cinemas and assets acquired in the Palace
Cinemas transaction in January 2011, and due tdnttrease in amortisation of intangible assets
following the purchase of distribution rights duithe year ended 31 December 2011.

Operating profit

As a result of the factors described above, exolydhe acquisition-related and reorganisation
expenses, the operating profit decreased by 22t8f% EUR 36.3 million during the year ended 31

December 2010 to EUR 28.0 million during the yeaded 31 December 2011. The operating profit
including acquisition-related and reorganisatiopenses decreased by 32.0% to EUR 24.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

Financial income/expense

The balance of financial income resulted in a xpiease of EUR 3.4 million during the year ended
31 December 2011 compared to a net expense of ERJRIflion during the year ended 31 December
2010. The increase is mainly due to an increasmivk debt following the Palace acquisition and due
to exchange differences carried on balances demeunin currencies other than the functional
currency.

Disposals, write-off of other investments and othecosts
Loss on disposals, write-off of other investmemd ather costs remained at a similar level: EUR 0.2

million and EUR 0.1 million during the year ended ®ecember 2011 and the year ended
31 December 2010, respectively.
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Income tax

Income tax amounted to a net tax benefit of EURNIIBon during the year ended 31 December 2011
compared to net tax expenses of EUR 4.0 millionnduthe year ended 31 December 2010. The
decrease in tax expenses is mainly due to the elsaimgdeferred taxes in Poland following the
reorganisation of a number of the Company's Poligierational companies. As part of the
reorganisation process, the shares of the opesghttmmpanies in Poland were transferred to a fund
and, at a later stage, these companies were traredfdnto so-called joint-stock partnerships.

After the completion of the reorganisation procdescribed above, the Company will continue to
exercise full control over the activities of thesogtional companies in Poland and will retain thees
scope of rights to participate in their profits.eTactivities of the Polish operational companielt wi
continue to be fully consolidated with the actiedtiof other subsidiaries of the Cinema City group i
the financial statements of the Company. The reosgsion in Poland is expected to bring
organisational benefits and to enable tax optintieavhen managing the operational companies.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests comprise the share of arity shareholders in profits and losses from
subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the Compadyamounted to EUR 0.4 million (negative)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 and EUR Olibm{positive) for the year ended 31 December
2010.

Net income

As a result of the factors described above, exolydhe acquisition-related and reorganisation
expenses, the Company’s net income attributabkgtoty holders of the parent company decreased
by 20.4% from EUR 30.4 million during the year edd&l December 2010 to EUR 24.2 million
during the year ended 31 December 2011. The Congaryincome attributable to equity holders of
the parent company, including acquisition-related georganisation expenses, decreased by 31.2% to
EUR 20.9 million for the year ended 31 December1201
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Financial condition

Liquidity and capital resources

The Company funds its day-to-day operations praibidrom the cash flow provided by its operating
activities. Such cash flow (not including changesvorking capital) totalled EUR 45.9 million and
EUR 47.3 million for the years ended 31 Decembdri2énd 2010, respectively.

The difference between the Company’'s net income igaash flow from operating activities
(excluding the changes in working capital) is pipadly due to the Company’s depreciation and
amortisation expenses of EUR 25.4 million and ELR9Imillion in 2011 and 2010, respectively,
which are non-cash expenses.

Capital expenditures

The Company maintains a dynamic and flexible apgrda developing its theatre projects whereby it
will generally seek to lease theatres rather tlmpurchase them. The Company, however, will
consider owning a multiplex if strategically debii

The Company’'s capital expenditures (including inest in subsidiary companies and proceeds
from investments sold) aggregated to a net invastroé EUR 75.1 million and net proceeds of

EUR 12.2 million during 2011 and 2010, respectivdllgis includes the net cash consideration of the
Palace acquisition in the amount of EUR 18.4 millas well as EUR 10.1 million due to the Rishon
Letzion construction in Israel.

The Company’'s capital expenditures (excluding tFece of the Palace acquisition in 2011 and
excluding the effect of the cash inflow resultimgrh the sale of real estate in Bulgaria in 2010)
aggregated to a net investment of EUR 56.6 milaowl EUR 61.8 million during 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Cash flows from financing activities

The Company’s net cash flow from financing actestifor the year ended 31 December 2011
amounted to EUR 33.0 million, which compares toed ecash outflow used in financing activities
during the year ended 31 December 2010 of EUR mdli®n.

The cash inflow in respect of financing activities the year ended 31 December 2011 was mostly
explained by the proceeds from new long-term le@saimed (EUR 41.5 million) and the net increase
in short-term bank credit (EUR 11.4 million) mairilyconnection with the Palace acquisition and due
to the financing of the Company's increasing bussneactivities comprising mainly of the
digitalisation of its entire cinema chain and tlomstruction of its Rishon Letzion project. The cash
inflows were only partly offset by the repayment lohg-term loans (EUR 18.6 million) and a
decrease in long-term payables ( EUR 1.4 million).

The cash outflow in respect of financing activities the year ended 31 December 2010 was mostly
explained by the repayment of long-term loans (B3RO million) mainly out of the proceeds from
the sale of the Bulgarian real estate activities] anly partly offset by the proceeds from new
long-term loans assumed (EUR 12.8 million), the inetease in short-term bank credits (EUR 2.9
million) and the net proceeds from new shares $E&/R 1.8 million).

Asset and capital structure

The Company and its subsidiaries finance the mgjarf their development to date through loans
from Bank Leumi in Israel and local banks in CenEarope, mainly in Poland. These loans have
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financed a growing part of the subsidiaries’ prtgagsing financing provided by local banks, against
which securities have been provided such as matgag the assets of the financed projects, a pledge
of the shares in local subsidiaries and assignmeintee local subsidiaries revenues and insurance
policies.

Debt and operational debt

As of 31 December 2011, the Company’'s total debitsdanks amounted to EUR 66.8 million
(31 December 2010: EUR 31.2 million). Taking int@waunt the Company’s available cash position at
31 December 2011 amounting to EUR 9.3 million (3dc@mber 2010: EUR 10.5 million), the net
debt position of the Company amounted to EUR 57iiom at the end of 2011 (end of 2010:
EUR 20.7 million). Out of this net debt, EUR 23.1llimn has been used to finance non-operational
assets. The Company’s non-operational assets mamgist of investments in theatres under
development and investments in non-operationahtanequipment.

Gearing ratio and leverage

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Bank debt:
Long-term borrowings, including current portion 49,548 24,485
Short-term bank credit 17,277 6,692
Total debt 66,825 31,177
Cash and cash equivalents (9,277) (10,527)
Net debt 57,548 20,650
Construction in progress (23,046) *(13,255)
Cinema equipment not yet operated (134) (63)
Net debt financing assets in operation 34,368 7,332
Total equity attributable to equity holders of thempany 229,303 221,730
Total capital employed 263,671 229,062
Gearing ratio 25.1% 9.3%
Leverage 21.8% 9.0%

*Reclassified for comparison purposes.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt diviokedotal equity attributable to equity holderstiogé
Company. Net debt is calculated as total borrowiiigsluding ‘current and non-current borrowings’
as shown in the consolidated statement of finanmaltion) less cash and cash equivalents. Leverage
is calculated as net debt divided by total captalployed. Total capital employed is calculated as
‘equity attributable to equity holders of the Compaas shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position plus net debt financing asseteperation.

The Company’s debt and leverage decreased sigmifycia 2010, primarily as a result of the sale of
its Bulgarian real estate assets to Israel Theatr@gril 2010, in which the Company assigned much
of its existing indebtedness with Bank Leumi t@atdrTheatres. In conjunction with the assignmént o
its Bank Leumi debt, the Company agreed not todvoradditional funds if such borrowings would
result in Israel Theatres, on a fully consolidavedis (together with the Company), breaching agreed
upon EBITDA to debt ratios. This covenant has natl lany impact to date on the Company’s
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development plans and, in fact, the Company hasdidself in a relatively advantageous position of
having an unusually low debt ratio for a rapidlyparding theatre business.

This covenant will remain in force for as long asakl Theatres remains the majority shareholder in
the Company, or until Israel Theatres has repaidutstanding debt related to the real estatesasset
Bulgaria.

Employees

The average number of personnel employed by thep@oynand its subsidiaries — on a fulltime
equivalent basis — increased from 2,558 in 2018,884 in 2011. The increase is attributable to an
increase of personnel in Central Europe largelg eesult of expanded activities in that region,nhai
due to the Palace acquisition.

Research and development
The Company and its subsidiaries are not involneshy research and development activities.

Subsequent events

Acquisition of non-controlling interest

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, indll@012, the Company signed a Memorandum of
Understanding with [.M.Greidinger Ltd. (‘IMG’), atsraeli company owned by Messrs Moshe
Greidinger and Israel Greidinger, both Managingebiors and (indirectly) shareholders of the
Company, to acquire the non-controlling interestNorma Film Ltd. for an amount of EUR
1,755,000 As a result of the transaction, Nornha [Eitd. will be fully owned by the Company.

Norma Film Ltd. holds 100% of the equity share andm Film Ltd., a major film distributor in Israel,
with distribution exclusivity in Israel for film duced by Disney, MGM and several other
independent studios. In addition, Forum Film Licksaas a sub-distributor for Sony and Fox movies in
Israel.

Norma Film Ltd. Also indirectly holds 100% of thquety share in Ya'af - Automatic Video Machines
Ltd. and 60% of the equity share in Ya'af - Giaritl&6 Library Network Ltd. However, these two
subsidiaries are currently not active.

Following the expansion of the Israeli distributioperations and following the new distribution
agreements signed in Israel, the Company consiii@rslistribution in Israel an important integrated
activity. Full ownership of the distribution bussgein Israel is in line with the ownership struetun
the other countries in which the Company has dianit film distribution operations.

As the acquisition of the non-controlling intergsialifies as a transaction with a related partiM&
being controlled by major (indirect) shareholdand danaging Directors of the Company — and also
qualifies as a transaction constituting a conflitinterest with the Management Board as described
under Principle 1.3 of the Dutch Corporate Goverce Code, the Supervisory Board has formed a
special committee of independent Supervisory Darscof the Company. This committee will , after
careful review, vote on the transaction and whemessary represent the Company in the transaction,
in order to ensure that transaction is at arm’'gytlerand, moreover, to ensure that best practice
provisions of the Dutch Governance Code in respiconflicts of interest will be complied with.
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Outlook for the year 2012*

2012 has started well with solid admission level®ss the chain resulting from well received featu
films including Puss in Boot@and Sherlock Holmes 2and with a strong early contribution from the
Polish market, where domestic productions, inclgditi ciemndgci’, a Polish candidate for an Oscar
award, have attracted large audiences. The mowelipeé for the remainder of 2012 appears
promising as it is comprised of many franchise fiagh stand-alone titles includinigten in Black 11
3D, Ice Age: Continental Drift 3D, The Amazing ®pitan 3D, Prometheus 3D, Titanic 3D, The
Dark Knight Rises, Madagascar 3 3D, Brave 3D, B8BdThe Twilight Saga: Breaking Dawn - Part
2, The Hobbit: An Unexpected Journey 3D, The Hu@genes, Journey 2: The Mysterious Island 3D,
Star Wars: Episode | - The Phantom Menace 3D, Jodwter 3D, Snow White 3D, The Avengers 3D
and many others. The list of movies for 2012 afsuides many Polish titles such as the big format:
Bitwa pod WiednierandWalksaand a number of mid-range films.

In 2012, the Company’s plans for cinema openinghide the third Yes Planet Megaplex in Israel in
Rishon Letzion, which, with 25 screens and the @amy’'s first IMAX® screen in the country, will
become its flagship operation in Israel. This cingmscheduled to open in June 2012. In Bulgang, t
Company plans to open a 10 screen multiplex in &8siig May and a 14 screen multiplex in Sofia
towards the end of the year. In the Czech Repudti@ screen multiplex in Ostava is planned to open
in March. In Romania, the Company plans to operuiplexes: one with 8 screens in Constanta in
May and another one with 12 screens in Ploiestatd® the end of the year. In total, Cinema City
plans to open at least 6 cinemas with almost 88esrin 2012.

Palace Cinemas, already fully integrated with Ciag@ity’s operations in the Czech Republic and
Hungary should continue to improve in profitabilitfrurther renegotiations of selected lease
agreements, together with refurbishment programshese premises should also bring additional
financial benefits for the Group. As the Companyg le@complished the reorganisation of Palace
Cinemas, the 2012 financial results will not likedllow 'one time’ costs due to acquisition and
integration, as was reflected in the 2011 res@li42 will be also the first full year during whitie
Company will start benefiting from the newly reangaed Polish corporate structure.

Digitalisation of the Company’s chain should be pteted by the end of the first quarter of 2012,
which should translate into a number of considerdenefits, both on the operational side by reducin
operating expenses, and on the income side maynbapturing the cash generative potential of 3D
and alternative movie titles.

The Company continues to be very excited aboubiig-term growth prospects in Romania. Upon
completion of the projects currently in the pipelirRomania will become the Company’'s second
largest country in terms of number of screens iaerajion, exceeded only by Poland. The Company
currently has binding commitments for an additic3@ksites (representing approximately 350 screens)
including 24 sites with approximately 230 screeamfkpmania, and has entered into negotiations in
respect of a further number of sites. Notably, beeathe mall opening dates are dependent on the
mall developers and there is a continuing tendeincghe Romanian market to complete mall
construction behind schedule, it remains diffidalt the Company to accurately estimate the opening
dates of its projects. The Company observes howeaeia number of malls continue to be developed
and that the Company will be able to open new caseon this market. Nonetheless, as the Company,
in most cases, does not begin to expend capitdh&atre constructions in its new theatres untiy ve
close to the scheduled opening date, the failureotoplete any particular mall project or even a
number of projects, should not have a material tganpact on the Company’s ongoing operations
and results, since such failure would not posegaifgiant financial risk to the Company. If the
completion of mall projects is either delayed onasled, this would only impact the rate of the
Company’s future growth and not its ongoing operai

The Company expects that the number of full timelegees will grow in line with the number of
new cinemas being opened in the coming years. Tdrapa@ny expects to finance its new projects
from available cash and through bank loans.

32



Cinema City International N.V.

Directors’ Report

The Company’s management continues to closely miottie unfolding debt and Euro crisis in the
Eurozone, its potential implications on the Compsimpuntries of operations, and general economic
and industry trends both locally and around theldvdthile management remains optimistic about the
Company’s ongoing growth prospects, there can beasmurance that the Company will not be
materially adversely impacted if, among other ptiéémegative trends, the European debt crisisdead
to a ‘contagion’ into adjacent regions. Continuedtreess in consumer spending, could result in an
ongoing weakness in ‘mall traffic’, which has histally supported theatre admissions. In additibn,
consumers have less disposable income, discrefi@raertainment choices, such as movie going,
could be adversely impacted. Even if movie goisglftis not materially adversely impacted, movie
goers could determine to spend less money for fand drinks at the Company’s high-margin
concession stands. Moreover, advertisers couldcedsertheir use of the Company’s expanding theatre
and screen advertising services. Management hasl,nbbwever, throughout years of economic
distress, movie going often increases. Consumeseally desire to spend their smaller pools of
discretionary funds on relatively inexpensive formfisescapist’ entertainment such as movie going.

* Certain statements contained in this annual repetnot historical facts but rather statementfutfre. These forward-
looking statements are based on our current pxectations and projections about future events. farward-looking
statements speak only as of the date they are aratlare subject to uncertainties, assumptionsiaksl that may cause the
events to differ materially from those anticipabedny forward-looking statement. Such forward-limakstatements include,
without limitation, improvements in process and rapiens, new business opportunities, performan@nay Company’s
targets, new projects, future markets for the Comigaproducts and other trend projections. For theidance of any
doubts, this annual report does not contain arsctst about the Company’s and its capital group&ntial results.
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Additional information to the report

Major shareholders

To the best of the Company’s knowledge and in atoare with official notifications received by the
Company as of the date of publication of the anmapbrt for the year ended 31 December 2011
(15 March 2012), the following shareholders ardtledtto exercise over 5% of voting rights at the
General Meeting of Shareholders in the Company:

As of 15 March Increase/ As of 31 December Increase/ As of 31 December
2012 (decrease) 2011 (decrease) 2010
Number of shares/ Number of Number of shares/ Number of Number of
% of shares™® shares % of shares? shares shares/

% of shares

|.T. International Theatres Ltd. 27,589,996 / - 27,589,996 / - 27,589,996 /
53.89% 53.89% 53.89%
Aviva Otwarty Fundusz 5,004,326 / - 5,004,326 / - 5,004,326 /
Emerytalny Aviva BZ WBK 9.77% 9.77% 9.77%
Aviva Investors Poland SA 2,998,479 / - 2,998,479 / - 2,998,479 /
5.86% 5.86% 5.86%
ING Powszechne Towarzystwc 2,680,095/ - 2,680,095 / n.a n.a
Emerytalne SA 5.23% 5.23%
BZ WBK TFI SA 2,661,049/ - 2,661,049/ - 2,661,049/
5.20% 5.20% 5.20%

In the register of major holdings maintained by gch Authority for the Financial Markets the
following major holdings are disclosed:

. DKG Investment Ltd.: 40.05% (share in capital anting rights).This concerns a holding
company through which the shares in L.T. IntermatioTheatres Ltd. owned by two
members of the Management Board (see below) arthjdield

- ING Open Pension Fund: 5.23%.

Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shal®sSupervisory Board members during 2011
and until the date of publication of the report

The members of the Supervisory Board did not ownsdrares and/or rights to shares in the Company
during the period 31 December 2010 until 15 Mar@¢h22

Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shalbgsManagement Board members during 2011
and until the date of publication of the report

Changes in ownership of shares and rights to shigrddanagement Board members are specified
below:

As of 15 March Increase/ As of 31 December Increase/ As of 31
2012 (decrease) 2011 (decrease) December
Number of shares;  Number of Number of shares/ Number of 2010
% of shares shares % of shares shares Number of shares/

% of shares

Moshe Greidinger* 11,253,028/ - 11,253,028/ 1,666,898 9,586,130 /
21.98% 21.98% 18.72%

Amos Weltsch None - None - None

Israel Greidinger* 11,253,028/ - 11,253,028/ 1.666,898 9,586,130/
21.98% 21.98% 18.72%

* The shares held by Messrs Moshe and Israel Grgédiare held indirectly through 1. T. Internatiofialeatres Ltd. During 2011, Israel
Theatres Ltd. purchased part of its own shares &amamber of the shareholders. Towards the endugtit 2011, Israel Theatres Ltd.
redeemed its redeemable shares. As a result &f thassactions, the number of shares indirectlgt redreased by 1,666,898 for each
person.
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Additional information to the report (cont’d)

Right to shares
The members of the Management Board did not oweagive any rights to shares in the Company
during the period 31 December 2010 until 15 Mar@h2

Changes in the composition of the Supervisory Board
On 15 October 2011, the Chairman of the Supervi8argrd, Mr Coleman Greidinger passed away
On 14 November 2011, Mr Scott Rosenblum was appdi@hairman of the Supervisory Board.

Capital structure, restrictions regarding shareha@drights and issue of new shares in the Company
The share capital of the Company consists of orgishares only, whereby one share represents one
vote. There are no restrictions in respect of @sgierg rights attached to the shares by any shadehol
The Company can only issue shares pursuant tookutien of the General Meeting of Shareholders
for a fixed number of shares and for a fixed penotl exceeding 5 years. Such decision can only be
taken upon a proposal by the Management Board culoj@pproval by the Supervisory Board.

Statement relating to the system of internal coritro

In line with best practice provision I1.1.4 of tBeitch Code and bearing in mind the recommendations
of the Monitoring Committee Corporate Governancel&;adhe Company issues a declaration about
the effectiveness of the system of internal contfdhe processes on which the financial reporting
based.

In 2011, the Management Board assessed the effeesg of the system of internal controls for
financial reporting. During the investigation on iahn this assessment was based, no shortcomings
were identified that might possibly have a mateingbact on the financial reporting. On the basis of
the results of the above assessment and the ridiksais that were carried out at the Company within
the framework of governance and compliance, the dgdament Board is of the opinion — after
consulting with the Audit Committee and with theegval of the Supervisory Board — that the system
of internal controls provides a reasonable degfemedainty that the financial reporting contairs n
inaccuracies of material importance. An inheremtment in how people and organisations work
together in a dynamic world is that systems ofrimaé control cannot provide an absolute degree
(though they can provide a reasonable degree) dioty as regards the prevention of material
inaccuracies in the financial reporting and thevpngion of losses and fraud.

In our view the system of internal controls, foals® the financial reporting, functioned effectivel
over the past year. There are no indications thatsystem of internal controls will not function
effectively in 2012.

Representation concerning financial statements amgbort of the Management Board

The Management Board confirms that, to the besitoknowledge, the Consolidated Financial
Statements, together with the comparative figunese been prepared in accordance with applicable
IFRS. The Consolidated Financial Statements, tegewith the stand-alone Company Financial
Statements give a true and fair view of the stétaffairs of the Group at 31 December 2011 and of
the net result for the year then ended.

The Management Board report in this annual repedsga true and fair view of the situation on the
reporting date and of developments during the fitaryear, and includes a description of the major
risks and uncertainties.

Representation concerning election of the Compangigditor

The Company’s auditor has been elected accordiagpéicable rules. The audit firm and its chartered
accountants engaged in the audit of the finantséements of Cinema City International N.V. meet
the objectives to present an objective and indeganeport.
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Other

As of 31 December 2011, the Group has issued giemsrfor loans that in total amount to
EUR 9 million and PLN 453.1 (EUR 102.2) million @@nnection with loans provided to subsidiaries.
For more additional information see note 23 (2)t@the consolidated financial statements.

As of 31 December 2011, the Group has no litigatifmn claims or liabilities that in total exceed?40
of the Group’s equity.

The following net movements in the Group’s mainvysmns took place during the year ended
31 December 2011:

* adecrease in the provision for deferred tax litdd of EUR 3,014,000;
* anincrease in the provision for accrued emplogéieement rights of EUR 115,000.

The Management Board

Moshe J. (Mooky) Greidinger Amos Weltsch Israedi@inger
President of the Board Management Board Management Board
General Director Operational Director Financial Director

Rotterdam, 15 March 2012
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31 December
Note 2011 2010

EUR (thousands)

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 8 13,159 801
Property and equipment 9 263,917 231,761
Deferred tax asset 29 2,100 2,030
Long-term receivable from related parties 13 15,142 -
Total non-current assets 294,318 234,592
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 10 6,652 4,660
Receivables
Trade accounts receivable 11 14,758 13,387
Receivable from related parties 1,040 15,622
Income taxes receivable 604 1,061
Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 12 12,585 11,546
Total receivables 28,987 41,616
Financial assets
Foreign currency exchange contracts 644 90
Marketable securities 24 190
Total financial assets 668 280
Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and cash equivalents 14 9,277 10,527
Short-term bank deposits - collateralised 15 340 329
Total cash and short-term deposits 9,617 10,856
Total current assets 45,924 57,412
TOTAL ASSETS 340,242 292,004

The notes on pages 45 to 101 are an integral ptrese consolidated financial statements.
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31 December

Note 2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 16
Share capital 512 512
Share premium reserve 92,144 92,144
Accumulated currency translation adjustments (11,272) 2,474
Hedge reserve 451 73
Retained earnings 147,468 126,527
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the 229,303 221,730
Company
Non-controlling interests 18 (2,071) (4,957)
Total equity 227,232 216,773

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term loans, net of current portion 20 36,494 19,066
Accrued employee retirement rights, net 19 849 734
Deferred tax liabilities 29 3,391 6,405
Financial lease 23(1)f 1,080 1,215
Other long-term liabilities 179 3,302
Total long-term liabilities 41,993 30,722
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings 21 30,331 12,111
Trade accounts payable 17,414 9,702
Payable to related parties 210 524
Employee and payroll accruals 2,401 2,036
Other accounts payable 22 20,661 20,136
Total current liabilities 71,017 44,509
Total liabilities 113,010 75,231

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 340,242 292,004

The notes on pages 45 to 101 are an integral parese consolidated financial statements.
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Continuing operations
Revenues from cinema related operations
Operating costs of cinema related operations

Gross margin from cinema related operations

Revenues from the sale of real estate
Operating costs of real estate sold

Gross margin from sale of real estate

Total revenues continuing operations
Total operating costs continuing operations

Gross margin continuing operations

General and administrative expenses
Acquisition-related and reorganisation expenses

Operating profit

Financial income
Financial expenses

Net finance expenses

Loss on disposals, and
write-off of other investments

Operating income before taxation

Income tax benefit/(expense)
Net income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations

Net income before non-controlling interests

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests related to continuing gi®Ns
Non-controlling interests related to discontinugem@tions

Net income before non-controlling interests

Note

25
26

25
26

27

27

28

29

24

18
18

For the year ended 31 December
2011 2010

EUR (thousands)

267,459 234,549
225,663 188,560
41,796 45,989
- 91,212
- 88,170
- 3,042
267,459 325,761
225,663 276,730
41,796 49,031
13,789 12,682
3,278 -
24,729 36,349
634 683
(4,074) (2,857)
(3,440) (2,174)
(201) (101)
21,088 34,074
286 (4,038)
21,374 30,036
- 15
21,374 30,051
20,925 30,410
449 (350)
- 9)
21,374 30,051

The notes on pages 45 to 101 are an integrabp#irese consolidated financial statements.

39



Consolidated Income Statement

Cinema City International N.V.

Net income attributable to equity holders of the Canpany

Earnings per share

Weighted average number of shares

Weighted average number of shares (diluted)

Net earnings per share for profit attributable to
the owners of the Company (basic and diluted)

Net earnings per share for profit from continuing gerations
attributable to the owners of the Company (basic ath diluted)

For the year ended 31 December
2011 2010

EUR
Note (thousands, except per share data)

20,925 30,410

17 51,200,000 51,076,060
17 51,232,462 51,118,786
0.41 0.59

0.41 0.59

The notes on pages 45 to 101 are an integral parese consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

2011 2010
Note EUR (thousands)

Net income for the year 21,374 30,051
Other comprehensive income

Foreign exchange translation differences . 29(1V) (13,540) 6,280
Effective portion in fair value of cash flow hedgest of tax 29(1V) 378 (1,201)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (13,162) 5,079
Total comprehensive income for the year 8,212 35,130
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 7,557 36,100
Non-controlling interest 655 (970)
Total comprehensive income for the year 8,212 35,130

* Represents changes in fair value adjustment st daw hedges related to part of the Company’sréuttansactions
denominated in currencies other than the functionedency.

The notes on pages 45 to 101 are an integral parese consolidated financial statements.
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Trans- Non-
Share Share lation Hedge Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
EUR (thousands)

Balance as of 1 January 2010 50890,377 (4,417) 1,274 96,054 183,796 (3,987) 179,809
Issue of new shares
(see Note 16 (a)) 4 1,767 - - - 1,771 - 1,771
Share-based payments under the
stock option plan (see Note 16 (d)) - - - - 63 63 - 63
Net income for the year 2010 - - - - 30,410 30,410 (359) 30,051
Foreign currency
translation adjustment - - 6,891 - - 6,891 (611) 6,280
Effective portion of changes
in fair value of cash flow
hedges, net of tax* - - - (1,201) - (1,201) - (1,201)
Balance as of 31 December 2010 51202,144 2,474 73 126,527 221,730 (4,957) 216,773
Share-based payments under the
stock option plan - - - - 16 16 - 16
Net income for the year 2011 - - - - 20,925 20,925 449 21,374
Foreign currency
translation adjustment - - (13,746) - - (13,746) 206 (13,540)
Effective portion of changes
in fair value of cash flow
hedges, net of tax* - - - 378 - 378 - 378
Classification of minority
Shareholders' loan to non- - - - - - - 2,231 2,231
controlling Interests
Balance as of 31 December 2011 512 92,144 (11,272) 451 147,468 229,303 (2,071) 227,232

*  Represents changes in fair value adjustmengsif flow hedges related to part of the Companyigéutransactions

denominated in currencies other than the functionalency (see Note 31).

The notes on pages 45 to 101 are an integrabp#irese consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December

2011 2010

Note EUR (thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit 24,729 36,349
Discontinued operation adjustment to operatingiprof - 225
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cag foperating activities:
Depreciation and amortisation 26 25,417 19,872
Decrease in provision related to onerous leaseacist - (349)
Increase in accrued employee rights upon retireyment 19 144 57
Gain on sale of subsidiaries - (3,042)
Interest received 634 798
Interest paid (4,074) (3,109)
Income taxes paid (951) (3,464)
Operating income before working capital 45,899 47,337
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (2,156) 645
(Increase)/decrease in trade accounts receivable (1,045) 3,105
(Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses andaitbeunt receivables (540) 3,312
(Increase)/decrease/in receivable from tax auikerénd others (1,051) 1,606
Decrease in long-term film distribution costs arededred expenses 1,373 452
Decrease in accounts and other payable (95) (1,618)
Increase in employee and payroll accruals 86 38
(Decrease)/increase in payable to related parties (590) 366
Increase in receivables from related parties (305) (542)
Share-based payments 16 (d) 16 63
Net cash from operating activities 41,592 54,764
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 7 (18,426) -
Purchase of property and equipment and other &ssets (52,791) (44,022)
Investment in intangible assets** 8 (4,065) (364)
Investment in investment properties** - (4,507)
Acquisition of held for sale financial assets - (4,507)
Sale of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of - 74,036
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipra@uitintangible assets 117 224
Short-term bank deposits — (collateralised)/reldase (14) (119)
Changes in payables to tax authorities relatedvwestment activity - (8,493)
Changes in marketable securities 109 (12)
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (75,070) 12,236
* Taking into account movements in investmeetdors.

* Taking into account movements in other non-castivities.

The notes on pages 45 to 101 are an integral parese consolidated financial statements.

43



Cinema City International N.V.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December

2011 2010
Note EUR (thousands)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term loans 41,531 12,782
Repayment of long-term loans (18,556) (96,961)
Decrease in long-term payables (1,390) (63)
Proceeds net, from new shares issued - 1,771
Short-term bank credit, net increase 11,368 2,877
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 32,953 (79,594)
Foreign currency exchange differences on cash asid equivalents (725) 704
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,250) (11,890)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10,527 22,417
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 14 9,277 10,527

The notes on pages 45 to 101 are an integral ptrese consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 - General and principal activities

Cinema City International N.V. (‘the Company’ orif@ma City’) is incorporated in Amsterdam, the
Netherlands. The address of the Company is Weed 22, 3012 NJ Rotterdam, the Netherlands. The
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statementseptdbe financial position, results of operations,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flowshefGompany including its subsidiaries and joint
ventures (together referred to as ‘the Group’) thwedGroup’s interest in associates.

The shares of the Company are traded on the WaBawk Exchange. As at 31 December 2011,
53.89% of the outstanding shares are held by hiermational Theatres Ltd. (‘ITIT’), incorporatedl i
Israel (31 December 2010: 53.89%).

The Group is principally engaged in the operatidnentertainment activities in various countries
including Poland, Hungary, the Czech Republic, Btily Romania, Slovakia and Israel. The Company
is also engaged in managing and establishing i3 emtertainment real estate projects for rental
purposes, in which the Company operates motionuggctheatres. The Company’s business is
*dependent both upon the availability of suitabletion pictures from third parties for exhibition iis
theatres, and the performance of such films ilbmpany’s markets.

The Annual Report 2011 including the Consolidat&thfcial Statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011 are available upon requéls¢ £ompany'’s registered office, Weena 210-
212, 3012 NJ Rotterdam, the Netherlands, or aCtirapany’s website: www.cinemacity.nl.

Note 2 - Basis of preparation

A.

Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements have begramée in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ('IFRS") as adopted by the gemo Union as well as in accordance with article
362.9 of the Netherlands Civil Code. The Company &dopted the standards and interpretations with
an effective date before 31 December 2011.

The financial statements were authorised for isguthe directors on 15 March 2012.

The accounting policies set out below have beetieapponsistently for all periods presented in ¢hes
Consolidated Financial Statements and by all gemijties.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassdiednform to the current year’'s presentation.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements are presented in euragsded to the nearest thousand. They are prepared on
the historical cost basis except for derivativegrkatable securities, investment property and share
based payments that are measured at fair value.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in confoymwith IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions. These jedggmestimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, thelaksire of contingent assets and liabilities atdhte of
the financial statements, and the reported amoahtevenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those ewttes. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accogrdstimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimate is revised and in any future peridgsteed.
The following accounting policies are particulasinsitive to management estimates:

Marketable securities

Accounting for real estate transactions.

Related parties transactions and disclosures.
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Note 2 - Basis of preparation (cont’'d)

D.

Principles of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include ttwounts of the Company, its subsidiaries, and
jointly controlled entities.

Subsidiaries are those enterprises which are ddrdy the Company. Control exists when the
Company has the power, directly or indirectly, twvern the financial and operating policies of an
enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its a@ivi The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the Consolidated Financial Statemerdmfthe date that control effectively commences
until the date that control effectively ceases.

Jointly controlled entities are those enterprisesr avhose activities the Company has joint control,
established by contractual agreements. The Comgetid=inancial Statements include the Company’s
proportionate share of the enterprises’ assetsiifias, revenues and expenses with items of simil
nature on a line-by-line basis, from the date foatt control commences until the date that joint
control ceases.

All inter-company accounts and transactions amairfited when preparing the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Unrealised gains arising from tranmastiwith associates are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interesthm associate and joint ventures. Unrealised $osse
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised ghirtspnly to the extent that there is no eviderice o
impairment.

A list of the companies whose financial statemeats included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the extent of ownership and coapqmears in Note 36 to these financial statements.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currencies of the operations in @énEurope are the relevant local currencies: the
Bulgarian leva, the Czech crown, the Hungariamfothe Polish zloty and the Romanian new lei. The
functional currency of the operations in Israehis New Israeli shekel. The functional currencytfer
Dutch Cyprus and the Slovakian operations is the.eu

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated ihwo functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions oratin where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlemenuct sransactions and from the translation at yedr-e
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilié@®minated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the Consolidated Income Statement within ‘finarmmeeime or expense’, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the grangities (none of which has the currency of a hype
inflationary economy) that have a functional cuoerifferent from the presentation currency are
translated into euros (presentation currency) bei¥e:
assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-naogeare translated at the closing exchange rate
at the date of that balance sheet;
income statement items are translated at the pirey&iansaction rates; and
all resulting exchange differences are recognisettier comprehensive income.
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Note 2 - Basis of preparation (cont’'d)
F.  Exchange rates
Information relating to the relevant euro excharajes (at year-end and averages for the year):

Exchange rate of euro

Czech Hungarian Polish us Israeli Romania
crown forint Zloty dollar shekel new lei
As of (CZK) (HUF) (PLN) (USD) (NIS) (RON)
31 December 2011 25.70 312.03 4.43 1.29 4.94 4.32
31 December 2010 25.29 280.03 3.97 1.33 4.74 4.30
Change during the period % % % % % %
2011 (12 months) 1.62 11.43 11.59 (3.01) 4.22 0.47
2010 (12 months) (4.28) 2.71 (4.11) (6.99) (12.87) 1.18

Exchange rate of euro

Czech Hungarian Polish us Israeli Romania

crown forint Zloty dollar shekel new lei
Average for the period (CZK) (HUF) (PLN) (USD) (NIS) (RON)
2011 (12 months) 24.58 279.22 4.12 1.39 4.98 4.24
2010 (12 months) 25.32 275.94 4.00 1.33 4.95 4.22
Change year over year % % % % % %
2011 (12 months) (2.92) 1.19 3.00 4.51 0.61 0.47
2010 (12 months) (4.38) (1.85) (7.83) (4.32) (9.51) (0.71)

Since the exchange rate of the Bulgarian leva veatgisuro for the applicable periods is unchangemdirrency table is
not added. The exchange rate for the applicablegeused is 1.95583 Bulgarian leva for one euro.

Note 3 - Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent thtdse of the previous financial year except as
follows. The Group has adopted the following newt amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations as of
1 January 2011 insofar as endorsed by the EU @ afate of approval of these financial statements:

 IAS 24 Related Party Transactions (amendment)applicable to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011. The standasdoeen amended to clarify the definition of a
related party and to modify certain related-paigcldsure requirements for government-related
entities. The adoption of this amendment did notehany impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

* |AS 32Financial Instruments: Presentation (amendmengpplicable to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 February 2010. The amendmésrs the definition of a financial liability
in IAS 32 to enable entities to classify rightsuiss and certain options or warrants as equity
instruments. The adoption of this amendment didhawe any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

* |FRIC 141AS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,imlim Funding Requirements and
their Interaction (amendment) applicable to annual reporting periods beginningoorafter 1
January 2011. The Group is not subject to minimumding requirements, therefore the
amendment of the interpretation has no effect @nfihancial position or performance of the
Group.
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Note 3 - Changes in accounting policies (cont’'d)

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity itrements — applicable to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 20C&rifies the requirements of IFRSs when an
entity renegotiates the terms of a financial ligpilvith its creditor and the creditor agrees to
accept the entity’'s shares or other equity instnts@¢o settle the financial liability fully or
partially. The adoption of this interpretation didt have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Improvements to IFRSs — in May 2010 the IFRS Bassded its third omnibus of amendments to
its standards, primarily with a view to removingamsistencies and clarifying wording. There are
separate transitional provisions for each standard.

o

IFRS 3Business Combinations

Transition requirements for contingent considerafimm a business combination that
occurred before the effective date of the revigd®iS 3

The measurement options available for non-cont@linterest (NCI) were amended.
Only components of NCI that constitute a presemership interest that entitles their
holder to a proportionate share of the entity’sasstets in the event of liquidation should
be measured at either fair value or at the presenership instruments’ proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assetsoler components are to be measured
at their acquisition date fair value.

Un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-basgthpat awards. The amendments did
not have any effect on the financial position orfg@nance of the Group (applicable to
annual reporting periods beginning on or afterlg 2010).

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosureeemphasises the interaction between

quantitative and qualitative disclosures aboutrthtire and extent of risks associated with
financial instruments (applicable to annual repagriperiods beginning on or after 1 January
2011). The Group has reflected the revised disoboseguirements in Note 31.

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statementie amendment clarifies that an entity will

present an analysis of other comprehensive incamedch component of equity, either in
the statement of changes in equity or in the ndhke financial statements (applicable to
annual reporting periods beginning on or afterriuday 2011). The Group has reflected the
revised disclosure requirements in the Consolidstatiement of Changes in Shareholders’
Equity.

Amendments resulting from the improvements to IFRSthe following standards did not have
any impact on the accounting policies, financiaifion or performance of the Group:

o

o

o

IAS 27Consolidated and separate financial statements
IAS 34Interim Financial Statements
IFRIC 13Customer loyalty programmes
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Note 4 - Summary of significant accounting policies

A.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using ¢hjeisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideratiosféragd, measured at acquisition date fair valuk an
the amount of any non-controlling interest in tloguaree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether it measures the non-controllingréstiein the acquiree either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiald¢ assets. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed
and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assessefintreial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in adance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at tlyglisiion date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the aegui

If the business combination is achieved in stafjes,acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest is remeasured tovalue at the acquisition date through profit and
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred hmy @acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fhiea the contingent consideration that is deetoed
be an asset or liability will be recognised in ademce with I1AS 39 either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the cgatih consideration is classified as equity, it will
not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is aecbéot within equity. In instances where the
contingent consideration does not fall within tlvepe of IAS 39, it is measured in accordance with
the appropriate IFRS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being thecess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-oling interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consitierais lower than the fair value of the net assdts
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recaghis profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured @ist less any accumulated impairment losses. [eor th
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquiredaitbusiness combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-gengrainits that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assetlabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those
units.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating @mitl part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the ojp@madisposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or lmsglisposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on theivelaalues of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the éssubuying back of ordinary shares and to thesisgu
share options are recognised as a deduction, nahyftax effects, from equity through the share
premium reserve.
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C. Intangible assets — excluding goodwiill
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Groepstated at cost less accumulated amortisation,
calculated over the estimated useful life of theetss and after impairment losses, if any. Theyoagr
amount of the intangible assets is reviewed at eapbrting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indicationigs, the recoverable amount is estimated as the
higher of net selling price and value in use. Aisation methods, useful lives and residual values a
reviewed at each reporting date.
Costs incurred in relation of the purchase of safevare treated as intangible assets and are ysuall
amortised over period between three to five years.
Costs incurred in relation of the purchase of igtion rights are treated as intangible assetsaaad
usually amortised over a period of three years.

D. Property and equipment

(1) Property and equipment are stated at cost lessmatated depreciation and impairment
losses. Expenditures for maintenance and reparstaarged to expenses as incurred, while
renewals and improvements of a permanent natureagitalised.

(2) Depreciation is calculated by means of the strdightmethod over the estimated useful lives
of the assets. Annual rates of depreciation afellasvs:

%

Buildings 2-3
Cinema equipment Mainly 10
Leasehold improvements Mainly 5
Computers, furniture and office equipment 6 -33
Vehicles 15-20
Video movie cassettes and DVDs 50
Video machines 20

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residualesiare reviewed at each reporting date.

(3) Leasehold improvements are depreciated over thiraatstd useful lives of the assets, or over
the period of the lease, including certain rengvegiods, if shorter.

(4) Leases in terms of which the Group assumes sul@tanall the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Pyopad equipment acquired by way of finance
lease is stated at an amount equal to the lowés d&ir value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments at inception of the lea&ss, dccumulated depreciation.

(5) The carrying amount of assets mentioned above vgeewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of immpaint. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated as the highertafaiing price and value in use.

(6) Financing expenses relating to short-term and tengr loans, which were taken for the
purpose of purchasing or constructing property eqdipment, as well as other costs which
refer to the purchasing or constructing of propentg equipment, are capitalised to property
and equipment.
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E.

F.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financededs, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to ndeerwhether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then thgset's recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets #ested annually for impairment. An impairment
loss is recognised if the carrying amount of aretass cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of set as CGU is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assesgaige in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tescodnt rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the sigécific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose
of impairment testing, assets are grouped togetiterthe smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largelyependent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. Subject to an operating segment ceiling @&StJs to which goodwill has been allocated are
aggregated so that the level at which impairmestirtg is performed reflects the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal reportimgurposes. Goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to groups of CGUs thatexpected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, inglgdimpairment on inventories, are recognised in
the income statement in expense categories comsistth the function of the impaired asset. For
assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is madmacit reporting date whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairmersisks may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such indication exists, the Group estimatesab®et's or CGUs recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only iféhess been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount sincelagteimpairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amounthef asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have kimiarmined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the assetior pears. Such reversal is recognised in the
income statement unless the asset is carried avadued amount, in which case the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

The following assets have specific characterigocgmpairment testing:

Goodwill— Goodwill is tested for impairment annually (484 December) and when circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impairedpdirment is determined for goodwill by
assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU ¢opgsf CGUSs) to which the goodwill relates.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less tisacarrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwifinot be reversed in future periods.

Other intangible assets- Intangible assets with indefinite useful livee &ested for impairment
annually as at 31 December either individually orGGU level, as appropriate, and when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value bwimpaired.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost orreatisable value, and include concession products,
spare parts, music cassettes, CDs and video @ssétist is determined by means of the ‘first in,
first out’ method. Cost of music cassettes is deited on the basis of the average purchase price.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling pdoeng the normal course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and variable sekixygenses.
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G. Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in tHeoWing categories: marketable securities (at fair
value through profit or loss), loans and receivabfmancial assets at fair value through profid an
loss and available for sale financial assets. Tassification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management deteattime classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Marketable securities

The investments in securities held by the Group @dassified as trading securities. Trading

securities are bought and held principally for pugpose of selling them in the short term and are
recorded at fair value. The fair value of investtadameld for trading is their quoted bid price as of
the reporting date. Unrealised gains and losseshese securities are included in the income
statement. Dividend income is recognised when idigion of dividend is announced. Interest

income is recognised based on the agreement aftérest schedule.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These arallyittecognised at fair value, but subsequently at
amortised cost. They are included in current asssisept for maturities greater than 12 months
after the reporting date. These are classified @s-carrent assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables in these consolidated financial statésneomprise current receivables.

(c) Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets comprising stweents that are held principally for the purpdse o
selling them in the short term and are thus cleskidis available for sale under current assetsselhe
investments are valued at fair value or cost leggairment losses if the fair value cannot be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the awdd! for sale financial assets is reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is adication of impairment.

(d) Financial assets at fair value through profitrdoss

This includes derivatives. See ‘Derivative finahastruments’ under |I.

H. Allowance for doubtful accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts is determinesed upon management’'s evaluation of
receivables doubtful for collection on a case-bgechasis.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instrumenteddge its exposure to foreign exchange rate risks
arising from operational and financing activities.

Derivative financial instruments are recognisedtially at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, derivative financial instruments atated at fair value. The fair value of foreign
contracts is based on the relevant current exchiatge at the reporting date. The change in the fai
value of contracts that are effective hedges ikéddalirectly into equity in a separate hedge raserv
net of deferred taxation. The Company designatesethcontracts to hedge future cash flow
fluctuations deriving from differences between ¢hwo and the US dollar against local currencies.
Amounts are released from the hedge reserve tid prdbss when the future transaction is settled.
Where a derivative financial instrument is usedetmmnomically hedge the foreign exchange
exposure of a recognised monetary asset or liphild hedge accounting is applied and any gain or
loss due to the change in the fair value of theghmedinstrument is recognised in the income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balandeshari-term highly liquid investments, that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash, artdctv are subject to insignificant risks of
changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents aeel siiafair value.

Employee benefits — defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contrilmripension plans are recognised as an expense in
the income statement as incurred.

Employee benefits — severance pay

In certain countries in which the Group operatespleyees are entitled to severance pay at the end
of their employment. The Group’s liability for theeseverance payments is calculated pursuant to
local applicable severance pay laws and employsseagents based on the most recent salary of the
employees. The Group’s liability for all of its elopees is partly settled by monthly deposits with
insurance policies and by accruals. The depositedis include profits accumulated up to the
reporting date. The deposited funds may be withdranly upon the fulfilment of the obligation
pursuant to local severance pay law or labour ageeés. The value of the deposited funds is based
on the cash value of these policies, and includenaterial profits. The unfunded portion of the
Group’s liability is taken up in the statement wfaincial position as a provision under the heading
‘Accrued employee retirement rights, net’. The ps@n is calculated based on the actuarial method
using a discounted cash flow approach.

Employee benefits — share options granted

The Group operates a share-based incentive plae. fdin value of share options granted to
management and other employees as at the granisdatognised as an employee expense, with a
corresponding increase in equity recognised inmethearnings, over the period during which the
employees become unconditionally entitled to thitoos. The amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of shareoaptthat vest.
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N. Long-term loans and accruals and short-term liabiliies
All long-term loans and borrowings are initiallycognised at fair value, being the amount of the
consideration received net of issue costs assdorta the borrowing.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loaneeaneasured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculdigdaking into account any issue costs, and any
discount or premium on settlement. Gains and lossesrecognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised, as well as throughaimortisation process.
For information regarding the fair value of longrteliabilities reference is made to Note 31.
Accruals and short-term liabilities are recogniseitially on the trade date at which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions efilstrument. Derecognition takes place when its
contractual obligations are discharged or canceltezkpire.

O. Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation is a component of theu@i® business that represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operatioaishas been disposed of or is held for salis, ar
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to tesaClassification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation meet<titeria to be classified as held for sale, if
earlier. When an operation is classified as a dieoed operation, the comparative income
statement is re-presented as if the operation bad Hiscontinued from the start of the comparative
period.

P. Revenue recognition

(1) Revenues from admission (ticket sales) and ession sales (snack-bars operated by the
Company) are recognised when services are provided.

(2) Revenues from distribution of cinema films egeognised on an accrual basis by a percentage of
admissions from the related films.

(3) Revenues from distribution of films to cabléetésion companies and television stations are
recognised over the agreed period for the screasfitige film.

(4) Revenues from sales of video cassettes and R¥®recognised upon delivery to the customer.

(5) Revenues from ‘on screen’ advertising contraats included in theatre revenues and are
recognised when the related advertisement or comabés screened, or, in some cases, over the
period of the contract.

(6) Revenues from rental contracts are includedther revenues and are recognised on an accrual
basis.

(7) Revenues from the sale of real estate arededun revenue from the sale of real estate and are
recognised when the significant risks and benefitthe ownership have been transferred, when
the buyer is committed to the purchase, and whesdlkes price is considered collectible.

(8) Revenues from investment properties comprisesgarising from a change in fair value.

Change in estimate:

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Graugucted a comprehensive review of its
revenue and expenses recognition procedures ragatige distribution of movies to TV-platform
which resulted in a reduction of the expected pkdoring which such revenue and related expenses
are recognised. The effect of this change in adouyrestimate is an increase of revenue and
expenses recognised during the first year of digion and a decrease in following years. The net
impact of the change in estimate on the Compamgslt for the year ended 31 December 2011 is an
increase in gross margin of approximately EUR OQilfiam in respect of the distribution contracts
which were not yet recognised as at 31 Decembed.20the Company would not have changed the
accounting estimate, this net income would have beeognised in the next five years.
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Q. Cost of revenues

R.

S.

T.

(1) Cost of theatre sales include direct concesgimuuct and theatre facility costs such as
employee costs, theatre rental and utilities, whach common to both ticket sales and
concession operations.

(2) Cost of films distributed are capitalised uttie time the films are distributed for screening.
Once the films have been distributed and scredmaisgoegun, the costs are amortised at a rate
equal to the ratio of revenues in the period taltestimated revenues for the films.

(3) General advertising expenses are expensethasred. Film advertising expenses are
expensed when the film is distributed or is showthe public.

(4) Cost of real estate sold, comprising mainlyt@idand acquisition, capital expenditures and
capitalised interest.

Net financing cost

Net financing costs comprise interest payable amolmings calculated using the effective interest
rate method, and interest receivable on funds tedes

Interest income is recognised in the income staté@e it accrues, taking into account the effective
yield on the asset.

Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year cosgs current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement except to ttenethat it relates to items recognised direatly i
equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on thebtaxancome for the year calculated at the
applicable local tax rates.

Deferred income tax is provided using the liabilibhethod on all temporary differences at the
reporting date between the carrying amounts oftassel liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Theuamof deferred tax provided is based on the
expected timing of the reversal of the temporaffet®nces, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to thengxtet it is probable that future taxable profit

be available against which the unused tax losseé<rdits can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer prob#idé the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsehdre is a legal enforceable right to offset curtart
assets and liabilities, and they relate to incommed received by the same tax authority.

Additional income taxes that arise from the disitibn of dividends are recognised at the same time
as the liability to pay the related dividend.

Earnings per share

The computation of the basic earnings per shagetisrmined on the basis of the weighted average
par value of the issued and paid-in share capiitdtanding during the year. The diluted earnings
per share are determined by adjusting the profibss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstgridr the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notesshare options granted to employees.

55



Cinema City International N.V.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4 - Summary of significant accounting policiegcont’d)

U. Segment reporting
Segment information is presented in respect ofGheup’s business and geographical segments.
The Group determines and presents operating segrbased on the information provided to the
members of the Management Board who are the Grainge$ operating decision makers.
Segment results, assets and liabilities includestdirectly attributable to a segment as well as¢h
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. WWatdd items comprise mainly loans and
borrowings and income tax assets and liabilitiagerksegment pricing is determined on an arm’s
length basis.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost meclduring the period to acquire property, plarmt an
equipment, and intangible assets other than gobdwil

V. Jointly controlled entities
The Group has an interest in a joint venture whgla jointly controlled entity, whereby the
venturers have a contractual arrangement thatlested joint control over the economic activities
of the entity. The Group recognises its interestthe joint venture using the proportionate
consolidation method. The Group combines its prioate share of each of the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of the joint venture with simiems, line by line, in its consolidated finaaici
statements. The financial statements of the joimtwre are prepared for the same reporting period
as the parent company. Adjustments are made whea@ssary to bring the accounting policies in
line with those of the Group.
Adjustments are made in the Group’s consolidatednitial statements to eliminate the Group’s
share of intragroup balances, income and expemgksirarealised gains and losses on transactions
between the Group and its jointly controlled entityosses on transactions are recognised
immediately if the loss provides evidence of a odithm in the net realisable value of current assets
or an impairment loss. The joint venture is projpoitely consolidated until the date on which the
Group ceases to have joint control over the joantture.
Upon loss of joint control and provided the forrjant control entity does not become a subsidiary
or associate, the Group measures and recognisesnitining investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the farjint controlled entity upon loss of joint
control and the fair value of the remaining investinand proceeds from disposal are recognised in
profit or loss. When the remaining investment ciuss significant influence, it is accounted fer a
investment in an associate.

W. Cash flow statement
The consolidated cash flow statement is presergat) uhe indirect method. Cash flows in foreign
currencies are translated into euros using thecgie average exchange rate for the period.

X. New standards and interpretations not yet adopd

A number of new standards, amendments to standemdisnterpretations, insofar endorsed by the

European Union, are not yet effective for the yeaded 31 December 2011, and have not been

applied in preparing these consolidated finandatkesnents:

* Amendment to IAS Financial Statement Presentation Presentation of ltems of Other

Comprehensive Incom&he amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping pfstpresented
in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or ‘rdegt) to profit and loss at a future point in
time (for example, upon derecognition or settlemevduld be presented separately from
items that will never be reclassified. The amendradiects presentation only and therefore
has no impact on the Group’s financial positionperformance. Effective for financial
years beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
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Note 4 - Summary of significant accounting policiegcont’d)

« Amendment to IAS 12ncome Taxes- Recovery of Underlying AssefBhe amendment
clarifies the determination of deferred tax on stweent property measured at fair value and
introduces a rebuttable presumption that defereeddn investment property measured
using the fair value model in IAS 40 should be deteed on the basis that its carrying
amount will be recovered through sale, The amentineeffective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2012. The adoptiothis amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the financial statetsien

* Amendments to IAS 1&mployee Benefits The IASB has issued numerous amendments
to IAS 19. These range from fundamental change ag removing the corridor
mechanism and the concept of expected returnsamassets to simple clarifications and
re-wording. The amendment becomes effective farfiial years beginning on or after 1
January 2013. The adoption of this amendment igxpe¢cted to have a significant impact
on the financial statements.

« Amendments to IFRS TFinancial Instruments — Enhanced Derecognition Risare
Requirements- The amendment requires additional disclosurautafoancial assets that
have been transferred but not derecognised andt abmuotinuing involvement in
derecognised assets — effective for financial yeaginning on or after 1 July 2012. The
extent of the impact of adopting this amendmentrids/et been determined.

* |IFRS 9Financial Instruments — Classification and Measueets- This new IFRS (issued
in November 2009 and October 2010) replaces thes par IAS 39 that relate to the
classification and measurement of financial inseota. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to
be classified into two measurement categories:ethosasured at fair value and those
measured at amortised cost. The determination deratiinitial recognition — effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 January20he extent of the impact of adopting
this standard has not yet been determined.

* IFRS 10Consolidated Financial StatementsThis new IFRS was issued in May 2011. It
replaces the portion of IAS 2Tonsolidated and Separate Financial Statemethst
addresses the accounting for consolidated finastadéments. IFRS 10 establishes a single
control model that applies to all entities incluglispecial purpose entities. The changes
introduced by IFRS 10 will require management t@reise significant judgement to
determine which entities are controlled, and theesfare required to be consolidated by a
parent, compared with the requirements that werdA® 27. This standard becomes
effective for financial years beginning on or affedanuary 2013 . The adoption of this
standard is not expected to have a significant @hpa the financial statements.

* IFRS 12Disclosure of Interests in Other EntitiesThis new IFRS (issued May 2011)
includes the disclosure requirements for all forwhsnterests in other entities, including
joint arrangements, associates, special purposelestand other off balance sheet vehicles.
This standard becomes effective for financial ydsaginning on or after 1 January 2013.
The adoption of this standard is not expected i lesignificant impact on the financial
statements.

* The IASB also issued IAS 23eparate Financial Statemer{Z011) which supersedes IAS
27 (2008) and IAS 28nvestments in Associates and Joint Ventuf2811l) which
supersedes IAS 28 (2008). These standards becdewtivef for financial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. The extent of the impa@adopting this standard has not yet
been determined.

 IFRS 13Fair Value Measurement This new standard establishes a single source of
guidance under IFRS for all fair value measuremeriss standard becomes effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 January®(lhe extent of the impact of adopting
this standard has not yet been determined.
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Note 5 - Determination of fair values

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

A number of the Group’s accounting policies analdisures require the determination of fair value,
for both financial and non-financial assets andbilites. Fair values have been determined for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes based daolltheing methods. When applicable, further

information about the assumptions made in detengifair values is disclosed in the notes specific
to that asset or liability.

Marketable securities

The fair value of investments held for trading eit quoted bid price as of the reporting date.
Unrealised gains and losses on these securitiéscweed in the income statement.

Available for sale financial assets

The fair value of available for sale financial asse stated at bid prices for quoted investmentts,
estimated as the present value of future cash floigsounted at the market rate of interest at the
reporting date. If the fair value of these invegtisecannot be measured at reliable bases, the
investments are stated at cost less impairmergdoss

Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables, Wwhic determined for disclosure purposes, is
estimated as the present value of future cash floigsounted at the market rate of interest at the
reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of foreign contracts is estimateddiscounting the difference between the contractual
forward price and the relevant current exchangesrat reporting date using a risk-free interest rat
(based on government bonds).

Non-derivative financial instruments

The fair value of non-derivative financial instrum& which is determined for disclosure purposes,
is calculated based on the present value of fyitreipal and interest cash flows, discounted at th
market rate of interest at the reporting date. fiaance leases the market rate of interest is
determined by reference to similar lease agreements

Share-based payments

The fair value of employee stock options is measwsing a binomial lattice model. Fair value of
share appreciation rights is measured using thekBdzholes formula. Measurement inputs include
share price on measurement date, exercise pri¢heoinstrument, expected volatility (based on
weighted average historic volatility adjusted fdnanges expected due to publicly available
information), weighted average expected life of itteruments (based on historical experience and
general option holder behaviour), expected dividermhd the risk-freénterest rate (based on
government bonds). Service and non-market perfocmannditions attached to the transactions are
not taken into account in determining fair value.
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Note 6 - Changes in consolidated entities

A.

Changes in consolidated and associated entitidaring 2011

Entity newly in consolidation:

» Palace Cinemas Hungary Kft, 100% owned by the Compacorporated in Hungary.

» Palace Cinemas Slovak Republic s.r.o., 100% owneithdd Company, incorporated in Slovakia (in
the third quarter of 2011 this company merged @ittema City Slovakia s.r.o0.).

» Palace Multikino s.r.o., 100% owned by the Compangorporated in Slovakia (in May 2011, the
name of this company was changed to Cinema CityaRla s.r.o.).

» Palace Cinemas Czech s.r.o0., 100% owned by the @ommcorporated in the Czech Republic (in
September 2011 this company merged into CinemaG@Zgch s.r.o0.).

All of the companies above were acquired as pathefPalace Cinemas acquisition in January 2011

(see Note 7).

e Forum Film Slovakia s.r.o0., 100% owned by the Camgpancorporated in Slovakia in May 2011.
This entity specialises in the distribution of mewin Slovakia.

e Seracus Ltd., 100% owned by the Company, incorpdrém Cyprus. In the third quarter, the
Company contributed its shares in Cinema City Rbl&p. Zoo, I.T Poland Development 2003 Sp.
Zoo, Forum Film Poland Sp. Zoo, New Age Media Spo Aand All Job Poland Sp. Zoo (Polish
subsidiaries) to a Polish fund (see below) , owme&eracus Ltd., a subsidiary wholly owned by the
Company. Following the contribution, the Polish sidiaries were transferred into so-called joint-
stock partnerships. These Polish entities will ta@ to be fully included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

e Forum 40 Fundus Inwestycyjny Zamkniety — a polighdf, 100% owned by the company.

Entities excluded from consolidation:
* Forum Film Home Entertainment Kft (this Company gesf into I.T Magyar Cinemas Kift).

Other changes:

* In December 2011, New Age Cinema Czech s.r.o. {pusly dormant) changed its name to Forum
Film Czech s.r.o. Forum Film Czech s.r.0. hasethits distribution activities in the Czech Repabili
in January 2012.

Changes in consolidated entities during 2010

Entity newly in consolidation:
e Forum Film Romania s.r.l., 100% owned by the Comgparas incorporated in Romania. This entity
commenced operations in January 2011 and spesiatigee distribution of movies in Romania.

Entities excluded from consolidation:

» IT Sofia B.V., the Netherlands, previously 100% edrby the Company

» IT Sofia 2007 B.V., the Netherlands, previously #06wned by the Company

» Cinema City Malls B.V., the Netherlands, previous80% owned by the Company

» Cinema City Stara Zagora B.V., the Netherlandsyiptesly 100% owned by the Company

» Mall of Russe AD, Bulgaria, previously 100% owngdthbe Company

» Mall of Stara Zagora AD, Bulgaria, previously 55%red by the Company

« RESB EOOD, Bulgaria, previously 100% owned by tioenpany

The interests in these entities have been solgiil 2011 as part of the transaction described aeMNd.

Other changes:

* New Age Cinema Czech s.r.o., 100% owned by the @ompransferred its advertising activities in
the Czech Republic in the first quarter of 2011Cioema City Czech s.r.0. after which New Age
Cinema Czech s.r.o. became dormant.
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Note 7 - Business combinations - Acquisition

On 19 January 2011, the Company signed a sharass®d purchase agreement with Palace Cinemas
(Central Europe) B.V. (‘Palace Cinemas’), undercihagreement the Company acquired 100% of the
shares in four Central European subsidiaries aid@aCinemas, notably: Palace Cinemas Czech s.r.o.,
Palace Cinemas Hungary Kft, Palace Cinemas SlowguBlic s.r.o. and Palace Multikino s.r.o. and
related assets. The acquisition comprised in fiddahultiplexes with 141 screens in the Czech Republ
Hungary and Slovakia plus a leasing agreement fowltiplex with 8 screens in Ostrava, the Czech
Republic planned to be opened in 2012. Under tla@eshnd asset purchase agreement with Palace
Cinemas, the Company was also rendering selectedgeaent services, during a transitional period ,
for the 8 multiplexes (with 48 screens) operatedPhajace Mozi Kft, a Hungarian subsidiary of Palace
Cinemas that was not acquired by the Company. Iy BAH 1, the landlord at 3 of these multiplexes
terminated the lease agreement with Palace Moza#dt, in mutual settlement of outstanding amounts
owed by Palace Mozi Kft, assumed control of theesssf these multiplexes. Upon taking control, the
landlord immediately leased the space occupiedhiege 3 multiplexes to the Company, which is
currently operating these theatres.

The Company, supported by an independent valuatipert, identified the fair value of assets acquire
and liabilities assumed on acquisition date (Pweharice Allocation). The excess of the cost of the
business acquired over the fair value of identiiabssets and liabilities resulted in goodwill. In
connection with the acquisition, an amount of EUR28,000 was recognised as goodwill which is
mainly made up of future economic benefits inclgdost-acquisition synergies.

At the closing, the Company paid EUR 21,374,00theoseller and assumed EUR 6,546,000 in existing
debt of the acquired companies. The acquisition fivesiced from the Company’s existing cash and
from available credit lines. The fair value of tte#al consideration transferred as at acquisitiate d
amounts to EUR 21,374,000.

The following summarizes the consideration tramefi&rthe recognised amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquistiiae and the recognised goodwill:

EUR (thousands)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assuntk

Property and equipment 20,248
Intangible assets 997
Trade accounts receivable 1,317
Inventories 295
Deferred tax assets 1,010
Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 2,195
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired 2,948
Long-term loans assumed (6,546)
Other long-term liabilities (613)
Deferred tax liabilities (967)
Trade accounts payable (3,992)
Employee and payroll accruals (404)
Other accounts payable (3,940)
Total net identifiable assets 12,548
Recognised goodwill (Note 8) 8,826
Total consideration 21,374
Less: cash and cash equivalents in subsidiariasradq 2,948
Total net cash consideration 18,426
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Note 7 - Business combinations — Acquisition (corat)

The Company incurred acquisition-related costs ORE3,278,000 associated primarily with legal,

accounting and advisory fees and one-time reorgfais expenses in conjunction with integrating the
acquisition into the Company’'s existing platformheéBe amounts have been included in the
Consolidated Income Statement as Acquisition-rdlatel reorganisation expenses.
The Palace Cinemas were acquired effectively al9adanuary 2011. Bearing in mind the immediate
reorganisation and integration of these cinemastimt Company’s operations, the Palace acquisgion

estimated to have contributed revenue of approxdin&UR 45 million.

Note 8 - Intangible assets

Financial year 2011

Acquisitions Foreign
Balance at Additions through currency Balance at
beginning of  during the business translation Sales and end
year year  combinations adjustments disposals of year
EUR (thousands)
Cost
Goodwill (see Note 7) - - 8,826 - - 8,826
Distribution rights - 3,333 - - - 3,333
Other intangible
fixed assets 2,219 732 1,832 (272) 47 4,464
2,219 4,065 10,658 (272) 47 16,623
Amortisation and
impairment losses
Goodwill - - - - - -
Distribution rights - 915 - - - 915
Other intangible
fixed assets 1,418 492 835 (150) (46) 2,549
1,418 1,407 835 (150) (46) 3,464
Carrying value 801 2,658 9,823 (122) (1) 13,159
Financial year 2010
Acquisitions Foreign
Balance at Additions through currency Balance at
beginning of during the business translation Sales and end
year year combinations adjustments disposals of year
EUR (thousands)
Cost
Other intangible assets
1,799 364 - 97 (42) 2,219
1,799 364 - 97 (41) 2,219
Amortisation and
impairment losses
Other intangible assets
1,110 277 - 71 (40) 1,418
1,110 277 - 71 (40) 1,418
Carrying value 689 87 - 26 (1) 801
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In connection with the acquisition of Palace Cinepan amount of EUR 8,826,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2011 as goodwilth is mainly made up of future economic
benefits including post-acquisition synergies (Sete 7).

The other intangible assets comprise mainly investsin the development of Cinema Megaplex,
software and are stated at cost less accumulatedisation and impairment losses, if any.

The goodwill has been allocated for impairmentingsto the theatre operations in Hungary (EUR 2,678
thousand) and the theatre operations in the Czempulltic and Slovakia combined (EUR 6,148
thousand), each representing the lowest level mitte Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Compasydetermined that there is no impairment of
any of its (group of) cash-generating units coritgjrgoodwill. The recoverable amounts of the uaits
calculated on the basis of value in use and basefthancial budgets covering a 5 year period, and a
discount rate of 14.5% to the Hungarian operatiod 41.0% to the Czech and Slovakian operations
respectively, representing the Company’s weightestagge cost of capital. The cash flows beyond the
5 year period are extrapolated using a prudent 2)@&Mvth rate for the relevant segments. Management
believes that any reasonable possible change ikehe@ssumptions on which the recoverable amounts
are based would not cause the relevant carryingiatado exceed these recoverable amounts.

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculgtiavhich are based on the company's past
experience, are the following:

— The Company has assumed an average annually gp@nd¢bntage of 2% during the next 5 years.

— The fixed costs will increase in 3% annually in tlext 5 years.

62



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cinema City International N.V.

Note 9 - Property and equipment

Cost

Land and building®
Cinema equipmetit
Leasehold improvemerits
Computers, furniture

and office equipment
Vehicles

Accumulated
depreciation

Land and buildings
Cinema equipment
Leasehold improvements
Computers, furniture

and office equipment
Vehicles

Carrying value

Financial year 2011

Acquisitions Foreign
Balance at  Additions through currency Balance at
beginning during the business translation Sales and end

of year year®  combinations®  adjustments  disposals of year

EUR (thousands)

75,334 11,512 7,942 (5,217) - 89,571
154,219 36,801 23,365 (13,804) (1,610) 198,971
124,314 5,018 15,707 (10,792) 9) 134,238

7,950 497 1,809 (557) (12) 9,687
1,524 568 41 (99) (214) 1,820
363,341 54,396 48,864 (30,469) (1,845) 434,287

21,034 2,320 1,660 (1,753) - 23,261

64,515 13,084 15,510 (6,060) (1,440) 85,609

39,112 7,665 9,938 (3,937) 4) 52,774

6,154 666 1,502 (461) (6) 7,855
765 275 6 (43) (132) 871
131,580 24,010 28,616 (12,254) (1,582) 170,370
231,761 30,386 20,248 (18,215) (263) 263,917

(1) Included under ‘Additions during the year — at tas¢ borrowing costs amounting to EUR 815,000
capitalised using an average rate of 4.3%.

(2) See Note 7 Business combinations.

(3) The balance as of 31 December 2011 includes EUBIBI00 construction in progress.

(4) The balance as of 31 December 2011 includes EURD@B4n respect of cinema equipment not

yet operational.
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Note 9 - Property and equipment (cont'd)

Cost

Land and building$
Cinema equipmefit
Leasehold improvements
Computers, furniture

and office equipment
Vehicles

Accumulated depreciation
Land and buildings
Cinema equipment
Leasehold improvements
Computers, furniture

and office equipment
Vehicles

Carrying value

Financial year 2010

Additions  Foreign currency Balance at
during the translation Sales and end
year @ adjustments disposals of year

EUR (thousands)

9,431 2,874 (11) 75,334
20,424 5,787 (907) 154,219
9,333 7,092 (786) 4,312

368 644 (471) 7,950
398 144 (678) 1,524
39,954 16,541 (2,853) 363,341
2,432 745 ©) 21,034
10,025 2,985 (904) 64,515
6,118 2,505 (784) 1139,
787 537 (406) 6,154
233 66 (343) 765
19,595 6,838 (2,440) 131,580
20,359 9,703 (413) 231,761

(1) Included under ‘Additions during the year — at tas¢ borrowing costs amounting to EUR 353,000

capitalised using an average rate of 4.5%.

(2) The balance as of 31 December 2010 includes EUBS%300 construction in progress.
(3) The balance as of 31 December 2010 includes EUBD83n respect of cinema equipment not yet

operational.
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Note 10 - Inventories

Composition:

31 December

2011 20

10

EUR (thousands)

Concession products 1,760 1,431
Video cassettes and DVDs 260 354
IMAX ® films inventories 1,474 1,671
Spare parts 3,158 1,204
6,652 4,660
Valuation: 31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)
At cost 6,652 4,660
Provision for net realisable value - -
6,652 4,660
All inventories included above are valued at cost.
Note 11 - Trade accounts receivable
Composition: 31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)
Trade accounts receivable 14,884 13,518
Allowance for doubtful accounts (126) (131)
14,758 13,387
Note 12 - Other accounts receivable and prepaid egpses
Composition: 31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)
Government institutions 2,599 1,321
Advances to suppliers 816 742
Prepaid expenses 6,264 5,594
Prepaid cinema film and video film distribution 9 1,450 2,948
Other 1,456 941
12,585 11,546

M stated at cost, in respect of video and cinetmasfivhich have not yet been distributed, after §ein

reviewed for recoverability.
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Note 13 — Long-term receivable from related parties

At 21 April 2010, the Company sold all of its irgsts in these real estate development projectekhs w
as the local management company, RESB EOOD, whkicasponsible for building and leasing these
assets to its controlling shareholder, Israel Tiesatltd. The sale of the Bulgarian real estate
development projects was effectuated by a salbeoStibsidiaries of the Company that are holding the
interests in both projects, including other assetd liabilities of these subsidiaries transferredhe
buyer. As a result of the transaction, the Compesglised an additional gain of approximately
EUR 3.0 million, which has been recognised in tharyended 31 December 2010.

Under the Company'’s April 2010 agreement to sglBitilgarian real estate activities to Israel Thesatr
Ltd., Israel Theatres paid the Company EUR 76.2ianilat the closing and agreed to pay a further
EUR 15 million by no later than October 2011. On@&ober 2011, the Company signed a deferred
payment agreement with Israel Theatres Real EBkalging B.VV. and Pan-Europe Finance B.V., both
subsidiaries of Israel Theatres Ltd. (the 'Buyemcording to which the pending payment to the
Company of the remaining EUR 15 million of the phase price for assets related to the
abovementioned Bulgarian real estate activities deferred, while the period during which the
Company will be entitled to a percentage of anyeptial gains to be realised by the Buyers has also
been extended from end of 2014 until 31 Decemb#820

The Buyers have requested the Company to defgratymment of the remaining EUR 15 million in the
light of the deterioration of the real estate marke Bulgaria resulting in cancellation and/or
renegotiation of lease agreements with tenantsratite necessity of re-leasing the space on mwgsh le
favourable conditions with significantly reduceaitee The Company and the Buyers have agreed to the
following new terms:

(1) EUR 5 million will be repaid to the Company no katean 22 October 2013, EUR 5 million
will be repaid no later than 22 October 2014 andRE3Jmillion will be repaid no later than 22
October 2015.

2) Early repayment is possible without prepayment fign@ihe unpaid amounts will bear interest
payable annually as follows: 5% for the first ye&¥ for the second year and 7% for the next
two years, but, in each case, cannot amount to tlems the Company’s average external
borrowing cost plus a margin of 1%.

3) Between the second anniversary to the extendeddpantil 31 December 2018, the Buyers are
required to pay to the Company 25% of any gainzedlif and when the Bulgarian real estate
assets are sold to a third party.

@) The Buyers have waived any claims against the Cagnpaconnection with the purchase and
sale of the Bulgarian real estate in 2010.

Since Israel Theatres Ltd. indirectly also conttbls majority of the shares in the Company, the new
payment agreement was treated as a 'related-partgéction’. Consequently, the Supervisory Board
of the Company formed a special committee of inddpat board members who, together with the
Company’s Audit Committee, considered and apprdkedexecution of the new agreement.
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Note 14 - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank drathd and short-term deposits freely available
for the Group. The short-term deposits have ariraignaturity varying from one day to three months.

Composition: 31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)
Cash at bank and in hand 9,229 9,259
Short-term deposits 48 1,268
9,277 10,527

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates basethily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposés a
made for varying periods of between one day andetimonths depending on the immediate cash

requirements of the Group, and earn interest hbe-serm deposit rate of 2.0% (2010: 2.5%)

Note 15 - Short-term bank deposits - collateralised

In 2011, deposits with banks in Central Europe denated in euros for a total amount of
EUR 340,000 (2010: EUR 329,000) were made to sasveollateral for credit facilities provided to a
subsidiary. The interest rates earned on thesesdspary from 0.75% to 1.25% on an annual basis.

Note 16 - Shareholders’ equity

a. Share capital
The authorised share capital of the Company cansistL 75,000,000 shares of EUR 0.01 par value
each.

The number of issued and outstanding ordinary shaseat 1 January 2011 was 51,200,000 and
remained unchanged during the financial year eldeldecember 2011.

The number of issued and outstanding ordinary shasat 1 January 2010 was 50,834,000. At
15 February 2010, in connection with the exercisghare options granted in prior years to employees
the Company issued 25,000 ordinary shares (see Mot). In April 2010, a further 341,000 share
options granted in prior years to employees, wesgased (see also Note 16 d). Initially, thesaaha
were made available to the option holders by then@oy’s largest shareholder, I.T. International
Theatres Ltd. Following the exercise of the optjars11 May 2010, the Company issued 341,000 new
ordinary shares to I.T. International Theatres tadacilitate the exercise of the share options.

As a result of the issue of new shares in Febraay May 2010, the total number of issued and
outstanding ordinary shares increased during tlae gaded 31 December 2010 to 51,200,000. The
total proceeds of the 366,000 new ordinary shasssed during the year ended 31 December 2010
amounted to EUR 1,771,000.

All shares issued and outstanding at 31 DecemliEt B@ve been fully paid. Ordinary shares carry the
right of one vote per share and participation ipnpants of dividends.

b. Accumulated currency translation adjustments

The accumulated translation adjustments compriséomdign currency differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreagperations, as well as from the translation ofiliidds
that hedge the Company’s net investment in a fareigsidiary.
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Note 16 - Shareholders’ equity (cont’d)

c. Hedge reserve
The hedge reserve comprises the effective porfitineocumulative net change in the fair value affrca
flow hedging instruments related to hedged tramsasthat have not yet occurred.

d. Share options
The Company has implemented a long-term incentiae fithe ‘Plan’). Under the Plan, share options
can be granted to members of the Management Boatdelected employees. The number of options
granted to certain employees of the Group have bsdollows:

* on 6 December 2006: 477,000 options with an egengiice of EUR 5.05 each;

e on 17 September 2008: 105,000 options with an eeprice of PLN 25 each;

* on 18 November 2009: 62,000 options with an exengigce of PLN 25 each.
All options vest in one to three years and haveoption term of four years. Members of the
Management Board did not receive any options utiagePlan.
In December 2007, a total number of 110,000 optibas were granted in 2006 were exercised. The
average share price at the time of exercise was EdRper share. In February 2010, a total number o
25,000 options that were granted in 2006, werecisen (see Note 16 a). The average share price at
the time of exercise of these options was PLN 3619%April 2010, a further 341,000 options were
exercised (see Note 16 a). The average share agirite time of exercise of these options was PLN
34.00.
The weighted average exercise price of optionstandéng (vested but not yet exercised and not
expired) amounts to EUR 5.64. The number of exabbesoptions at 31 December 2011 is 125,000.

The details of the number of options outstandingté&l December 2011 are as follows:

Exercise price Number of options

Vesting date Granted Exercised Expired Qutstanding
6 December 2007 EUR 5.05 159,000 152,000 7,000 -
6 December 2008 EUR 5.05 159,000 141,000 18,000 -
6 December 2008 PLN 25 27,000 16,000 - 11,000
6 December 2009 EUR 5.05 159,000 141,000 18,000 -
6 December 2009 PLN 25 47,666 26,000 - 21,666
6 December 2010 PLN 25 71,667 - - 71,667
6 December 2011 PLN 25 20,667 - - 20,667

644,000 476,000 43,000 125,000

The weighted average fair values at grant datgtdes using the Black-Scholes valuation model have
been calculated using the following significantuasptions as input into the model:

Input of assumptions Fair value per option
Grant date Exercise Weighted Volatility* Dividend Option life ~ Annual
price average share yield (years) risk free
price rate
5 December 20( EUR 5.05 EUR 1.10 20% 0% 4 4% EUR 1.00
17 September 200 PLN 25.00 PLN 20.00 43% 0% 4 4% EUR 1.10
18 November 209 PLN 25.00 PLN 22.50 41.2% 0% 4 4% EUR 1.39

* The expected volatility is estimated by considgrhistoric average share price volatility.
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Note 16 - Shareholders’ equity (cont’d)

d. Share options (cont'd)
During the financial year ended 31 December 2014 térm of no options has been lapsed (during the

financial year ended 31 December 2010, the terdBd@f00 options has been lapsed). The impact of the
share-based payment on the financial statementiseo€ompany for the financial year 2011 was an
expense of EUR 16,000 (2010: EUR 63,000) recogriis¢ide income statement with a corresponding

increase in equity.
Note 17 - Net earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted net earnirgsshare at 31 December 2011 was based on thé profi
attributable to ordinary shareholders of EUR 20,026 (2010: EUR 30,410,000), and a weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstandingesepted below:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basicral diluted):

Financial year
2011 2010
number of shares

Number of ordinary shares at beginning of the year 51,200,000 50,834,000
Effect of shares issued during the year - 242,060
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 51,200,000 51,076,060
Effect of share options issued and outstanding 32,462 42,726
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted 51,232,462 51,118,786

Note 18 - Non-controlling interests

Financial year
2011 2010

EUR (thousands)

Balance at beginning of the year (4,957) (3,987)
Non-controlling interests in earnings/(losses)teaao

continuing operations 449 (350)
Non-controlling interests in losses related to dirtmued

operations - 9)
Translation adjustments 206 (611)
Classification of minority shareholders’ loan tmrcontrolling

interest 2,231 -
Balance at end of the year (2,071) (4,957)

The (non-controlling) shareholders are committeccower any deficits and losses realised by the
relevant subsidiaries to the extent of their irdene these subsidiaries.
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Note 19 - Accrued employee retirement rights

a.

According to the relevant laws, the Company’ssgliaries in Europe are required to deposit
amounts, on a monthly basis, to retirement andiperands on behalf of their employees, and
therefore have no such liabilities towards them.

Local applicable labour laws and agreementsireguoup companies to pay severance pay to
dismissed or retiring employees (including thosevileg their employment under certain other
circumstances). The calculation of the severange lipdility was made in accordance with
labour agreements in force and based on salary @oemps that, in management’s opinion,
create entitlement to severance pay.

Group companies’ severance pay liabilities to tlesnployees are funded partially by regular
deposits with recognised pension and severancefypals in the employees’ names and by
purchase of insurance policies and are accounteaksfd they were a defined contribution plan.
The amounts funded as above are netted againstltied liabilities and are not reflected in the
statement of financial position since they are notler the control and management of the
companies.

The amounts of the liability for severance pagspnted in the statement of financial position

(see (e) below) reflect that part of the liabilityt covered by the funds and the insurance policies
mentioned in (b) above, as well as the liabilitsttis funded by deposits with recognised central

severance pay funds held under the name of the &uwyigpsubsidiaries.

The cost of severance provision is determinexbraling to the actuarial method, the projected
unit credit method. It has been calculated usingligcounted cash flow approach. The
calculations are based on the following assumptions

» Discount at 31 December 2011: 1.74% (0.82% dd&cember 2010)
» Expected return on plan assets at 1 January 2012:60%2(2.50% at 1 January 2011)

The provision for accrued employee rights ugdinement, net, comprises:
31 December

2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Present value of unfunded obligation 2,670 2,530
Less: Fair value of plan assets (1,821) (2,796)
849 734
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Note 19 - Accrued employee retirement rights (cond)

f. The movements in the provision for accreatployee rights upon retirement during the finaincia
year are as follows:

Financial year 2011

Amount
Gross amount deposited Net amount
EUR (thousands)
Balance at beginning of the year 2,530 (1,796) 734
Translation difference (100) 71 (29)
Payments made upon retirement - (139) (139)
Net movement in provision -
charged to net profit 240 43 283
Balance at end of the year 2,670 (1,821) 849
Financial year 2010
Amount
Gross amount deposited Net amount
EUR (thousands)
Balance at beginning of the year 2,026 (1,439 587
Translation difference 309 (219) 90
Payments made upon retirement - (74) (74)
Net movement in provision -
charged to net profit 195 (64) 131
Balance at end of the year 2,530 (1,796) 734

71



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cinema City International N.V.

Note 20 - Long-term loans

A. Composition:

31 December

Interest rates® 2011 2010
% EUR (thousands)
In CZK 3.73% 2,832 3,487
In EUR EURIBOR 3M + 1.5% - 2.2% 16,860 9,022
EURIBOR 1M+3.75%
In HUF 7.63% 860 1,380
In PLN WIBOR + 1.95% 28,996 10,596
49,548 24,485
Less: current portion (13,054) (5,419)
36,494 19,066

@ The interest rates shown concern the rates pere@&mber 2011.

B. The loans mature as follows:

First year - current maturities
Second year

Third year

Fourth year

Fifth year

Sixth year and thereafter

C. Liens- see Note 23 (2).

31 December

2011 2010

EUR (thousands)
13,054 5,419
11,274 6,517
10,598 4,641
7,943 4,415
374 1,259
6,305 2,234
49,548 24,485
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Note 21 - Short-term borrowings

Composition: 31 December
Interest rates 2011 2010
% EUR (thousands)

Current maturities of long-term loans  See Note 20 13,054 5,419
Short-term bank credit:
Unlinked (NIS) 5.0% 10,197 6,675
In PLN Wibor 1M+1.5% 7,080 -
In euros - 17

30,331 12,111

@ The interest rates shown concern the rates pereggmber 2011.

Note 22 - Other accounts payable

Composition: 31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Investment creditors 2,628 654
Accrued expenses 12,540 13,340
Deferred income 1,397 2,642
Government institutions 1,002 1,760
Advances and income received in advance 119 114
Income tax payables 2,380 1,150
Other 595 476

20,661 20,136
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Note 23 - Commitments, liens and contingent liabties
(1) Commitments

a. The Company and its subsidiaries conduct mosheif cinemas and corporate operations in
leased premises. These leases, which have nonHedheelauses, expire at various dates after
31 December 2011. Many leases have renewal optibost of the leases provide for contingent
rentals based on the revenues of the underlyingn@an while certain leases contain escalating
minimum rental provisions. Most of the leases regjthe tenant to pay city taxes, insurance, and
other costs applicable to the leased premises.

Future minimum lease payments under non-canceltgi#eating leases from third parties for the years
after 31 December 2011 are as follows:

EUR
(thousands)*
2012 31,504
2013 31,406
2014 31,967
2015 32,151
2016 31,002
After 2016 104,336
262,366

* Does not include contingent rental, which is subjedche Company’s decision to exercise the option
to extend the operating lease period.

Future minimum lease payments under non-canceltgideating leases from third parties for the years
after 31 December 2010 were as follows:

EUR
(thousands)*
2011 25,372
2012 26,014
2013 26,005
2014 26,522
2015 26,882
After 2015 103,636

234,431

*  Does not include contingent rental, which is sdbjto the Company’s decision to exercise the aptio
to extend the operating lease period.

Rental expenses for theatres during 2011 amouatEdR 30,442,000 (2010: EUR 23,506,000).
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Note 23 - Commitments, liens and contingent liabtiies (cont’d)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has unpaid camenits to invest in the development of
properties of approximately EUR 15.5 million (31 deenber 2010: EUR 2.6 million) and has
further commitments to acquire cinema equipment agproximately EUR 8.7 million
(31 December 2010: EUR 8.6 million).

In consideration for expanding the distributiomivaties and the supply of distribution producteth
Company has signed, through its distribution arnalincountries of activities, agreements with
third parties for exclusive distribution rights feeveral movies. According to these agreements, the
Company commits to pay minimum guaranteed feeténntar future based on a timeline set in
each agreement. The payments are subject to thglysop movies. The total value of the
agreements signed until the end of 2011 is arou8® U million, whereas during the first few
months of 2012 until the date of these Consolid&iedncial Statements, agreements were signed
for a total amount of USD 3 million.

The Group through its subsidiaries has signedeamgents with third parties in Israel, Poland and
Hungary. According to these agreements, the Groaptg the third parties exclusive broadcasting
rights on Israeli, Polish and Hungarian televisionspecific movies. The duration of these rights
vary from three to five years for each film sold.

Movie films are typically licensed from film dishutors representing film production companies.
Film exhibition licences typically specify rentads based upon a gross receipts formula, which is
negotiated on a movie-by-movie basis in advancddigifibution. The fees are generally related to
the anticipated performance of the movie basecherdistributor’'s experience in other markets, if
possible. Under such a formula, the distributorerezs a specified percentage of box office
receipts, with the percentage declining over tha tef the run.

Lease contracts of certain cinema equipment of IMAystems are classified as finance lease and
as such the equipment is included in property apdpenent under cinema equipment. The total of
the lease obligation at 31 December 2011 amourdeBEUR 1,080,000 (31 December 2010:
EUR 1,215,000), and is classified as ‘Other lorrgatpayables’. The capital lease is bearing 6.5%
annual interest. The lease term expires on 31 Deee2021, after which the ownership will be
transferred to the Company. For a specificatiorthef contractual maturity of ‘Other long-term
payables’ reference is made to Note 31.

(2) Liens

a.

The Company has entered into a loan facility exgpent with a bank Leumi. In order to secure
the Company’s liabilities for these bank creditd &oans, the Company has provided the bank the
following: (i) a registered first degree fixed liem IT-2004’s (the Israeli subsidiary) outstanding
share capital and goodwill; (ii) a first degreeafiog lien on IT-2004’s assets, including insurance
benefits in respect of the assets and rights ofkamy which ITIT has or will have in the future;
(i) that the assets of IT-2004 will not be pledgand the lien cannot be transferred without the
agreement of the bank; (iv) ITIT has agreed to gote the debt of the Company (v) that certain
financial covenants will be fulfilled and maintatheThe Company complied with the financial
covenants during the year 2011 and as at 31 Decezfitié.

75



Cinema City International N.V.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 23 - Commitments, liens and contingent liabtiies (cont’d)

(2) Liens (cont'd)

b.

The local subsidiaries in Poland and the CzegbtuBRl&e have obtained financing from banks for
some of the cinema complex projects. The secufiesn include: mortgage on the assets of the
financed projects, pledge on the shares of theidiabes, and an assignment of all revenues and
insurance policies of the projects. During the fficial year 2011, the Company provided a
guarantee for new facilities to a Polish bank tmtgl/PLN 265.1 million (EUR 64.4 million). The
Company’s Polish subsidiary provided the bank ve#veral securities consisting mainly of an
ordinary joint mortgage on its interest in seveeal estate investments in Poland. The Polish and
the Czech subsidiaries undertook to meet sevarahéial covenants. As at 31 December 2011,
the Company had issued a guarantee for EUR 9.@omilb a Polish bank in connection with a
loan provided to a subsidiary. In addition, the @amy has issued a guarantee for a total amount
of PLN 453.1 million (EUR 102.2 million) issued &oPolish bank in order to secure several loan
agreements with this bank. As of 31 December 20tELPolish subsidiary bank debt is PLN 170.6
million (EUR 38.5 million).

In order to secure an outstanding loan from adduan bank of approximately EUR 1.8 million
(2010: EUR 2.8 million), a subsidiary company hasvjged to the bank the following: (i) a
registered first degree fixed lien on its outstagdshare capital and goodwill; (ii) a first degree
floating lien on its assets, including insuranceddis in respect of the assets and rights of any
kind which the subsidiary has or will have in tlheufe; (iii) that the assets of the subsidiary will
not be pledged and the lien cannot be transferidobwt the agreement of the bank.

In order to secure an outstanding loan from a&uhn bank of approximately EUR 2.0 million
(2010: EUR 2.4 million) a subsidiary company hasvjited to the bank several commitments
such as going concern pledge agreement, trade miadge agreement, sponsor support
agreement and receivables pledge agreement.

In connection with the sale of the real estat®ltgaria to Israel Theatres Ltd. as described in
Note 13, the Company has agreed to refrain fromolong additional funds if such borrowings
would result in Israel Theatres Ltd. on a fully solidated basis (together with the Company),
breaching agreed-upon EBITDA to debt ratios.

As part of the Palace Cinemas acquisition in dan@011 as described in Note 7, the Company
assumed EUR 6.6 million in existing debt of theudid companies including existing securities
such as pledge over properties, share capitalesedviables. The Slovakian subsidiary undertook
to meet several financial covenants.
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Note 23 - Commitments, liens and contingent liabtiies (cont’d)

(3) Contingent liabilities

From time to time, the Group is involved in routiliggation and proceedings during the normal
course of business. As at 31 December 2011, theigGi® not involved in any litigations or
proceedings except for the following:

Cinema City Poland Sp.Zoo (CCP), 100% owned by @oepany, is the defendant in a claim
brought by Zwazek Autorow | Kompozytorow (‘Zaiks’), a Polish celition society representing
screenplay authors and authors of other literadyransical works used in audiovisual works that are
exhibited in Poland. The Company understands tlag#tsZzhas also brought similar claims against
many other major cinema exhibitors and cable TViatoes in Poland, some of which, the Company
believes, may have settled with Zaiks. The clainsagks royalties in the amount of approximately
EUR 2.0 million plus interest for the period thrbudune 2007 for the use of works by certain of its
members in movies exhibited in Poland. RecentlykZ&led a motion with the court to settle with
CCP for the period through 2009. Although no claimse been raised by Zaiks for the period after
June 2007, Zaiks motion to the court for settlenfienthe period through 2009 makes it more likely
that Zaiks will make a claim for additional amoufds the period after 2007. Based on legal advice,
the Management Board does not expect the outcontieeoflaim to have a material effect on the
Group'’s financial position. The Company continugeadcrue amounts in connection with this matter.

Note 24 - Discontinued operations

Towards the end of 2009, the Company decided tmitate its DVD distribution activities in
Hungary as well as in the Czech Republic. The flistribution activities in these two countries have
been taken place in an unpredictable market envieoh making it difficult for management to derive
real growth and profitability from this segment.eTbonsolidated income statement for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 comprises the resoitsfiim distribution activities in Hungary and
the Czech Republic which were discontinued in 2010.

Note 25 - Revenues

Discontinued operations

Continuing operations (see Note 24) Total
Financial year
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

EUR (thousands)

Theatre sales 243,782 215,452 - - 243,782 215,452
Distribution 21,772 16,991 - 2,904 21,772 19,895
Other cinema-related

revenues 1,905 2,106 - - 1,905 2,106
Total cinema-related

revenues* 267,459 234,549 - 2,904 267,459 237,453
Sale of real estate* - 91,212 - - - 91,212
Total revenues 267,459 325,761 - 2,904 267,459 328,665
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Note 26 - Operating costs

Discontinued operations

Continuing operations (see Note 24) Total
Financial year
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

EUR (thousands)

Costs of theatre sales 181,614 152,399 - - 181,614 152,399
Distribution costs 17,995 15,598 - 2,358 17,995 17,956
Depreciation and

amortisation 25,417 19,817 - 55 25,417 19,872
Other cinema-related cost: 637 746 - - 637 746
Total cinema-related

operating costs* 225,663 188,560 - 2,413 225,663 190,973
Sale of real estate* - 88,170 - - - 88,170
Total operating costs 225,663 276,730 - 2,413 225,663 279,143

* In order to allow the reader to compare these dnmasalts to last year's annual results, revenagsl (corresponding
costs and gross results) are presented in two ozégories: (&) revenues, costs and gross resoits dinema related
operations and (b) revenues, costs and grosssdeuh the sale of real estate. This presentatomdt should allow for
a better understanding of the Company’s core operagsults with and without the significant additib revenues that
were generated last year from the sale of the Copp8ulgarian real estate assets.

Note 27 - Financial income/expenses

A. Financial income
Financial year

2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Interest income 574 369
Currency exchange gains 60 427
Total financial income consolidated 634 796
Less: Financial income of discontinued operations

(see Note 24) - (113)
Total financial income of continuing operations 634 683

B. Financial expenses

Financial year
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Interest expenses incurred (4,042) (2,816)
Interest cost capitalisetd 815 353
Currency exchange losses (847) (572)
Total financial expenses consolidated (4,074) (3,035)
Less: Financial expenses of discontinued operations

(see Note 24) - 178
Total financial expenses of continuing operations (4,074) (2,857)

(1) The Company has capitalised interest expenses tootfteof buildings in progress as well as to ofierd
assets components before being taken into operation
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Note 28 - Loss on disposals, write-off on other imgtments and other costs

This item comprises mainly capital losses on thepaial of property, equipment and other

assets.

Note 29 - Taxation: deferred tax assets, deferre@x liabilities and income tax expense

I. Tax laws applicable to the Group
1. Results of operations for tax purposes of the Comypand its Dutch subsidiaries are

computed in accordance with Dutch tax legislation.

2. Tax rates applicable to the Company and its sudosedi are as follows:

The subsidiary Tax rate
Netherlands 25% - (2010 - 25.5%)
Hungary 10% - (2010 - 10%)
Czech Republic 19% - (2010 - 19%)
Poland 19% - (2010 -19%)
Israel 24% - (2010 - 25%)
Bulgaria 10 % - (2010 - 10%)
Romania 16 % - (2010 - 16%)
Slovakia 19% - (2010 -19%)
Cyprus 10% - (2010 — 10%)

[I. Deferred income taxes

1.

Deferred income taxes are primarily provided fdrt@inporary differences between the tax
and the accounting basis of assets and liabiligs®d on the tax rate that is expected to be in
effect at the time the deferred income taxes vélldalised.

The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assetdeipendent upon the generation of future
taxable income during the periods in which thosaprary differences can be offset or
become deductible. Management considers the satdeversal of deferred tax liabilities,
projected future taxable income, and tax planntrafegies in making this assessment. Based
on all available information, management believed tll of the deferred income tax assets
are realisable and therefore has not provideddbration allowance.
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Note 29 - Taxation: deferred tax assets, deferre@x liabilities and income tax expense
(cont’'d)

2. Changes in deferred income taxes in relation toatssets and liabilities are in respect of the
following items:

Deferred income tax included in assets: 31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)
Accrued employee rights 211 168
Fixed assets (148) 1
Operating tax loss carry-forwards 1,866 1,835
Other 171 26
2,100 2,030
Deferred income tax included in liabilities: 31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)
Accrued employee rights (161) (121)
Fixed assets 3,529 7,126
Operating tax loss carry-forwards - (242)
Long-term liabilities - (586)
Other 23 228
3,391 6,405

The unused tax losses carried forward for whichdeterred tax asset is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as 34t December 2011 amount to
EUR 18,645,000 (as at 31 December 2010: EUR 10069,

Temporary differences related to fixed assets fuicivno deferred tax asset is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of the Financial Positioata®l December 2011 amount to EUR
9,433,000 (as at 31 December 2010: nil).

Il Income tax expense in the income statement

Composition: Financial year

2011 2010

EUR (thousands)

Current taxes 1,996 2,748
Deferred income taxes (2,820) 1,319
In respect of previous years 538 (29)
Income tax (benefit)/expense from continuing (286) 4,038
operations
Income tax expense from discontinued operations
(see Note 24) - 175
Total income tax expense (286) 4,213
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Note 29 - Taxation: deferred tax assets, deferre@x liabilities and income tax expense
(cont’'d)

IV. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Financial year 2011
Tax (expense)/
Before tax benefit Net of tax
EUR (thousands)

Foreign exchange translation differences (13,540) - (13,540)
Effective portion in fair value of

cash flow hedges 384 (6) 378

Total other comprehensive income (13,156) (6) (13,162)

Financial year 2010
Tax (expense)/
Before tax benefit Net of tax
EUR (thousands)

Foreign exchange translation differences 6,280 - ,28®
Effective portion in fair value of

cash flow hedges (1,484) 283 (1,201)
Total other comprehensive income 4,796 283 5,079

V. Tax reconciliation

The difference between the amount of tax calculatedncome before taxes at the regular tax
rate and the tax expenses included in the finasta¢ments is explained as follows:

Financial year
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Tax calculated at the regular rate

(2011: 25%; 2010: 25.5%) 5,272 8,737
Adjustment for reduced tax rate in
foreign subsidiaries (1,758) (1,376)
Effect of reduction in tax rates on deferred incamees * (2,030) (21)
Non-deductible expenses 141 211
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses (122) (1,461)
Income exempt from taxes (*) (3,373) (1,539)
Taxes in respect of previous years 538 188
Other differences 1,046 (526)
Total recognised income tax (benefit)/expense (286) 4,213
Tax recognised in income from continuing operations (286) 4,038
Tax recognised in income from discontinued openatio - 175
(286) 4,213

* Towards the end of the third quarter of 2011, @@mpany conducted a process of reorganising its
Polish operations, which were regrouped within @setl investment fund registered in Cyprus. The
reorganisation in Poland is expected to bring oggional benefits and to enable tax optimisation
when managing the operational companies startomg the fourth quarter of 2011.
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Note 30 - Related-party transactions

Related parties
Parties are considered to be related if one paaty the ability to control or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making finaneiat reporting decisions.

Such relationships include parent-subsidiary refedhips:

entities under common control;

individuals who, through ownership, have significamfluence over the enterprise and close
members of their families;

key management personnel, comprising the membedtedflanagement Board and members of
the Supervisory Board.

The Group is controlled by I.T. International TtreatLtd., incorporated in Israel, which owns 53.89%
of the outstanding shares (2010: 53.89%). The mmz3i46.11% are held by the public and traded at
the Warsaw Stock Exchange. The ultimate parerft@fGroup is Israel Theatres Ltd., incorporated in
Israel. The ultimate controlling parties are Mr MesGreidinger and Mr Israel Greidinger, both

Managing Directors of the Company.

Transactions with related parties

a. Income/(expenses):
Financial year
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)
Rental fees (651) (716)
Management services 397 386

All outstanding balances with these related padiespriced on an arm’s length basis. None of the
balances is secured.

Israel Theatres Ltd. (the parent company of JT$Tleasing real estate properties on which tbfee
the Company’s theatres are located to the Compaing.annual lease payments for the above
properties aggregated to EUR 266,981 (denominat&édS and linked to the Israeli CPI Index).

Pursuant to the management services agreentargdrethe Company and Israel Theatres Ltd., the
Company will provide Israel Theatres Ltd. for ardefinite period with certain management

services. Management services include office arabwatding services through providing Israel

Theatres Ltd. with senior personnel and adminisinabf Israel Theatres Ltd.’s business. The

management services agreement is for a fixed arsuwnalof EUR 397,000 (denominated in NIS

and linked to the Israeli CPI Index).
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Note 30 — Related-party transactions (cont’'d)

Transactions with related parties (cont'd)

d. Forum Film Ltd. leases offices and storage spacklerzelia from Israel Theatres Ltd. for a
consideration of EUR 8,418 (NIS 41,900) per moigtael Theatres Ltd. leases offices in Herzelia
to IT-2004 for a consideration of EUR 10,088 (NKB&L6) per month and leased office in Haifa to
IT- 2004 for consideration of EUR 8,500 (NIS 42,p@@r month until May 2011, when the office
building in Haifa was sold to a third party. Thentiad fees are linked to the Israeli CPI and are at
market rates and terms.

e. In December 2003, employment agreements witivibshe Greidinger, Mr Israel Greidinger and
Mr Amos Weltsch (‘Managing Directors’), signed anglly with ITIT in 1998, were assigned to
the Company. The fulfiiment of the Company’s olliga under the agreements will be performed
by the Company, or by its Israeli subsidiaries.

In accordance with the said agreement, the aggregass monthly remuneration for the Managing
Directors amounts to EUR 42,000 per month (denotathan NIS and linked to the Israel
Consumer Price Index), which, together with relateshployee benefits, will amount to
EUR 67,000 per month.

In addition, the Managing Directors are entitledato annual bonus aggregating to 7% of the
Company’s consolidated profits before tax for arsgdl year. The above mentioned Managing
Directors undertook to be employed by the Compamyah indefinite period, with a six month
notice of termination, and to refrain from compgtimith the Company’s business for a period of
12 months following termination of their employmevith the Company.

On 24 November 2006, the General Meeting of Shadeh® of the Company approved a new
remuneration policy which confirmed the entittemehthe members of the Management Board to
receive a monthly base salary and annual partioipah a cash bonus pool designated for the
members of the Management Board equal to 7% oftrmapany’s pre-tax profit before the bonus.
In addition, under the same remuneration policxchemember of the Management Board is
entitled to a car, contribution to a severance faadwvell as to statutory provident fund, a travel
allowance and reimbursement of reasonable busegmEnses.

Also on 26 November 2006, the General Meeting adr&holders of the Company approved a
long-term incentive plan (the ‘Plan’). The persaigible for participation in the Plan are the
employees of the Group, including the members eMlanagement Board.

Under the Plan, both option rights to acquire shamethe Company and cash bonuses may be
granted to the participants. During the financiears 2011 and 2010, no share options have been
granted to members of the Management Board.

The Managing Directors of the Company receiveduregnation totalling EUR 2,388,000 (2010:
EUR 3,338,000). The members of the Supervisory @aaceived fees totalling EUR 128,000
(2010: EUR 131,000). The total remuneration isudeld in general and administrative expenses.
The members of the Management and Supervisory Bd@ardhot receive any option rights to
acquire shares in the Company during the finaryaats 2011 and 2010.
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The remuneration for the Managing Directors is didd between the Managing Directors
as follows:

Financial year
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

General director:

Salary and other short-term benefits 282 261
Post-employment benefits 15 15
Management bonus 794 1,269
1,091 1,545
Operational director:
Salary and other related costs 235 263
Post-employment benefits 13 13
Management bonus 397 635
645 911
Financial director:
Salary and other related costs 242 234
Post-employment benefits 13 13
Management bonus 397 635
652 882
Total 2,388 3,338

The remuneration for the Supervisory Board memisgpsincipally divided equally.

Total compensation to key management personnel m@sioto EUR 2,516,000 (2010:
EUR 3,469,000), EUR 2,475,000 relates to short-temployee benefits (2010: EUR 3,428,000),
EUR 41,000 to post-employments benefits (2010: EWURO00).

Forum Film Ltd., a 50% subsidiary, participates time aforementioned remunerations to
Messrs Moshe Greidinger and Israel Greidinger atrdte of 33% thereof and fully covers the
portion of the above mentioned bonuses that rédeits own activities.

f. The Greidinger family has indirect control okt@ompany’s majority shareholder, ITIT, through its
majority shareholding in Israel Theatres Ltd. Mtiian 88% of the shares in Israel Theatres Ltd.
are held indirectly by Mr Israel Greidinger, Mr MmsGreidinger and their relatives.

The 50% of Norma Film not owned by the Companyelsi by I.M. Greidinger Investment Ltd., in
which both Mr Moshe Greidinger and Mr Israel Gregir each hold a 50% interest.

g. The non-controlling interests mainly represer0& indirect share in the equity of Forum Film
Ltd. by I.M. Greidinger Investment Ltd. (see Not (8)). Pursuant to Forum Film Ltd.’s Articles
of Association, the Company has the right to appibiree of Forum Film Ltd.’s five directors, and
accordingly, maintains control over all major compaecisions.
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h. The Company has entered into an indemnificatigreement with each executive officer and
director. These agreements endeavour to fully imdignand limit the personal liability of the
officers and directors, in certain circumstancaghkio the Company and to its shareholders, for
acts or omissions by them in their official capacithe Company has obtained officers’ and
directors’ liability insurance.

i. The Company is a subsidiary of ITIT, which asrakaid is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Israel
Theatres Ltd. The Israel Theatres Group is compridell the entities directly or indirectly owned
in whole or part by Israel Theatres Ltd. The Conypianthe Israel Theatres Group subsidiary that
conducts all of the Group’s cinema-related actgitiwhich includes film and DVD distribution,
screen advertising and real estate developmentn(vine real estate activity is at least partly
associated with a cinema project). Israel Thealtes is involved directly and through other
subsidiaries in various non-cinema-related acésitincluding real estate activities in Israel and
Central and Eastern Europe not related to moviattes.
In 2010, Israel Theatres Ltd. through subsieéa purchased the company’s Bulgarian real estate
development activities and assets and in 2011 dhgany signed a deferred payment agreement
with Israel theatres subsidiaries for the remairiitgR 15 million of the purchase price for the
Bulgarian real estate sale in 2010 as describé&ibta 13.

j- Israel Theatres Ltd., ITIT and its directors gnmihcipal officers undertook not to compete, wieeth
directly or indirectly, with the Company’s businassthe film exhibition, distribution and video
rental fields. The length of this undertaking is & long as they are directors or officers inegith
of the companies, or beneficially own a controllimgerest in the Company. The agreement
specifically states that Israel Theatres Ltd. anid Imay not engage in the development, sale or
lease of property for theatrical or video rentak usithout the prior written consent of the
Company, unless it is to be used by the Company.

k. On 11 May 2010, the Company issued 341,000 avelmary shares to I.T. International Theatres

Ltd. to facilitate the exercise of share optionanged in prior years to employees. During 2011 no
new shares were issued.
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Note 31 - Financial instruments and financial risknanagement

The Group’s principal financial instruments, othiban derivatives and cash and cash equivalents,
comprise bank loans and short-term bank credits.rain purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Grbap various other financial instruments such as
trade debtors and trade creditors, which arisetrérom its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactipniacipally forward currency contracts. The pumpos
is to manage the currency risks arising from theupis operations and its sources of finance. ksl
has been throughout the financial years 2011 ad@®,20e Group’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financiatruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk,
foreign currency risk and credit risk. The Manageti&oard reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised bédlogrManagement Board also monitors the market
price risk arising from all financial instrument¥he Group’s accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in Note 4 (I).

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in marketgsjcsuch as foreign exchange rates, interest aates
equity prices will affect the Group’s income or theue of its holdings of financial instruments.eTh
objective of market risk management is to managecamtrol market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

(i) Price risk
The Group’s exposure to marketable securities pigleis not significant because of the very small
amount invested in marketable securities relatvilié Group’s total assets.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing asdgte Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-
term borrowings. For its long-term borrowings, Beoup adopts a policy of a mixture of flat and
floating interest rates (see Notes 20 and 21). AtD&cember 2011 and 2010, the Group has no
borrowings at fixed rates of interest.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated
taking into consideration refinancing and renewadxisting positions. Based on these scenarios, the
Group calculates the impact on profit and loss défined interest rate shift. For each simulatibe,
same interest rate shift is used for all currenciég scenarios are run only for liabilities thepresent

the major interest-bearing positions. Based orstmellations performed, the impact on interest obst

a 1% shift in interest rate would be a maximum dase of EUR 457,000 (2010: EUR 456,000).
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Market risk (cont’d)

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group incurs foreign currency risk on futurenoaercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a currency ott&an the relevant local functional currencieg th
Bulgarian leva, the Czech crown, the Hungariamfpthe Polish zloty and the New Israeli shekel, as
well as the euro in Slovakia and at parent compamgl. The Group monitors the exposure to
currencies other than the relevant functional cwayeat an entity-by-entity level. The Group entered
into forward exchange contracts in order to hedg®es of its US dollar and euro expenses (see
below).

If the following rate movements would occur, thée effect on profit/(loss) would be as presented in

the table below:

(a) the euro versus the Czech crown, the Hungariantfdtie Romanian new lei or the Polish zloty
by +/- 6.57%;

(b) the euro versus the US dollar by +/- 10.96%;

(c) the euro versus the New Israeli shekel by +/- 8.35%

(d) the US dollar versus the Czech crown, the Hungdnént, the Romanian new lei or the Polish
Zloty by +/- 14.36%;

(e) the US dollar versus the New Israeli shekel by7+32%.

The shifts in exchange rates above are based twridivolatility. Since the exchange rate of the

Bulgarian leva versus the euro has been unchamgeshift in exchange rate of the euro versus the

Bulgarian leva is assumed.

Total effect on profit/(loss)

Financial year 2011

EUR vs USD vs
CZK, CZK,
HUF,RON EUR vs EUR vs HUF,RON USD vs
or PLN uUsD NIS or PLN NIS
EUR (thousands)
Total assets/(liabilities) (844) 76 277 379 -
Reasonable shift 6.57% 10.96% 8.35% 14.36% 7.32%
Total effect on profit of positive movements (453.36) 235 171 357.73 (19.8)
Total effect on profit of negative movements 453.36 (23.5) (17.1) (357.73) 19.8
Total effect on profit/(loss) Financial year 2010
EUR vs USD vs
CZK, HUF EUR vs EUR vs CZK, HUF USD vs
or PLN uUsD NIS or PLN NIS
EUR (thousands)
Total assets/(liabilities) (580) 353 147 127 (543)
Reasonable shift 8.7% 11.8% 10.5% 16.0% 9.1%
Total effect on profit of positive movement 214.3 21.6 10.3 1,238.6 6.8
Total effect on profit of negative movement (214.3) (21.6) (10.3) (1,238.6) (6.8)
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to thed@p if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligatipand arises principally from the Group’s recelgab
from customers and investment securities.

Financial instruments that potentially subject Beoup to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, shortiEwvestments and receivables. The Group places its
cash and cash equivalents and short-term invessnmefihancial institutions with high credit ratisg
Management does not expect any counterparty tadaileet its obligations. Concentrations of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables are relftilew due to the relatively large number of client
comprising the Group’s clients list.

The carrying amount of the financial assets reprtssthe maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Trade receivables 14,758 13,387
Receivables from related parties 16,182 15,622
Other receivables 12,585 11,546
Non-marketable securities held for sale 24 190
Cash and cash equivalehts 7,049 9,261
Short-term bank deposits 340 329
Foreign currency exchange contracts 644 20

51,582 50,425

* The rest of ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ is cadtaad.
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Credit risk (cont'd)

The credit quality of financial assets that areth®si past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings (if availale}o historical information about counterpartyaidt
rates:

31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Trade receivables:
Counterparty without / with unknown external creditimgt

Group 1* 12,715 11,472
Group 2** 1,667 1,810
Group 3*** 376 105
Total Trade receivables 14,758 13,387
Cash at banks and short-term bank deposits

AAA 6,382 8,334
AA 448 409
A 219 518
Total Cash at bank*** 7,049 9,261

* Group 1 — new receivables (less then 6 time)n

**  Group 2 — existing receivables (more thaménths) with no defaults in the past.

**  Group 3 — existing receivables (more tham6nths) with some defaults in the past. All defawere fully recovered.
*** The rest of ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ iskeat hand

Allowances for doubtful accounts remained on a lsimevel (EUR 126,000 and EUR 131,000 for
31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively).
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will néie able to meet its financial obligations as thady f
due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidityoi®nsure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitieshen due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or riskinmége to the Group’s reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintainsufficient cash and marketable securities, the
availability of funding through an adequate amoaintommitted credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group taiam flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed credit lines.

The table below analyses the Group’s financialiliteds and net-settled derivative financial lidtids

into relevant maturity groupings based on the remgi period at the reporting to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tatgelese contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 December 2011

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years

EUR (thousands)

Borrowings 13,054 11,274 18,915 6,305
Other long-term payables 146 176 438 499
Current liabilities* 39,157 4 4 5

As at 31 December 2010
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years
EUR (thousands)

Borrowings 5,419 6,517 10,315 2,234
Other long-term payables 120 120 1,335 2,942
Current liabilities* 29,330 312 - -

* Excluding short-term borrowings, deferred incoamsl income received in advance.

Derivative financial instruments

As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, thep@uwy has hedged some of its US dollar and

euro expenses through 2011 and 2010 in respets Bblish, Hungarian and Czech theatre operations,

against the Polish zloty, the Hungarian forint dne Czech crown, respectively. In connection with

these obligations, the Company has entered intéotlmaving forward foreign exchange contracts:

e contracts comprising a commitment to buy USD 400,80the beginning of each month until May
2012 at fixed prices denominated in Polish zloty;

» contracts comprising a commitment to buy USD 255 ,8@0the beginning of each month until May
2012 at fixed prices denominated in Hungarian forin

» contracts comprising a commitment to sell USD 600,at the middle of January 2012 at fixed
prices denominated in Polish zloty;

e contracts comprising a commitment to sell EUR 5,600 at the middle of January 2012 at fixed
prices denominated in Polish zloty.
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Derivative financial instruments (cont’d)

These forward foreign exchange contracts have baleed in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 December 2011 at their fair value

The change in fair value of contracts that areo#iffe hedges is booked directly into equity in a

separate hedge reserve. The Company designatescirasacts to hedge future cash flow fluctuations
deriving from differences between the euro and W& dollar against local currencies as described
above. Amounts are released from the hedge reserpeofit or loss when the future transaction is

settled.

Fair values
The fair values of financial assets and liabilitiegyether with the carrying amounts shown in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, arfobows:

As at 31 December 2011 As at 31 December 2010
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value

EUR (thousands)

Financial assets

Trade accounts receivable 14,758 14,758 13,387 13,387
Receivables from related parties 16,182 16,182 15,622 15,622
Income taxes receivable 604 604 1,061 1,061
Receivable from government institutions 2,599 2,599 1,321 1,321
Other receivables 9,986 9,986 10,225 10,225
Marketable securities 24 24 190 190
Cash and cash equivalents 9,277 9,277 10,527 10,527
Short-term bank deposits 340 340 329 329
Foreign currency exchange contracts 644 644 90 90

Total financial assets 54,414 54,414 52,752 52,752

Financial liabilities

Bank loans (49,548) (49,548) (24,485) (24,485)
Short-term bank credits (17,277) (17,277) (6,692) (6,692)
Financial leases (2,080) (1,080) (1,215) (1,215)
Other long-term liabilities 79 (a79) (3,302) (3,302)
Trade payables (17,414) (17,414) (9,702) (9,702)
Payables to related parties (210) (210) (524) (524)
Investment creditors (2,628) (2,628) (654) (654)
Accrued expenses (12,540) (12,540) (13,340) (13,340)
Payable to government institutions (1,002) (1,002) (1,760) (1,760)
Other payables (4,491) (4,491) (4,382) (4,382)
Total financial liabilities (106,369) (106,369) (66,056) (66,056)
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Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instrumentsiedvat fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

« Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in activekets for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includeéithin Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as psg®r indirectly (i.e., derived from prices);

« Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability thateanot based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

As at 31 December 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Total
EUR (thousands)

Marketable securities 24 - 24

Cash and cash equivalent * 7,049 - 7,049

Derivative financial assets

(Foreign currency exchange contracts) - 644 644
7,073 644 7,717

As at 31 December 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Total
EUR (thousands)

Marketable securities 190 - 190

Cash and cash equivalent * 9,261 - 9,261

Derivative financial assets

(Foreign currency exchange contracts) - 90 90
9,451 90 9,541

* Not including cash at hand

During 2011, there have been no transfers betweerlll and Level 2 in 2011 (2010: no transfers in
either direction).
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When managing capital, it is the Group’s objectwesafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shatgers and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reducedbst of capital. In order to maintain or adjus th
capital structure, the Group may adjust the prabipropriation, return capital to shareholders,dssu
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Cortsigt#nothers in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio and eger No external capital requirements existed as pe
31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt dividgdotal equity attributable to equity holders.tNe
debt is calculated as total borrowings (includiogrtent and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position) tessh and cash equivalents. Leverage is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital employed. Taapital employed is calculated as ‘equity
attributable to equity holders’ as shown in the €idated Statement of Financial Position plus net
debt financing assets in operation.

The gearing ratios and leverage at 31 December 20d 2010 were as follows:

31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Bank debt:

Long-term borrowings, including current portion 49,548 24,485

Short-term bank credit 17,277 6,692
Total debt 66,825 31,177
Cash and cash equivalents (9,277) (10,527)
Net debt 57,548 20,650
Construction in progress (see Note 9) (23,046) *(13,255)
Cinema equipment not operated yet (see Note 9) (134) (63)
Net debt financing assets in operation 34,368 7,332
Total equity 229,303 221,730
Total capital employed 263,671 229,062
Gearing ratio 25.1% 9.3%
Leverage 21.8% 9.0%

* Reclassified for comparison purposes
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31 December 2011

In or linked
In or linked In or linked to foreign
to EUR to PLN  currencies Total
EUR (thousands)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,458 2,784 4,035 9,277
Short-term bank deposits - collateralised 340 - - 340
Trade accounts receivable 1,376 5,366 8,016 14,758
Income tax receivable 247 - 357 604
Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 918 5,164 6,503 12,585
Receivable from related parties 15,242 - 940 16,182
Marketable securities - - 24 24
Foreign currency exchange contracts - 159 485 644
20,581 13,473 20,360 54,414
Liabilities
Short-term bank credit - 7,080 10,197 17,277
Trade accounts payable 2,601 6,698 8,115 17,414
Employee and payroll accruals 81 187 2,133 2,401
Other accounts payable 1,078 7,381 12,202 20,661
Payable to related parties - - 210 210
Long-term loans (including current portion) 16,860 28,996 3,692 49,548
Accrued employee rights upon retirement - - 849 849
20,620 50,342 37,398 108,360
31 December 2010
In or linked
In or linked In or linked to foreign
to EUR To PLN currencies Total
EUR (thousands)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,782 3,213 5,532 10,527
Short-term bank deposits - collateralised 329 - - 293
Trade accounts receivable 54 6,359 6,974 13,387
Income tax receivable - - 1,061 1,061
Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 537 4,834 6,175 11,546
Receivable from related parties 14,836 - 786 15,622
Marketable securities 109 - 81 190
Foreign currency exchange contracts - 90 - 90
17,647 14,496 20,609 52,752
Liabilities
Short-term bank credit 17 - 6,675 6,692
Trade accounts payable 304 3,449 5,949 9,702
Employee and payroll accruals - 214 1,822 2,036
Other accounts payable 1,662 9,049 9,425 20,136
Payable to related parties - - 524 524
Long-term loans (including current portjon 9,022 10,596 4,867 24,485
Accrued employee rights upon retirement - - 734 734
11,005 23,308 29,996 64,309
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The Group’s operations in Israel and Central Eurape organised under the reportable segments, as
shown below, which are the Group’s major businegsnents. The strategic business units offer difitere
products and services because they require diffgnacesses and marketing strategies. For eadhmeof t
strategic business units, management reviews giltenanagement reports on at least a quarterly .basis
The following summarises the operations in eadh®iGroup’s reportable segments:

¢ Theatre operations.

» Distribution — Distribution of movies.

« DVD distribution (discontinued — see Note 24)

» Other — this includes the Company’s cinema-relagatl estate activities and the sale of real estate.
Segment performance is evaluated based on openatiii or loss and is measured consistently with
operating profit or loss in the consolidated finahstatements. However, finance costs, financerre
and income taxes are managed on a group basige@ndtaallocated to operating segments.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm'gtlefbasis.

Business segments

Financial year 2011
EUR (thousands)

Theatre

operations Distribution Other  Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
External sales 243,782 21,772 1,905 - 267,459
Inter-segment sales 50 13,173 - (13,223) -
Total revenues 243,832 34,945 1,905 (13,223) 267,459
Results
Segment result before
depreciation, amortisation
& impairment write-downs 47,487 1,977 682 - 50,146
Depreciation, amortisation &
impairment write-downs 24,211 1,151 55 - 25,417
Segment result 23,276 826 627 - 24,729
Financial income 634
Financial expenses (4,074)
Loss on disposals (201)
Income tax benefit 286
Non-controlling interests (449)
Net income 20,925

31 December 2011
EUR (thousands)
Theatre

operations Distribution Other Unallocated  Consolidated
Segment assets 310,770 9,768 17,604 2,100 340,242
Segment liabilities 38,057 4,285 452 70,216 113,010
Capital expenditure 54,441 4,020 - - 58,461
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Financial year 2010

EUR (thousands)

DVD distri- Less:
Theatre bution discon- Contin-
opera- Distribu- (discon- Elimi-  Conso- tinued nuing
tions tion tinued) Other  nations lidated operations operations
Revenues
External sales 215,452 16,991 2,904 93,318 - 328,665 2,904 325,761
Inter-segment sales* 52 12,247 14 - (12,313) - - -
Total revenues 215,504 29,238 2,918 93,318 (12,313) 328,665 2,904 325,761
Results
Segment result before
depreciation, amortisation
& impairment write-downs 53,222 83 280 2,861 - 56,446 280 56,166
Depreciation, amortisation ¢
impairment write-downs 19,551 178 55 88 - 19,872 55 19,817
Segment result 33,671 (95) 225 2,773 36,574 225 36,349
Financial income 796 113 683
Financial expenses (3,035) (178) (2,857)
Loss on disposals (72) 30 (101)
Income tax expense (4,213) (175) (4,038)
Non-controlling interests 359 9 350
Net income 30,410 24 30,386
31 December 2010
EUR (thousands)
Theatre DVD distribution

operations Distribution (discontinued) Other Unallocated Consolidated
Segment assets* 267,361 6,097 372 16,144 2,030 292,004
Segment liabilities 27,306 7,076 2,661 606 37,582 75,231
Capital 39,947 361 - 4,511 - 44,819

expenditure

* Reclassified for comparison purposes.
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In addition to the information on business segmduatsed on the structure of the Group, the figures
below present information for geographical segmebé&termination of geographical segments is based
on location of assets and is identical to custdoetion.

31 December 2011
EUR (thousands)

Poland Israel Hungary Other Unallocated Consolidated
Revenues
External sales 115,451 46,766 38,709 66,533 - 267,459
Non-current assets
Segment assets 115,793 53,461 23,464 99,500 2,100 294,318
Capital expenditure 9,957 17,190 11,265 20,049 - 58,461

31 December 2010
EUR (thousands)

Poland Israel Hungary Other Unallocated Consolidated
Revenues
External sales 119,139 48,497 27,091  *131,034 - 325,761
Non-current assets
Segment assets 130,040 41,839 13,197 47,486 2,030 234,592
Capital expenditure 11,362 13,988 2,111 17,358 - 44,819

* Include revenue in amount of EUR 91,212,000 frbwm $ale of real estate.

97



Cinema City International N.V.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 35 - Personnel

Personnel costs are specified as follows:
31 December

2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Salaries and wages 25,200 19,614

Pension costs 1,611 1,215

Other social charges 4,149 2,914

Share-based payments

under the share option plan (see Note 16(d)) 16 63
30,976 23,806

Total personnel costs

For 2011 and 2010, the pension costs compriseatkfiontribution expenses only.
The increase in the Personnel costs is mainly dube increase of employees due to the purchase of

Palace and new cinemas opened in 2011 and 2010.

The average number of personnel, in full-time egl@nts, employed by the Company and its
subsidiaries and joint ventures during the year12@ias 3,094 (financial year 2010: 2,558). A

geographical allocation of the average number cfgrael is as follows:

31 December

2011 2010
Israel 325 325
Poland 1,229 1,300
Hungary 468 319
Other Central Europe* 1,072 614
3,094 2,558

Total average number of personnel

* Including the Czech Republic, Bulgaria, Slova&iad Romania.
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31 December 2014

I.T. International Theatres 2004 Ltd.

I.T. Magyar Cinemas Kft

Cinema City Finance B.V.

Cinema City Poland CC Sp.Zoo S.K.A
Star Sp.Zoo

Stars Sp.Zoo

Janki properties Poland Sp.Zoo

IT Development 2003 CC Sp.Zoo. S.K.A
Cinema City Czech S.R.O

Forum Film Czech s.r.0.***

New Age Media CC Sp.Zoo S.K.A
Forum Film Poland CC Sp.Zoo S.K.A
All Job Poland CC Sp. Zoo S.K.A
Cinema City Poland Sp.Zoo CC spolka komandytowa
Forum 40 Fundus Inwestycyjny Zamkniety
Norma Film Ltd.

Forum Film Ltd.

Ya'af - Giant Video Library Network Ltd.**
Ya’af — Automatic Video Machines Ltd.
Kafan et Anak limited partnership**
Mabat Ltd.

Teleticket Ltd.

Cinema Plus Ltd.

Cinema City Bulgaria EOOD

Forum Film Bulgaria EOOD

Forum Home Entertainment Czech s.r.o
New Age Cinema Kft

Forum Hungary Film Distribution Kft
Cinema City Romania SRL

Forum Film Romania SRL

New Age Media Romania SRL

Palace Cinemas Hungary Kft

Cinema City Slovakia s.r.o****,

Forum Film Slovakia s.r.o.

Company’s (in)direct Company’s Country of
voting rights equity share Consolidation  incorporation

% % %

100% 100% | Ful (6)
100% 100% Full 2
100% 100% Full 1)

100% 100% Full 4 (

100% 100% Full 4
100% 100% Full 4

100% 100% Full 4

100% 100% | Ful (4)
100% 100% Full (3)
100% 100% Full (3)
100% 100% Full 4

100% 100% Full 4 (
100% 100% Full 4
0940 100% Full (4)

100% 100% Il Fu 4)
60% 50% Full (6)
60% 50% Full (6)
60% 30% Full (6)

60% 50% Full (6)

25% 15% Poadtonate (6)

100% 100% Full (6)
100% 100% Full (6)
100% 100% Full (6)
100% 100% Full (5)
100% 100% Full (5)
100% 100% Full (3)
100% 100% Full %)
100% 100% Full 2)

100% 100% Full (7)
100% 100% Full (@)
100% 100% Full (7)

100% 100% Full (2)
100% 100% Full (8)
100% 100% Full (8)

100% 100% Full (9)

Seracus Ltd.

Dutch corporation. 3)
Hungarian corporation. (4)
Cypriotic corporation.

Czech aogtion.
Polish corpimmat

(5) Bulgarian corporation.
(6) Israeli corporation.

(7) Romanéamporation.
(8) Slovakian coration.

The details of corporations during the financiabyeended 31 December 2010 were similar to the BetsHi corporations as at 31
December 2011 as shown above, except for changiegdioe financial year 2011 disclosed in Note 6.

Included the discontinued operations in 2010.

Previously named New Age Cinema Czech s,see (Note 6).
Previously named Palace Multikino s.r.o. ; mged with Palace Cinemas Slovak Republic s.r.o. X&#e 6).
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Cinema City International N.V.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 37 - Interest in joint ventures

As at December 2011 and 2010, the interest in ja@ntures includes a 50% interest (indirectly heid)
an Israeli joint venture, Kafan et Anak limited pership, which was operating a video chain indkra

under the brand name Blockbuster. The results fthen Israeli joint venture is included under
‘discontinued operations’

The following amounts represent the Group’s shaféise assets and liabilities, and sales and iesiilt

the joint ventures. They are included in the Cadstéd Statement of Financial Position and
Consolidated Income Statement:

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)

Assets:
- Non-current assets
- Current assets

Liabilities:
- Non-current liabilities 1,582 1,649
- Current liabilities 1 1
1,583 1,650
Net liabilities (1,583) (1,650)
Financial year Financial year
2011 2010
EUR (thousands)
Income - -
Expenses - (12)
Profit after income tax - (12)

There are no contingent liabilities and no othenetments relating to the Group’s interest in thiat
ventures, and no contingent liabilities of the weetitself.
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Cinema City International N.V.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 38 - Subsequent events

Acquisition of non-controlling interest

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, indWa2012, the Company signed a Memorandum of
Understanding with 1.M.Greidinger Ltd. (‘IMG’), alsraeli company owned by Messrs Moshe Greidinger
and Israel Greidinger, both Managing Directors éndirectly) shareholders of the Company, to acgtiie
non-controlling interest in Norma Film Ltd. for amount of EUR 1,755,000. As a result of the tratisa,
Norma Film Ltd. will be fully owned by the Company.

Norma Film Ltd. holds 100% of the equity share ardm Film Ltd., a major film distributor in Israekith
distribution exclusivity in Israel for film produdeby Disney, MGM and several other independentigtudin
addition, Forum Film Ltd. acts as a sub-distribdtorSony and Fox movies in Israel.

Norma Film Ltd. Also indirectly holds 100% of thguéty share in Ya'af - Automatic Video Machines Ltd
and 60% of the equity share in Ya’af - Giant Videglorary Network Ltd. However, these two subsidiarae
currently not active.

Following the expansion of the Israeli distributioperations and following the new distribution agrents
signed in Israel, the Company considers film disttion in Israel an important integrated activitull
ownership of the distribution business in Israghifine with the ownership structure in the otheuntries in
which the Company has significant film distributioperations.

As the acquisition of the non-controlling intergsialifies as a transaction with a related partiM& being
controlled by major (indirect) shareholders and Eging Directors of the Company — and also qualdies
transaction constituting a conflict of interestiwihe Management Board as described under Printiplef
the Dutch Corporate Governance Code, the SupewiBward has formed a special committee of
independent Supervisory Directors of the Comparhys Tommittee will , after careful review, vote tire
transaction and where necessary represent the @gmpéghe transaction, in order to ensure thatdaation

is at arm’s length and, moreover, to ensure thst pevisions of the Dutch Governance Code in retspke
conflicts of interest will be complied with.
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Company Statement of Financial Position

Cinema City International N.V.

(before appropriation of the result)

31 December

2011 2010
Note EUR (thousands)
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 3 8,905 125
Property and equipment 4 - 9
Financial fixed assets
Deferred tax asset 1,201 1,001
Investment in subsidiaries 5 177,688 166,066
Total non-current assets 187,794 167,201
CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables
Receivable from subsidiaries 59,753 51,442*
Trade account receivables 500 -
Receivable from related parties 100 13,072
Income taxes receivable 100 44
Other accounts receivable and prepaid items 535 524*
Marketable securities - 109
Liquid funds
Cash and cash equivalents 410 353
Total current assets 61,398 65,544
TOTAL ASSETS 249,192 232,745
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 6
Share capital 512 512
Share premium reserve 92,144 92,144
Accumulated currency translation adjustments (11,272) 2,474
Hedge reserve 451 73
Retained earnings 126,543 96,117
Net profit for the year 20,925 30,410
Total shareholders’ equity 229,303 221,730
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade accounts payable 177 7
Payable to subsidiaries 19,025 10,458
Other accounts payable 687 550
Total current liabilities 19,889 11,015
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND LIABILITIES 249,192 232,745

*Reclassified for comparison purposes.

The notes on pages 106 to 110 are an

integrabpdre Company Financial Statements.
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Company Income Statement

Cinema City International N.V.

Revenues

Cost of sales

Gross margin

General and administrative expenses
Acquisition-related and reorganisation expenses
Other expenses

Net operating result

Financial income

Financial expenses

Operating result before taxation

Income taxes benefit/(expenses)

Net result after taxation

Result from subsidiaries after taxation

Net income

For the year ended 31 December

2011 2010
Note EUR (thousands)

5,881 6,952

(5,688) -

193 6,952
(798) (1,428)

(381) -

9 (1,217)

(2,103) 5,524

7 7 189
8 (585) (261)
(578) (72)
(2,681) 5,452

10 200 (270)
(2,481) 5,182

5 23,406 25,228
20,925 30,410

The notes on pages 106 to 110 are an integrabpdre Company Financial Statements.
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Cinema City International N.V.

Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equjt

Accumulated Net
Share currency profit
Share  premium translation Hedge Retained for
capital reserve adjustments reserve earnings the year Total
EUR (thousands)
Balance as of 1 January 2010 50890,377 (4,417) 1,274 71,628 24,426 183,796
Profit appropriation prior year - - - - 24,426 (24,426) -
Issue of new sharade Note 6) 4 1,767 - - - - 1,771
Share-based payments - - - - 63 - 63
Net profit for the year 2010 - - - - - 30,410 30,410
Foreign currency
translation adjustment - - 6,891 - - - 6,891
Effective portion in fair value of
cash flow hedges . - - (1,201) . - (1,201)
Balance as of 31 December 2010 51292,144 2,474 73 96,117 30,410 221,730
Profit appropriation prior year - - - - 30,410 (30,410) -
Share-based payments - - - - 16 - 16
Net profit for the year 2011 - - - - - 20,925 20,925
Foreign currency
translation adjustment - - (13,746) - - - (13,746)
Effective portion in fair value
of cash flow hedges - - - 378 - - 378
Balance as of 31 December 200 512 92,144 (11,272) 451 126,543 20,925 229,303

*

Represents changes in fair value adjustment of iashhedges related to part of the Company’s
future transactions denominated in currencies dtien the functional currency (see Note 31 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements).

The notes on pages 106 to 110 are an integrabptite Company Financial Statements.
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Cinema City International N.V.

Company Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December
2011 2010

EUR (thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net operating result (2,103) 5,524
Adjustments to reconcile net income to caeth provided

by operating activities

Depreciation and amortisation 55 67
Loss/(gain) on sale of subsidiaries 27 (3,089)
Interest received 7 189
Interest paid (585) (261)
Income taxes (paid)/received (56) 4
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

before working capital (2,655) 2,434
Movement in receivables from and payables to sidorsés 16,505 (3,882)
Increase in other receivable and related parties (511) (1,827)
Increase/(decrease) in other accounts payable 307 (15)
Equity share-based payments 16 63
Net cash used in operating activities 13,662 (3,227)
Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in subsidiaries (2,603) (487)
Acquisition of subsidiaries and Goodwill (18,438) -
Net changes in marketable securities 109 -
Investment in loan deeded from a purchased subgidia (2,936) -
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries 23 2,234
Net cash provided by investing activities (23,845) 1,747
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds net, from new shares issued - 1,771
Dividend received 10,240 -
Net cash provided by financing activities 10,240 1,771
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 57 291
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 353 62
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 410 353

The notes on pages 106 to 110 are an integrabptite Company Financial Statements.



Cinema City International N.V.

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Note 1 - General

Cinema City International N.V. (‘the Company’) wascorporated on 12 April 1994, and has its
statutory seat in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, ntbirporate office in Rotterdam, the Netherlands.

The shares in the Company are traded on the WaBtaek Exchange. As at 31 December 2011,
53.89% of the outstanding shares are held by hfErhational Theatres Ltd. ('ITIT"), incorporated i
Israel. The Company is a subsidiary of I.T. Int¢ioreal Theatres Ltd. (‘'ITIT).

The Company holds and owns various companies irogeurand Israel that are active in the
entertainment business in various countries, inotudPoland, the Czech Republic, Hungary,
Bulgaria, Romania, Slovakia and Israel. The Comparalso engaged in managing and establishing
its own entertainment real estate projects foralgmirposes, in which the Company operates motion

picture theatres. In addition, the Company is imedlin short-term and long-term real estate trading
in Central Europe.

Note 2 - Accounting principles

The Company’s financial statements have been pedpamder the option of clause 362.8 of Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code, meaning thataccounting principles and measurement basis
of the Company’s statutory accounts are similathimse applied with respect to the Consolidated
Financial Statements (see Notes 2 and 4 to thedlidated Financial Statements), except for the
valuation of subsidiaries which are valued using #quity method. The Company Financial
Statements have been prepared in conformity witheigdly accepted accounting principles in the
Netherlands (‘Dutch GAAP’), whereas the Consolidafénancial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards (‘'IFRS’) as adopted by the EU and Dutch
GAAP as described in Note 4 to the Consolidate@rtral Statements.

Note 3 - Intangible assets

The intangible assets comprise software and atedstat cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any.

Financial year 2011

Acquisitions
Balance at Additions through Balance at
beginning of during the business end
year year combinations of year

EUR (thousands)

Cost

Goodwill - - 8,826 8,826

Other intangible assets 227 - - 227
227 - 8,826 9,053

Amortisation and impairment losses

Goodwill - - - -

Other intangible assets 102 46 - 148
102 46 - 148

Carrying value 125 (46) 8,826 8,905
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Cinema City International N.V.

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Note 3 - Intangible assets (cont’d

Financial year 2010

Acquisitions
Balance at Additions through Balance at
beginning of during the business end
year year combinations of year
EUR (thousands)
Cost
Goodwill - - - -
Other intangible assets 227 - - 227
227 - - 227
Amortisation and impairment losses
Goodwill - - - -
Other intangible assets 57 45 - 102
57 45 - 102
Carrying value 170 (45) - 125
Note 4 - Property and equipment
Composition: Financial year 2011
Balance at Additions
beginning during the Accumulated Balance at
of year year depreciation end of year
EUR (thousands)
Cinema equipment - - - -
Computers, furniture and office
equipment 9 - 9) -
Carrying value 9 - 9) -
Financial year 2010
Balance at Additions
beginning during the Accumulated Balance at
of year year depreciation end of year
EUR (thousands)
Cinema equipment 13 - (23)
Computers, furniture and office
equipment 18 - 9) 9
Carrying value 31 - (22) 9




Cinema City International N.V.

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Note 5 - Investment in subsidiaries
The subsidiaries of the Company are valued at tiegiequity value.

The movements in subsidiaries are as follows: Financial year
2011 2010

EUR (thousands)

Balance at beginning of the year 166,066 171,575
Currency translation adjustment (13,709) 6,625
Investments in subsidiaries 2,603 487
Sales of subsidiaries (50) (5,951)
Dividend distribution by subsidiary (10,240) (31,898)
Net result subsidiaries during the year 23,406 25,228
Purchase new subsidiary 9,612 -

Balance at the end of the year 177,688 166,066

Note 6 - Shareholders’ equity
As of 31 December 2011 and as of 31 December 200 authorised share capital of the

Company consisted of 175,000,000 ordinary shardgsavpar value of EUR 0.01 each. For details
on shares issued during 2011 and 2010, referemoads to Note 16 of the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

The Company’s legal reserves comprise the effegtibréon in fair value of cash flow hedges and
share in results of associates.

Note 7 - Financial income

The financial income comprises interest earnedaork laccounts and deposits.

Note 8 - Financial expenses

The financial expenses mainly relate to interestapke to Group companies amounting to
EUR 284,000 (2010: EUR 238,000) and to foreign ency exchange losses of EUR 301,000
(2010: EUR 23,000).

Note 9 — other expenses

This item contains credit royalties to subsidiary.
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Cinema City International N.V.

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Note 10 - Income taxes

Income tax benefit recorded in 2011 is due to detktax in respect of current tax carry forward
losses.

In 2010, the income tax expenses have been recoritedrily from the utilisation of available
tax losses carried forward from prior years.

Realisation of the deferred income tax asset isuégnt upon generating sufficient taxable
income in the period that the deferred income tssetiis realised. Based on all available
information, it is probable that the deferred ineomax asset is realisable and therefore the
deferred tax asset is valued at EUR 1,201,000 @&de®ber 2010: EUR 1,001,000).

The accumulated tax losses carried forward as fieD8cember 2011 are estimated to be
EUR 6,191,000 (31 December 2010: EUR 4,760,000).

Note 11 - Personnel

The Company employed no employees during the &&rs and 2010.

Note 12 - Directors’ remuneration

The Board of Managing Directors of the Company ©i8f 3 members; the board members
are entitled to a total remuneration of EUR 2,388,0during the year 2011 (2010:
EUR 3,338,000). The amount of remuneration alstudes fees, salaries and bonuses paid and
have been paid through the Company’s subsidiaries.

The Supervisory Board of the Company consists ofeénbers; the Supervisory Directors are
entitled to an annual fee of EUR 12,500 plus an wrhef EUR 1,500 per board meeting
(EUR 750 if attendance is by telephone). The chairof the Audit Committee is entitled to an
additional EUR 5,000 per year and the chairmanhef ¢ther committees is entitled to an
additional EUR 2,500 per year. The total amountiduespect of Supervisory Board fees during
2011 is EUR 128,000 (2010: EUR 131,000).

For the remuneration elements received by the iddal Board members, reference is made to
Note 30 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Cinema City International N.V.

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Note 13 - Information about agreed-upon engagementd the Company’s auditor

Information about the agreements and the values fhmse agreements is disclosed below:

31 December

2011

2010

EUR (thousands)

Remuneration for audit KPMG Accountants N.V. 225 190
Remuneration for audit (othéY) 356 268
Remuneration for other serviégs 573 330

1,154 788

@ Remuneration for audit includes the amounts paitl due to KPMG worldwide for professional

services related to audit and review of unconstdidiaand consolidated financial statements of the

Company for the relevant year.

@ Remuneration includes other services rendereddoqdiditor in 2011 and 2010.

Rotterdam15 March 2012

The Management Board

Moshe Greidinger Amos Weltsch Israel Greidinger

Supervisory Board

Scott Rosenblum Caroline Twist Frank Pierce

Peter Weishut Yair Shilhav
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Other information

Articles of Association rules regarding profit appropriation

In accordance with Article 32 of the Articles ofs&giation,

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)
9)

the Board of Managing Directors, with prior approeé the Supervisory Board, shall determine
which portion of the profits — the positive balarafethe profit and loss account — shall be reserved
The profit remaining shall be at the disposal ef @eneral Meeting;

profit distributions may only be made to the extifre equity exceeds the paid and called-up part of
the capital increased with the reserves which teshaintained pursuant to the law;

dividends shall be paid after adoption of the ahaaeounts evidencing that payment of dividends is
lawful;

the Board of Managing Directors, with prior approehthe Supervisory Board may resolve to pay
an interim dividend provided the requirement of feeond paragraph has been complied with as
shown by interim accounts drawn up in accordantke thie provision of the law;

the General Meeting may, subject to due observaficthe provision of paragraph 2 and upon a
proposal by the managing directors, resolve to nagteibutions out of a reserve which need not to
be maintained by virtue of the law;

cash payments in relation to bearer shares if m@d ifar as the distributions are payable outside t
Netherlands, shall be made in the currency of thenty where the shares are listed and in
accordance with the applicable rules of the coumtryvhich the shares of the Company have been
admitted to an official listing on a regulated $t@xchange in accordance. If such currency is not
the same as the legal tender in the Netherlandarttweint shall be calculated against the exchange
rate determined by the Netherlands Central Bank (Bderlandsche Bank’) at the end of the day
prior to the day on which the General Meeting shedblve to make the distributions in accordance
with the above. If and in as far as the Companyherfirst day on which the distribution is payable,
pursuant to governmental measures or other exirewydcircumstances beyond its control is not
able to pay on the place outside the Netherlanda tre relevant foreign currency, the Board of
Managing Directors is authorised to determine tat #xtent that the payments shall be made in
Euros and on one or more places in the Netherldndsich case the provisions of the first sentence
of this paragraph shall not apply;

the General Meeting may, upon a proposal by theagiag directors which proposal was approved
by the Supervisory Board, resolve to pay divideradsimake distributions out of a reserve which
need not to be maintained by virtue of the law, Nyhar partially in the form of shares in the cabit
of the Company;

a claim of a shareholder to receive a distribuégpires after 5 years;

For the calculation of the amount of profit distdilon, the shares held by the Company shall be
excluded.

Subsequent event
Reference is made to Note 38 (page 101).

Proposed profit appropriation

For the year ended 31 December 2011, managemegmbga® to allocate the net profit for the year
2011 amounting to EUR 20,925,000 to retained egsifhis proposal has not been reflected in the
Company Statement of Financial Position per 31 Bées 2011.

Auditor’s report
The auditor’s report is set out on pages 112 to 113
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Supervisory Board and the Annual Generaltiig®f shareholders of Cinema City
International N.V.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statésr291.1 of Cinema City International N.V.,
Rotterdam. The financial statements include thesalatated financial statements and the company
financial statements. The consolidated financitieshents comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2011, the alioeted income statement and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes ietsblders’ equity and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes, comprising a summary of thefisignt accounting policies and other explanatory
information. The company financial statements caosegrthe company statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2011, the company income statemdrithe company statements of changes in
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the yean tbhded and the notes, comprising a summary of
the accounting policies and other explanatory imfation.

Management’s responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation amgbfesentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reportitgn8ards as adopted by the European Union and
with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Codad for the preparation of the director’s refart
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlabiddl Code. Furthermore, management is
responsible for such internal control as it deteemiis necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from materiaistatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hiésancial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch laeluding the Dutch Standards on Auditing. This
requires that we comply with ethical requirememd plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatses from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidihevidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures salatgpend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatemethiediinancial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auzhttsiders internal control relevant to the erdity
preparation and fair presentation of the finansiatements in order to design audit proceduresatieat
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for tipase of expressing an opinion on the effectivenes
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also indes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accowrgtilgates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the finalhstiatements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basrs f
our audit opinion.

Opinion with respect to the consolidated financistlitements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaajive a true and fair view of the financial pusit
of Cinema City International N.V. as at 31 Decenm®@t1 and of its result and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Internationzdiéial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of thehgeands Civil Code.
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Opinion with respect to the company financial statents

In our opinion, the company financial statement® @i true and fair view of the financial positidn o
Cinema City International N.V. as at 31 Decembelr128nd of its result for the year then ended in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherladd Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirements under Sect®@®32sub 5 at e and f of the Netherlands Civil Code,
we have no deficiencies to report as a result oeaamination whether the director’s report, to the
extent we can assess, has been prepared in accenddh Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, and if the
information as required under Section 2:392 subll-&h has been annexed. Further, we report that
the director’s report, to the extent we can assgssnsistent with the financial statements asiired

by Section 2:391 sub 4 of the Netherlands Civil €od

Amstelveen, 15 March 2012
KPMG ACCOUNTANTS N.V.

Signed by

P. Mizrachy RA
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